SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

MANAGEMENT REPORT

To,

The Members,

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, (“NCLT”), had vide its order dated May 29,
2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of
Corporate Debtor in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and
regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time (“Code”). Accordingly, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Corporate Debtor stands
suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel, appointed as the Insolvency Resolution
Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further, the committee of creditors (CoC) of the
Corporate Debtor, pursuant to the meeting held on July 28, 2020 and in terms of Section 22 (2) of the
Code, resolved with 100% voting share, to replace the existing Interim Resolution Professional with Mr.
Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, the NCLT has in
its hearing dated 4™ September, 2020 through video conferencing pronounced the approval for the
appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

Since the company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), as per Section 17 of the
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, from the date of appointment of the Resolution Professional.

(a) the management of the affairs of the company shall vest in the Resolution Professional.

(b) the powers of the Board of Directors of the company shall stand suspended and be exercised by the
Resolution Professional.

(c) the officers and managers of the company shall report to the Resolution Professional and provide
access to such documents and records of the company as may be required by the Resolution Professional.

(d) the financial institutions maintaining accounts of the company shall act on the instructions of the
Resolution Professional in relation to such accounts and furnish all information relating to the company
available with them to the Resolution Professional.

RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS
Your Company’s financial performance for the year under review has been encouraging. Key aspects of
Standalone Financial Performance of SCL for the current financial year 2020-2021 along with the previous
financial year 2020-21 are tabulated below:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

For the year
ended March
31, 2021

For the year
ended March
31, 2020

For the year
ended March
31, 2021

For the year
ended March
31, 2020

Total Income

223.56

298030.93

223.56

298038.71
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Profit Before Depreciation, (1380.05) (129216.30) (1665.13) (114701.30)
Interest and Tax

Less: Depreciation & 651.35 693.48 785.89 828.03
Amortization expenses

Less: Finance cost 0.087 6528.45 0.087 6528.45
Profit before Taxation and (731.61) (121994.36) (879.15) (122057.78)
Exceptional Items

Less: Extraordinary and

Exceptional Iltem

Profit before Taxation (731.61) (121994.36) (765.64) (122057.78)
Less: Provision for Tax for - - - -
Current Year

Less: Provision for deferred Tax (113.52) (95.38) (113.52) (95.38)
Profit for the period (618.10) (121898.98) (765.64) (121962.40)
Other Comprehensive -- -- -- --
Income(net)

Profit After Tax (618.10) (121898.98) (765.64) (121962.40)
Dividend 0% 0% 0% 0%
Transferred to Reserves (618.10) (121898.98) (765.64) (121962.40)
Shareholders' Fund (57376.86) (56758.77) (57388.58) (56622.95)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (0.08) (16.56) (0.10) (16.57)
i) Basic (0.08) (16.56) (0.10) (16.57)
ii) Diluted

The revenue from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2021 stood at Rs.223.56 Lacs (Rupees Two
hundred and twenty three Lacs Approx.) as compared to Rs.298030.93 Lacs (Rupees Two Lacs Ninety Eight
Thousand and thirty Approx) for the previous year ending 31st March, 2020. The loss before tax for the
year ended 31st March, 2021 stood at Rs.618.10 Lacs (Rupees Six Hundred and Eighteen Lacs Approx.) as
compared to loss of Rs.1,21,994.37 Lacs (Rupees One lac Twenty One Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety
Four Lacs Approx.) for the year ending 31st March, 2020. The Loss after Tax stood at Rs.618.10 Lacs
(Rupees Six Hundred and Eighteen Lacs Approx.) for the year ending 31st March, 2021 as compared to loss
of Rs.1,21,898.98 Lacs (Rupees One Lac Twenty One Thousand Eight hundred and Ninety Eight Lacs
Approx.) for the previous year.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification in the Official Gazette dated February 16,
2015 has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Accordingly, in compliance with the
said Rules, the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the Financial Year
2020-2021 have been prepared as per Indian Accounting Standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements under the Companies Act, 2013,
and as stipulated under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR)”). A separate section on Corporate Governance under SEBI

Page 2 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(LODR) along with a certificate from the auditors confirming the compliance is marked as Annexure and
forms part of this Directors Report.

DISCLOSURES OF AMOUNTS, IF ANY, TRANSFER TO ANY RESERVES

An amount of (Rs.618.10 Lacs) is proposes to transfer to General Reserve from the profits of the
year under review.

DIVIDEND

Your company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and incurring losses. The Board
of Directors (suspended during CIRP) does not recommend any dividend during the year under
review.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs. 78,00,00,000 consisting of 76,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face
value of Rs. 1.00 each and 20,00,000 Preference Shares of Face value of Rs. 10 each and the Paid up capital
was increased to Rs. 73,61,00,000 consisting of 73,61,00,000 Equity shares of face value of Rs. 1.00 each.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS,IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY, OCCURED AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
AND AS AT THE DATE OF SIGNING THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
after the Balance Sheet Date and as at the date of signing of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans, guarantees or investments covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2020-2021.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Directors

As on March 31, 2021, the Composition of Board of Directors of the Company included total of 6 (Six)
directors comprising of 3 (Three) Executive Directors,1 (One) Non-Executive Non Independent Directors
and 2 (Two) Non-Executive Independent Director.

Re-appointment

Mr. Satish Agrawal, Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. The detail of the Directors being eligible to
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be reappointed is set out in the in the explanatory statement to the notice of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Key Managerial Personals

The Key Managerial Personals (KMPs) of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51)
and Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time
being in force) are as follows:

S. Name of KMP’s Designation
No.

1. Gulab Chand Agrawal Chairman & Whole Time Director

2. Ashok Agrawal Whole Time Director

3. Satish Agrawal Whole Time Director

4, Surendra Kumar Jain Independent Director

7. Shilpi Jain Independent Director

7. Anil Kumar Vishwakarma Chief Financial Officer

8. Shilpa Agarwal Company Secretary (Left on
09.08.2021)

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
All Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company’s policy on programmes and measures to familiarize Independent Directors about the
Company, its business, updates and development includes various measures viz. issue of appointment
letters containing terms, duties etc., management information reports, presentation and other
programmes as may be appropriate from time to time. The Policy and programme aims to provide insights
into the Company to enable independent directors to understand the business, functionaries, business
model and others matters. The said Policy and details in this respect is displayed on the Company’s
website.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Since the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended with effect from 29" May, 2020
pursuant to the orders dated 29" May, 2020 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Indore Bench, Ahmedabad evaluation of Board has not taken place for the year 2020-21.

MEETINGS

The corporate insolvency resolution process (CIRP) of the Company has been in effect from 29" May, 2020
as per the Orders passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, Ahmadabad. Prior to
the commencement of CIRP, the Board of Directors met Once during the financial year 2020-21 and
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thereafter, since May 29, 2020 the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended during the CIRP
period. The dates of board meetings is May 20, 2020. After that Five co-ordination meetings was called by
Resolution Professional (RP) on 07th August, 2020, o7 September,2020, 11" November,2020, 02™
December, 2020 and 02" February 2021 which was attended by Executive Director and Independent
Directors.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Since the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended w.e.f. 29" May, 2020 pursuant to the
orders dated 29th May, 2020 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Indore Bench,
Ahmedabad the powers of the various committees have also been suspended with effect from the same
date as per SEBI circular No. SEBI/LADNRO/GN/2018/21 dated 31* May, 2018 and hence no meetings
have May, 2018 and hence no meetings have since been conducted.

Prior to the commencement of corporate insolvency resolution process, the Board had Four Committees
viz Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as mandated under the Act and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details of the role of Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and stakeholders Relationship Committee along with their
composition, number of meetings held during the financial year and attendance at the meetings are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms an integral part of this Report.

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMPs, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of
SCL formulated in accordance with Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
for the time being in force). The salient aspects covered in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
outlined below:

% To identify the persons who are qualified to become director and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal.

% To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees of SCL.

+* To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

0

% To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board
for further evaluation of the Board and to determining whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors.

%+ To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.
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0

< To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

0

% To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

+* To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

%+ To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

% To implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KMP’S

A statement containing the details of the Remuneration of Directors and KMP’s as required under Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as ‘Annexure’ which forms part of this Annual Report.
However, the Company has not paid any Managerial Remuneration for the financial year 2020-2021 to any
of its Whole-Time Directors and Non-Executive Director.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SCL has two wholly owned Subsidiary Companies:

> Sanwaria Singapore Private Limited (Singapore);
> Sanwaria Energy Limited

During the year, there has been no business activity by Sanwaria Singapore Private Limited (Singapore),
foreign subsidiary of the Company. The Board has reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary. In accordance
with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-21
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Consolidated Financial Statements presented by
the Company in this Annual Report include the financial information of its subsidiary.

Further, in accordance to the Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013; the Annual Accounts and related
documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection till the date of AGM during the
business hours at the Registered Office of the Company. The Company will also make available copy
thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same.

The statement containing the salient features relating to Subsidiary Company in the prescribed format in
AQC-1 is appended as an annexure to this Report.

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Your Directors states that Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by
Institute of Company Secretaries of India revised and notified on October 01, 2017.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the website
of the Company and shall be made available to the members on request.

ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/COURTS/ TRIBUNALS
Except for commencement of CIRP under the Code, no material orders were passed by Regulators/ Courts
/ Tribunals during the period impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, directors (suspended during CIRP) , to the
best of their knowledge and belief, state that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

i.  they have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and have
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of
its profits/ losses for the year ended on that date;

ii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

iii. they have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021 on a ‘going
concern’ basis; and

iv. they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

v.  they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MAINTAINENCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Section
148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. Pramod K. Sharma & Co.; Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 007857C 11-12, Sarnath
Complex, Opp. Board Office, Shivaji Nagar, Bhopal (M.P.) were appointed as the statutory auditors of the
Company to hold office for a period of five consecutive years from the conclusion of the 28" Annual
General Meeting held on December 26, 2019 of the Company till the conclusion of 33" Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2024.
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The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments. The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is
part of the Annual Report. The Comments on the qualifications in the Auditors’ Report on the financial
statements of the Company for financial year 2020-21 are as provided in the “Statement on Impact of
Audit Qualifications” which is annexed hereafter as Annexure and forms part of this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed P.K. Rai &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, having their office at F-5/159, Zone-2, MP Nagar, Bhopal-
462011, M.P. to undertake the Secretarial Audit functions of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by P.K. Rai & Associates in the prescribed form MR- 3 is attached as
an ‘Annexure’ which forms part of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

According to Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the term Internal Financial Control (IFC) means
the policies and procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal financial control system which ensures that
all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are authorized recorded and reported
correctly.

Your Company has appointed M/s Rahul Choudhary & Associates, a firm of Practicing Chartered
Accountant represented by Mr. Rahul Choudhary, Bhopal as the Internal Auditors of the Company to focus
on review of business processes and suggest improvements as applicable. Independence of the audit and
compliance is ensured by direct reporting of Internal Audit Team to the Audit Committee of the Board.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition; the Companies Act, 2013 re-emphasizes the need for an effective Internal Financial Control
system in the Company. The system should be designed and operated effectively. Rule 8(5)(viii) of

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires the information regarding adequacy of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to the financial statements to be disclosed in the Board's report.

To ensure effective Internal Financial Controls the Company has laid down the following measures:

e All operations are executed through Standard Operating Procedures in all functional activities for
which key manuals have been put in place. The manuals are updated and validated periodically.

e The Company has a comprehensive risk management framework.

e The Company has in place a well-defined Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy).

e Compliance of secretarial functions is ensured by way of secretarial audit.

e Compliance relating to cost records of the company is ensured by way of cost audit.
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PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the
Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is
responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees have
confirmed compliance with the Code.

DISCLOSURE ON VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)

Pursuant to Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has established a mechanism called
‘Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)’ for directors and employees to report to the appropriate
authorities of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy and provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The
policy permits all the directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an elaborate Risk Management procedure, which is based on three pillars: Business Risk
Assessment, Operational Controls Assessment and Policy Compliance processes. Major risks identified by
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing
basis. Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement, 2015, the
Company has a Risk Management Committee to monitor the risks and their mitigating actions and the key
risks are also discussed at the Committee. The details of the committee and its terms of reference are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Board Report. At present the company has
not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company. Some of the risks
identified by the Risk Management Committee relate to competitive intensity and cost volatility.

PERSONNEL

During the year under review, no employees, whether employed for the whole or part of the year, was
drawing remuneration exceeding the limits as laid down u/s Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014. Hence the details required under Section 197(12) are not required to be given.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholders value legally, ethically and sustainably. At SCL,
the goal of Corporate Governance is to ensure fairness of every stakeholder. We believe sound corporate
governance is critical to enhancing and retaining investor trust. We always seek to ensure that our
performance is driven by integrity.

The Company has adopted the policies in line with new governance requirements including the
Policy on Related Party Transactions

Policy on Preservation of Documents of SCL.

Policy on Determining Material Subsidiaries

Policy for Determination of Materiality.

X3

S
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S
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S
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S
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+* Remuneration Policy

» Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism)

Code of Fair Disclosure

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the Board of Directors, Senior Management Personnel and
Other Employees.

*,

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

A separate report on Corporate Governance is provided together with a Certificate from the Statutory
Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under
Listing Regulations. A Certificate of the CEQO/CFO of the Company in terms of Listing Regulations, inter alia,
confirming the correctness of the financial statements and cash flow statements, adequacy of the internal
control measures and reporting of matters to the Audit Committee, is also annexed.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section 92(3) and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is appended as an Annexure to this Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, your Company has
formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting;
approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and Related
Parties.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. Prior
omnibus approval is obtained for Related Party Transactions on a quarterly basis for transactions which are
of repetitive nature and / or entered in the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s Length. All
Related Party Transactions are subjected to independent review to establish compliance with the
requirements of Related Party Transactions under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on
Arm’s Length basis. No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding ten percent of the
annual consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements, were entered during the year by
the Company. All Related Party Transactions as entered by the Company during the Year is disclosed in
Form AOC-2 as annexed along with this Report.

OPERATIONS, PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY

A detailed review of operations and performance and future outlook of the Company is given separately
under the head ‘Management Discussion & Analysis’ pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Part B of
Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations, is annexed and forms part of this Annual Report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace for all its women employees.
To ensure that every woman employee is treated with dignity and respect and as mandated under “The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013”, the
Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to prevent, prohibit and redress the cases
of sexual harassment of any women at workplace. The Company has designated an external Independent

Page 10 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

member as a Chairperson of the Committee. The Company has not received any Complaints on Sexual
Harassment during the year.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details of activities in the nature of Energy Conservation, Research and
Development, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is set out hereunder:

1. ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENERGY CONSERVATION

Your Company is committed to continuously reduce energy consumption at its various units. The Company
works on the principal of “Zero Injury” and integrates Safety as a non-negotiable value through a
combination of training and hardware up-gradation leveraging, core technology concepts and safety
standards. This has led the Company targeting change in behavior patterns and elimination of unsafe acts
from the workplace. Besides sustaining previous year initiatives, new measures were implemented during
the year. Your Company has been striving to ensure environment friendly initiatives when implementing
various projects on energy saving at its units. List of initiatives taken in this regard are as under:

R/

+* Synchronization of air compressor for optimum use of this resource

+ Installation of temperature transmitter on the condenser’s inlet water temperature for optimum
running of cooling tower fan.

+»*» Reuse of Treated effluent

By the recirculation of Boiler Bank’s and APH ash into the furnace which reduces the problem of un-

burnt fuel and increasing the boiler efficiency.

Use of energy efficient CFL and LED lamps in all plants.

Recycling the Vacuum Pump cooling water.

Usage of Natural Gas replacing Light Diesel Oil in Boiler

Online monitoring of Boiler Efficiency.

Re-circulation of cooling tower water.

Installation of higher efficiency DG sets for uninterrupted power supply.

The Company has installed variable frequency drive. The Company has made efforts to conserve and

optimize the use of energy.

» Utilization of UPS and high voltage control stabilizers.

Use of high efficiency motors, variable frequency drives and screw compressors instead of

reciprocating compressors; roof mounted self driven ventilators and maximized use of natural

illumination.

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

DS

X3
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Benefits of above measures:

Cost reduction due to decline in overall energy consumption.

Sustained un-interrupted power supply facilitated in achieving production lean time.

Curtailed wastage at each production stage.

Enhanced operating margin through cost reduction.

Overall contributed towards environment and restrained wastage of water and food commodity
used as raw material in production.

< Company has been able to achieve the least possible consumption of energy in comparison to the
industry average.

72 72 72 72 72
R XA X R X R X QR X 4
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2. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

Your Company continues to pursue innovation and applied research as means to sustain its global
leadership in a competitive environment. Following are the areas in which the R&D is being carried out by
the Company in the Financial Year 2020-21:

i) Development, testing and specification setting of packaging materials.

ii) Formulation and evaluation of Agricultural inputs to enhance farm productivity, crop quality and for
other such applications.

Benefits Derived as a result of above:

+* Quality evaluation of finished products and raw materials
Entering new market segments.

Increased Productivity

strategic resource management

Product improvement

Improved Quality

Cost reduction

Reduced Steam Consumption

Safe Working Condition

Healthy environment

Manufacturing and Packaging Quality Enhanced

e

8

e

8
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Future plan of action

Your Company’s creative & innovation team will continue to work on energy efficient process like

0

+*» Reducing packaging weight / volume.

0

% Roll out of new range of differentiated products of international quality.

0

< Improvement of process and resource use efficiencies.

0

% Enlarge the scope of Agri-inputs options.
3. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTION AND INNOVATION

Technologies were successfully absorbed, resulting in a high production and new product
development to meet existing and new customer requirements. Technology innovations were successfully
implemented to increase production and reduce the consumption of raw material, energy and utilities

The Company has well co-ordinated the management programme that includes setting out governing
guidelines pertaining to identifying areas of research, agreeing timelines, resource requirements etc.;
scientific research based on hypothesis, testing and experimentation which leads to new / improved /
alternative technologies; support the development to launch ready product formulation based on research
and implementation of the launch ready product formulations in specific markets. Your Company is
committed to ensure that the support in terms of new products, innovations, technologies and services is
commensurate with the needs of Company and enables it to win in the marketplace.
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4. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of export opportunities based on economics
considerations.

(Inuss$)
Contents For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
Foreign Exchange earned Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange used Nil Nil
Net Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
Earned

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant rules, the Company is having in place
the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee under the chairmanship of Mr. Satish Agrawal,
Chairman. The other members of the Committee are Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Surendra Kumar
Jain. The Company has not spent on CSR activity for the financial year 2020-2021 due to loss.

During the year, the Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities as the company have
Negative profits calculated in terms of the provisions of Section 135 read with Section 198 of the Act. The
Annual report on CSR activities as required under the Companies Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure to this Management Report.

APPRECIATION

The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance provided to your company by its
bankers, financial institutions, and Government as well as Non-Government agencies. The Board wishes to
place on record its appreciation to the contribution made by employees of the company during the year
under review. The Board also takes this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-
operation and support received from its valued shareholders.

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report - |

Form AOC-2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

As on Financial Year ended 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length
basis.

Particulars Details
Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship
Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Not
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Applicable

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under 1%
proviso to Sec 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.N Nature of Category Salient Terms including the value, if | Tenure | Amount
Contracts any paid as
/Arrangement/ advance,
Transaction if any

1 Sale Associates & Sale amounting to Rs. 4.67 Lakhs - -

Subsidiary
2 Purchase of Associates & Purchase of materials amounting to Rs. - -
Materials Subsidiary 32.66 Lakhs
3 Rent Paid Associates& Rent paid amounting to Rs. 12 Lakhs to - -
Subsidiary Associate & Subsidiary

4 Salary Key Salary amounting to Rs. 20 Lakhs - -
Management
Personnel

5 Interest Paid Associates & | Interest paid amounting to nil to Associate - -
Subsidiary & Subsidiary
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Key Interest paid amounting to nil to Key
Management Management Personnel
6 Interest Associates & | Interest Received amounting to nil to - -
Received Subsidiary Associate & Subsidiary

Interest Received amounting to nil to Key
Management Personnel

7 Loan Associates & | Loan taken amounting to Rs. 196.46 Lakhs - -
Subsidiary from Associates & Subsidiary.
Key Loan repaid amounting to Rs. 130.58 Lakhs
Management | to Associates & Subsidiary.
Personnel
Relatives Loan taken amounting to nil from Key

Management Personnel.

Loan repaid amounting to nil to Key
Management Personnel.

Loan taken amounting to nil from Relatives.
Loan repaid amounting to nil to Relatives.

Closing Balance amounting to Rs. 6011.46
Lakhs, Rs. 24.12 Lakhs and Rs. 574.24 Lakhs
to  Associates &  Subsidiary, Key
Management Personnel and Relatives
respectively

8. Advances Associates & | During the Year 2020-2021, advances - -
Subsidiary amounting to Rs. 35.28 Lakhs were given to
Associates & Subsidiaries.

The advance amounting to Rs. 19.89 Lakhs
was repaid back by Associates & Relatives
leaving a closing balance at the end of the
year at Rs. 70.94 Lakhs.

Note:

> All the transactions are as per the policy laid down by the Audit Committee and approval of the Audit
Committee is sought at every meeting of the Audit Committee, as required under the provision of
the Companies Act.

» Since the Company is under CIRP, all the related party transactions are subject to transaction and
forensic audit and hence the authenticity of above mentioned transactions may vary accordingly.

Associates: ° Ashok Dal and Oil Mills, Itarsi
e N.S. Agrawal Trading Corporation e  Sanwaria Infrastructures Ltd.
e  Sanwaria Globfin Pvt. Ltd. e  Sanwaria Warehousing & Logistic Ltd.
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e  Sanwaria Foods Limited

e  Seth Shree Narayan Agrawal Charitable
Trust

e Surya Trading Corporation

e  Shreenathji Solvex Limited

Key Management Personnel

e Gulab Chand Agrawal, Chairman

e Satish Kumar Agrawal, Director

e Ashok Kumar Agrawal, Director

e Anil Agrawal, Professional Director (died
on 29.05.2021)

Relatives
o Geeta Devi Agrawal
e Anil Kumar Agrawal HUF
e Ashok Kumar Agrawal HUF
e Gulab Chand Agrawal HUF

December 08, 2021

Satish Kumar Agrawal HUF

R.N. Agrawal HUF

Anil Agrawal (Died on 29.05.2021)
Anju Devi Agrawal

Sadhna Devi Agrawal

Bobby Agrawal

Rita Devi Agrawal

Ashutosh Agrawal

Abhishek Agrawal

Rajul Agrawal

Subsidiary Company
Sanwaria Singapore Private Ltd
Sanwaria Energy Ltd.

For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal

Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report - 1l

FORM NO. AOC -1

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF SUBSIDIARY
COMPANIES

(As on Financial Year ended March 31, 2021)
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Name of Subsidiary Company Sanwaria Energy Limited Sanwaria Singapore
(InRs.) Pte. Ltd
(InUS $)
Issued & Subscribed Capital 311249100 1
Reserves (1153566) 0
Total Assets 320290733 0
Total Liabilities 320290733 0
Investments 0 0
Turnover 0 0
Profit/(Loss)before Tax (14735529) 0
Provision for Tax - 0
Profit/(Loss) After Tax (14735529) 0
Proposed Dividend - 0
Cash Profit - 0
December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report -1l

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Sanwaria Consumer Limited,
E-1/1, Arera Colony

Bhopal MP 462016 IN

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sanwaria Consumer Limited, (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021
according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009. (Not Applicable)
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999.
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable)
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009
(Not Applicable)
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 Not
applicable
6) Other Laws applicable to the Company;
a) The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989;
b) The Insecticide Act, 1968;
c) Factories Act, 1948 and Rules made there under
d) Payment of Bonus Act 1965, & Rules, 1965
e) Maternity Benefit Act 1961 & Rules
f) Employees Compensation Act, 1923 & Rules.
g) Minimum Wages Act, 1948, M.W(C) Rules, 1950
h) Child Labour (P&R) Act 1986 & Rules.
i) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1981
j) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974
k) Payment of Wages Act 1936
[) Employees State Insurance Act 1948
m) Employees PF & Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952
n) Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act 1970
o) Bureau of Indian Standards Act.
p) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
g) Indian Contract Act, 1872
r) Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other environmental laws
s) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
t) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and non-executive directors and Independent directors as per
Regulation 17 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

» Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

» Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes. All the decisions have been taken unanimously
and no dissent recorded.

We further report that the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, (“NCLT”), had
vide its order dated May 29, 2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of Corporate Debtor in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed there under, as amended from time to time
(“Code”). Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of
Directors of the Corporate Debtor stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev
Goel, appointed as the Insolvency Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional).
Further, the committee of creditors (CoC) of the Corporate Debtor, pursuant to the meeting held on
July 28, 2020 and in terms of Section 22 (2) of the Code, resolved with 100% voting share, to replace
the existing Interim Resolution Professional with Mr. Gautam Mittal as the Resolution Professional (RP)
for the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, the NCLT has in its hearing dated 4" September, 2020 through
video conferencing pronounced the approval for the appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP
(“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

We further report that the company had not spent the required amounts on corporate social
responsibility (CSR), within the time period for the year 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 and
2020-21.

We further report that the company had not complied with the provisions of Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the cost records and cost audit.

We further report that we have observed delays in compliance of the following regulations of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

e Regulation 6

e Regulation 7 (2)

e Regulation 7(3)

e Regulation 23 (9)

e Regulation 29(2)

e Regulation 31

e Regulation 27 (2)
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e Regulation 33
e Regulation 55A

We further report that we have observed non-compliance of regulation 14 i.e. nonpayment of
listing fee to stock exchanges (BSE and NSE).

We further report that we have observed non- compliance of Regulation 21 i.e. the Risk
Management Committee is not duly constituted.

We further report that we have observed non-compliance of regulation 46 i.e. maintaining a
functional website containing the basic information about the listed entity.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events / actions having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc, referred to above except for the following:-

Name of the Nature of | Amount | Period to Forum where Status
statute Dues (Rs. In which dispute is pending
Lakhs) the
amount
relates
Income Tax Disputed 7297.33 | Various | CIT(A)/Tribunal/ Demand Stayed by
Act Years High court department
Central Sales Disputed 72.08 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Tax Act Years tribunal/ Appellate high court, demand
Authority pending for grant of
exemption and their
effect.
Madhya Disputed 932.75 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Pradesh Entry Years tribunal/ Appellate high court, demand
Tax Act Authority pending for grant of
exemption and their
effect.
Madhya Disputed 2575.21 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Pradesh VAT Years tribunal/ Appellate high court, demand
Tax Act Authority pending for grant of
exemption and their
effect.
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EPFO Disputed 150.22 | Various | CGIT Jabalpur Stay by CGIT
Years

Central Excise | Disputed 100.26 | Various | Cestate/ Stay Being Apply
Years Commissioner (A)

MPIDC Disputed 19.01 | Various | MPIDC, Mandideep | Stay Being Apply
Years

DTIC Disputed 28.77 | Various | MP Govt. Stay Being Apply
Years

Municipal Disputed 3.78 | Various | Municipal Stay Being Apply

Corporation Years Corporation Itarsi

MP Electrical Disputed 44.98 | Various Stay Being Apply

Department Years High Court

For

Practicing Company Secretary
CS PRAVEEN KUMAR RAI

M. No.: 6313

C.P. No.: 3779

Date: 12-11-2021

Place: Bhopal

UDIN : F00613C000922681
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Annexure to Directors’ Report -1V

Form MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

L15143MP1991PLC006395

Registration Date

22" April, 1991

Name of the Company

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Public Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office & contact
details

Office Hall No. 1, First Floor Metro Walk,
Bittan Market, Bhopal-462016

Telephone: 0755-4294878

Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com

Whether listed company

Yes

Name, Address & contact details of the
Registrar &Transfer Agent, if any.

Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In House)

Office Hall No. 1, First Floor Metro Walk,
Bittan Market, Bhopal-462016

Telephone: 0755-4294878

Email-id: rta@sanwariaconsumer.com

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated)
S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products / services Product/service of the company
1 Production of Basmati Rice 10612 10.80
2 Production of refined oil 10402 75.00

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applica
of the Company Subsidia Shares Sectior
Associat held
1.| Sanwaria Energy Limited U04010MP2005PLC018218 Subsidiary | 100.00 2(87)(ii)
E-1/1, Arera Colony,
Bhopal- 462016 (M.P.)
2.| Sanwaria Singapore Pte Ltd. | Foreign Subsidiary Subsidiary | 100.00 2(87)(ii)
8-2, One Raffles Place
Singapore- 048616
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of { No. of Shares held at the end of the % of
Category of Year[As on 31-March-2020] year[As on 31-March-2021] Change
Shareholders Physic % of %of during
Demat Total Total Demat Physid Total Total | the year
Shares shares
A. Promoters
1. Indian
- Individual 285066963 - 285066963 | 38.726 118343391 - 118343391 | 16.08 (22.646)
- Body Corporg 11319352( - 113193520 15.377 4800000 - | 4800000 0.65 (14.727)
2. Foreign - -
Total Promoter | 398260483 - 398260483 | 54.103 123143391 | - 123143391 | 16.73 (37.373)
Shareholding(A)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions 200357 200357 0.027 |4862 - 4862 (0.0 (0.027)
- Banks/FI’s
2.Non-Institution
-Body Corporate 5053858 26172000 |31225858 4.242 29578846 [26172000 |55750846  |7.57 3.328
o i 213429871 176893 213606764  |29.018 |373909976 |202779 |374112755 |50.82 21.802
-Individual holding
Shares upto Rs. 2lac
65644103 - 65644103 8.917 [137437877 137437877 | 18.67 9.753
-Individual holding - -
Shares above Rs.2lac |- - - 3.015 |- -
- Others 22196706 100 22196806 0.321 [150 150 0.0 (3.015)
2364665 - 2364665 0.353 [29357224 29357224  |3.99 3.67
Lr;ls'fs 2600964 - 2600964 16292895 16292895 2.21 1.857
Clearing Members
HUF
Total Public 311490524 (26348993 |337839517 |45.893 |586576968 |26374779 |612951747 |85.78 39.887
Shareholding (B)
C. Shares held by Custodian for ADR/GDR
Grand Total 709928000 (26172000 |736100000 |100.00 |709725221|26374779736100000 |100.00 -
(A+B+C)
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B) Shareholding of Promoter-

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Shareholding at the end of the year

%

year[As on 31-March-2020] [As on 31-March-2021] change in
shareholdi
Shareholder’s No. of % of %of Shares| No. % of %of ng during
Name Shares total Pledged Shares total Shares the year

Shares of | encumbered to Shares of | Pledged /

the total shares the encumbere

company company | d to total

shares
Body Corporate
Sanwaria Globfin Private | 108393520 14.73 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil (14.73)
Ltd
NS  Agrawal Trading | 4800000 0.65 Nil 4800000 0.65 Nil Nil
Corporation Ltd
Individuals

Gulab Chand Agrawal 57742972 7.84 Nil 24000 0.003 Nil (7.84)
Satish Kumar Agrawal 49260300 6.69 Nil 24000 0.003 Nil (6.69)
Anil Kumar Agrawal 57999334 7.88 Nil 57999334 7.88 Nil 0
Ashok Kumar Agrawal 54033100 7.34 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil (7.34)
Rita Devi Agrawal 21480000 2.92 Nil 21480000 2.92 Nil 0
Bobby Agrawal 16080000 2.18 Nil 16080000 2.18 Nil 0
Anju Devi Agrawal 10260000 1.39 Nil 10260000 1.39 Nil 0
Geeta Devi Agrawal 131200 0.02 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil (0.02)
Sadhna Devi Agrawal 5604000 0.76 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil (0.76)
Rajul Agrawal 3398000 0.46 Nil 3398000 0.46 Nil 0
Ashutosh Agrawal 2820000 0.38 Nil 2820000 0.38 Nil 0
Abhishek Agrawal 2356800 0.32 Nil 2356800 0.32 Nil 0
Vasu Agrawal 1640000 0.22 Nil 1640000 0.22 Nil 0
Chanda Agrawal 1560000 0.21 Nil 1560000 0.21 Nil 0
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Dagdoolal Goyal 701257 0.10 Nil 701257 0.10 Nil 0
Total 285066963 54.10 Nil 123143391 | 16.73 Nil (37.37)
C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding

Particulars

beginning of the year

during the year

No. of shares

% of total | No.
shares of | shares

of | % of total

shares of the

the company
company
At the beginning of the year 398260483 54.10 398260483 54.10

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the

Less: Equity Shares sold by Promoters during the year

reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. | 275117092
allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):
At the end of the year 123143391 ‘ 16.73 ‘ 123143391 ‘ 16.73
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
S.NO. NAME/ADDRESS TOTAL % OF TOT
HOLDING EQUITY

1 OFFICIAL LIQUIDATOR CRB CORPORATION LTD 26172000 3.555

2 ASHOK KUMAR CHAUDHARY 9500889 1.291

3 SANJAY MAKHUJA 8982463 1.220

4 EDELWEISS BROKING LIMITD 6266741 0.851

5 SREENIVASAN GANESHANATH 4505999 0.612

6 SONAM SINGH 2505000 0.340

7 JAYASEELAN SINGARAVELU 2235000 0.304

8 MANIKKATHUPARAMBIL J DAVIES 2030000 0.276

9 ABDUL RASHID WANI 2000000 0.272

10 DIVYESH CHANDRAKANT SEJPAL 1900613 0.258

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN Shareholding of each Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Directors and each Key beginning during the
Managerial Personnel of the year
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No. of | % of total No. of | % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1. Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal- Executive Chairman
At the beginning of the year 57718972 7.84 24000
At the end of the year 24000 0.003
2. Mr. Satish Agrawal- Executive Director
At the beginning of the year | 49260300 6.689 24000
At the end of the year 24000 0.003
3. Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal- Executive Director

At the beginning of the year | 54033100 7.34 -

At the end of the year - -

4 Mr. Anil Agrawal- Non-Executive Director

At the beginning of the year | 57999324 7.88

At the end of the year 57999334 7.88
5. Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain - Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

6. Mrs. Shilpi jain - Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

7. Mr. Anil Kumar Vishwakarma — Chief Financial Officer

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs. In lakhs)
Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total
Particulars Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
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Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount 88962.04 2245.67 - 91207.71
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 88962.04 2245.67 - 91207.71
Change in Indebtedness during the financial

year

* Addition - - - -
* Reduction 25.99 59.53 - 85.52
Net Change Indebtedness 25.99 59.53 - 85.52

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 88988.04 2305.20 - 91293.23
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 88988.04 2305.20 - 91293.23

V. REMUNERATION OF PROMOTER /DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors, Non-Executive Directors and/or
Manager:
(Amount in Rs. lakhs)
S Particulars of Remuneration Executive Directors Non-
N. Executive | Total
Directors | Amoun
Ashok Gulab Satish | Anil t
Kumar Chand Agrawal | Agrawal
Agrawal Agrawal

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 20.00
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 20.00
Ceiling as per the Act Within the overall limits of 10%

of net profits of the Company
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS
Remuneration of Rs. 20.00 lakhs is paid to Directors
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD (Rs.
In Lakhs):

S. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No. Remuneration

CFO CS Total

1. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 8.40 4.41 12.81
contained in Section 17 (1) of
the Income tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - - -
17 (20 Income tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - -
Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission - - -
- as % of profit - - -
5. Others, please specify - - -
Total 8.40 441 12.81

w

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/ punishments/compounding of offences for the year ending March 31, 2021.

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report -V
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021
[See Regulation 33/52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]

All figures are Rs. In Lakhs Except EPS

.| Sr. Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported before (audited figures
adjusting for after adjusting for
gualifications) qualifications)
1 Turnover / Total Income 43.22 43.22
2 Total Expenditure 955.18 1000.74
(Excluding OCl)
3 Net Profit/(Loss) (618.10) -663.66
4 Earnings Per Share (EPS) -.08 -0.09
5 Total Assets 38064.71 38064.71
6 Total Liabilities 95441.57 95487.13
7 Net Worth (57376.86) -57422.42
8 Any other financial item(s)
(as felt appropriate by the
management)
(i) Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

I' a. Details of Audit Qualification: We noticed that Company follows accrual
basis of accounting, but in the following cases it has followed cash basis of
accounting, hence loss has been reduced by Rs. 45.55 Lacs :

Sr. No. Name of Parties Amount not taken as
Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)
1 Advertising and Publicity 0.20
2 Postage and Telephone 0.02
3 Printing and stationery 0.22
4 Professional Expenses 13.39
5 Security Expenses 31.56
6 Travelling Expenses 0.17
b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion / Diselaimerof Opinien /
Adverse-Opinien
c. Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since
I I -
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d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor,
Management’s Views: As the Company is under CIRP w.e.f. 29.05.2020 and
Due to liquidity crunch during the year 20-21 we have switched our accounting
policy from Mercantile to Cash basis. Hence following expenses that are
related to the current financial year but have not been paid hence, are not
being provided in books of accounts

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:
(i) Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

(iii) Auditor’s Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

—_

ii) Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

I. | a. Details of Audit Qualification:.

b. | Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion / Disclaimerof Opinion / Adverse
Opinion

c. Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since-how
longcontinuing: Appeared for the first time.

d. | For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor,
Management’s Views:

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

() Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:
(iii) Auditor’'s Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

Il. Signatories:

CFO Anil Vishwakarma
Bhopal
30-06-2021

Auditor

Refer our Independent Auditors’ Report dated 24, June 2021 on Standalone Financial
Results of the Company

For PRAMOD K SHARMA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

CA PRAMOD SHARMA

Partner

M. No.: 076883;

FRN: 007857C
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Annexure to Directors’ Report - VI

Corporate Social Responsibility
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1. Company’s Policy on CSR — An Overview

Every organization has the right to exist in a society. With the right, there comes a duty to give back the
society a portion of what it receives from it. As a corporate citizen we receive various benefits out of
society and it is our co-extensive responsibility to pay back in return to the society. SCL believes that
creation and maximization of value to stakeholders is paramount, and it generates profit in long term.
The Company is committed to improve the quality of life of the workforce and their families as well as
of the local community and society at large. With the Companies Act, 2013 mandating the corporate to
contribute for social development and welfare, SAOL would fulfil this mandate and supplement the
government’s efforts.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Name of Committee Member Designation Category

Mr. Satish Agrawal Chairman Executive Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member Executive Director
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Member Independent Director

3. Average Net Profit
Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: not calculates as there is loss in the
immediately preceding financial year.

4. Required CSR Expenditure: Nil (due to loss)

5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
Amount spent for the financial year: Nil; Amount unspent: Rs. 190.97 Lakhs;

5. Justification for unspent money out of 2% of the average net profit of the last
three financial years.

The Companies Act, 2013 was implemented in various stages during the year 2014-2015. The
provisions with regard to CSR activity came into force on April 1, 2014. The Company in pursuance of
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 had constituted the CSR Committee and is in the process
of identifying feasible projects/ programmes wherein it can deploy the CSR expenditure amount. As
per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had to spend Rs. 190.97 Lakhs on activities
under Corporate Social Responsibility in the year ended March 31, 2019 which the company was
unable to spend.

Since the company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution process (CIRP) the power of Board of
Directors have been suspended.

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL
IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Industry structure and Development

The fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) sector is an important contributor to India’s GDP growth. The
sector includes food & dairy products, packaged food products, household products, drinks and others.
The fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) is the fourth largest sector in the Indian economy. The
growth in edible oil consumption presents an opportunity to build around a sustainable business model
to capitalise the growing business prospects. The rising income level and improvement in living
standards has led to steady increase in demand for edible oils. Your Company’s primary business is
food processing - processing of oilseeds, refining of crude edible oil for use as cooking oil,
manufacturing of soya products and other consumer products. Considering the growing population and
the food habits across India, edible oils form an essential part of the modern diet. The total
consumption of edible oil in India is estimated to be more in the coming days, out of which domestic
supply is much less due to stagnant production of edible oil seeds, leaving demand-supply gap.

India ranks sixth in the world in terms of nominal gross domestic product (“GDP”) and is the third
largest economy in the world in terms of purchasing power parity (“PPP”). India is estimated to be
among the top three global economies in terms of nominal GDP by Fiscal 2050. Since FY 2005, Indian
economy’s growth rate has been twice as that of world economy and it is expected to sustain the
growth momentum in the long term. In the wake of COVID-19, India’s normal GDP has contracted by
approximately 3% in FY2021 and is expected to bounce back and reach USS 4 Tn by FY 2025. It is also
expected that the growth trajectory of Indian economy will enable India to be among the top 3 global
economies by FY 2050

MARKET SIZE

Edible oils are indispensable to Indian cooking. The four key edible oils, palm, soybean, mustard and
sunflower constitute 85-88% of the total consumption in India in terms of volume. Palm oil is primarily
used by the food processing enterprises. It is also used in blended oils for domestic consumption. Palm
and soybean are also being used by the Hotels, Restaurants and Caterers segment. India imports most
of its palm oil consumption. Soybean oil, mustard oil and sunflower oil is largely used for domestic
consumption. The other oils include sesame oil, coconut oil, groundnut oil, rice bran oil amongst
others.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Some of the major initiatives taken by the Government of India to improve the food processing sector
in India are as follows:

Goods and Service Tax (GST)

GST, upon being implemented shall replace the multiple indirect taxes levied on FMCG sector with a uniform,
simplified and single-point taxation system. A swift move to the proposed GST may reduce prices, bolstering
consumption of FMCG products.

Page 33 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Food Security Bill

The Food Security Bill has been passed recently by the Union Cabinet. As per the bill, 5Kg of food grains per
person per month will be provided at subsidized prices by the State Governments under the targeted public
distribution system. This is expected to result in higher inflow of investments into the agriculture sector in the
coming years.

Excise Duty

Excise duty on other beverages and lemonade would be decreased to reduce retail sale price by 35%. Excise duty
on various tobacco products other than beedi would be increased, resulting in retail price of tobacco products
going up by 10-15%.

Relaxation of License Rules

Industrial license is not required for almost all food and agro-processing industries, barring
certain items such as alcoholic beverages, cane sugar, and hydrogenated & animal fats as well
as items reserved for exclusive manufacture in the small-scale sector

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The primary Business of the company is processing of Oils seeds and paddy Currently the Company is
having capacity of 2500 TPD of Solvent Extraction Plant, Soya Refinery of 225 TPD and 500 TPD of
Paddy processing Plant. SCL has adopted strategy to convert its conventional commodity and agro
based business into an FMCG Business.

STRENGTHS OF THE BUSINESS

Strong Management team:

While promoters remain closely involved, preserving the heritage and culture of the organisation, the
business is strongly steered and navigated by a highly experienced and professional management
team. In addition, its strong advisory team is also helping the organisation to drive its strategic agendas
for future growth of the Company.

Enduring relationships:

The Company is involved in the food business for more than 30 years and has built very strong sourcing
capabilities by direct procurement of agricultural produce. This has lead to significant cost economies
in procurement.

Presence in a large and fast growing segment:

R

«» The Company is amongst food producers of soya/Paddy/Wheat products in India.

«» The Group has sustained exposure in trading of food grains and pulses apart from soyabean
products, wheat products, rice, oils and other food products.

Location Advantage:

«» The company’s operations in the heartland of the soya & Paddy & wheat belt of India gives it a
major Locational advantage reducing the logistics costs substantially.

«* The plants are located in Madhya Pradesh which is a power surplus state and hence the Company
has access to cheap and uninterrupted power supply.

% The region has good access to skilled and semi skilled labour.
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Consistent Quality

By way of stringent quality assurance norms, and state of-the-art technology with a high degree of
automation, the Company ensures robust quality control. Critical tests are performed at each stage of
manufacturing. The Company’s unwavering focus on quality and innovation, backed by deep consumer
insights, world-class R&D, and an efficient and responsive supply chain, will further strengthen its
leadership position.

To achieve successful growth and profitability, the Company relies on its greatest assets - its
intellectual capital. The Company’s human resource practice revolves around LET: Learning,
Empowermssent and Togetherness. SCL values its employees and invests towards capability building
with a long-term orientation. The Company has been building its skill-sets by adding new competences
through hiring, grooming of internal talent and functional capability building. The Company’s value-
system guides its actions and behaviour in everyday business, which creates a unique culture at
Sanwaria Consumer Limited. These values are the DNA of the organisation, which are ingrained in
every member across hierarchies and geographies.

Information Technology

The Company is enhancing the use of Information Technology tools and applications in their business
processes to become more competitive, efficient and effective. Its robust IT infrastructure acts as a
growth enabler and helps achieve cost leadership, process orientation and higher productivity. Better
IT applications are helping us reach target market segments more cost effectively, track data, improve
productivity levels and maximise our returns on investment. The Company has made investments
towards various modules in line with Goods and Service tax (GST).

Research and Development

The Company’s research and development programme are central to expanding value to its products,
and to keeping aligned to new global flavour trends and technologies. The R&D team is dedicated
towards deepening the Company’s pipeline of products focused on consumers looking for health and
convenient options.

Opportunities

In the wake of COVID-19, India’s normal GDP has contracted by approximately 3% in FY2021 and is
expected to bounce back and reach USS$ 4 Tn by FY 2025. It is also expected that the growth trajectory
of Indian economy will enable India to be among the top 3 global economies by FY 2050.

Growing awareness, easier access, and changing lifestyle are the key growth drivers for the consumer
market. The focus on agriculture, MSMEs, education, healthcare, infrastructure and tax rebate under
Union Budget 2019- 20 was expected to directly impact the FMCG sector. Initiatives undertaken to
increase the disposable income in the hands of common man, especially from rural areas, will be
beneficial for the sector. (source https://www. ibef.org/archives/industry/fmcg-reports/indian-
fmcgindustry-analysis-september-2020)

Increasing presence on e-commerce platform:

It is estimated that 40% of all FMCG purchases in India will be online by 2020, thereby making it a US$
5-6 billion business opportunity. Owing to their innate desires to live independently and well, Indians
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are spending like never before on platforms like e-commerce. They are now looking for products and
services that can be bought with convenience.

RISK AND CONCERNS

As per the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Indore Bench, the Company was
under CIRP with effect from May 29, 2020.

CAUTIONARY STATEMEN

Certain statements in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section may be forward-looking and
are stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results,
which would be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future performance and
outlook. Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains forward looking statement that involve
risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, risks inherent in the Company’s growth strategy,
dependence on certain businesses, dependence on availability of qualified and trained manpower and
other factors discussed. The discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
financial statements and notes on accounts.

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sanwaria Consumer Limited (‘SCL’ or ‘the Company’) beliefs that good corporate governance is about
ensuring that companies are managed as efficiently as possible in the interests of the shareholders.
Efficient corporate governance requires a clear understanding of the respective roles of the Board and
of senior management and their relationships with others in the corporate structure. The relationships
of the Board and management shall be characterized by sincerity, their relationships with employees
shall be characterized by fairness, their relationships with the communities in which they operate shall
be characterized by good citizenship, and their relationships with government shall be characterized by
a commitment to compliance.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (“CIRP”)

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, (“NCLT”), had vide its order dated May 29,
2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”)
of Corporate Debtor in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and
regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time (“Code”). Accordingly, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Corporate Debtor
stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel, appointed as the Insolvency
Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further, the committee of
creditors (CoC) of the Corporate Debtor, pursuant to the meeting held on July 28, 2020 and in terms of
Section 22 (2) of the Code, resolved with 100% voting share, to replace the existing Interim Resolution
Professional with Mr. Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Corporate Debtor.
Accordingly, the NCLT has in its hearing dated 4™ September, 2020 through video conferencing
pronounced the approval for the appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution
Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

As per Notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/21 dated May 31, 2018, regulations 17,18,19, 20 and
21 of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, related to Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee respectively, shall not be applicable during the
insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing CIRP under the
Code provided that the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under
regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional in
accordance with sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. Hence, the status of the
Board of Directors and Committees provided in this Report is as on the date of commencement of
CIRP i.e. 29" May, 2020.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Introduction

The Board of Directors of the Company (Suspended during CIRP). The Company’s policy is to maintain
an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on March 31, 2021, the Board
consists of 6 (Six) directors, out of whom 4(Four) are Executive Directors and 2(two) are Non- Executive
Independent. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. Out of four Executive directors one
of the Expired on 29.05.2021.
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All Independent Directors of the Company adhere to the criteria defined under Regulation 16 of SEBI
Listing Regulations read with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In compliance with Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; the Directors on the Board of the
Company does not serve as Independent Directors in more than 7 (Seven) Listed Companies or in case
he/she is serving as a Whole Time Director in any Listed Company, does not hold such position in more
than 3 Listed Companies.

As mandated by Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the directors of the Company
are members of more than 10 (ten) mandatory committees and do not act as chairman of more than 5
(five) mandatory committees among all companies in which they are directors.

Appointment and Tenure

The Directors of the Company are appointed by Members at the General Meetings. The Executive
Directors on the Board serve in accordance with the terms of their contract of service with the
Company. As regards the appointment and tenure of Independent Directors, following is the policy
adopted by the Board:

®,

% The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of
Independent Directors which are consistent with the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.
< The Independent Directors will serve a maximum of two terms of five years each.

% The Company would not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directors from
the Board and their appointment and tenure will be governed as per the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Rotation of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and as per amended
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Satish Agrawal (DIN: 00256583), retiring by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment. This shall not constitute a break in
office of Mr. Satish Agrawal as Executive director in the Company.

Board Meetings

The corporate insolvency resolution process (CIRP) of the Company has been in effect from 29" May;,
2020 as per the Orders passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, Ahmadabad.
Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Board of Directors met Once during the financial year 2020-21
and thereafter, since May 29, 2020 the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended during
the CIRP period. The dates of board meetings is May 20, 2020. After that Five co-ordination meetings
was called by Resolution Professional (RP) on 07th August, 2020, 07" September,2020, 11™
November,2020, 02" December, 2020 and 02™ February 2021 which was attended by Executive
Director and Independent Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship i.e. to protect and enhance shareholder value
through strategic direction to the company. As trustee, the Board of Directors has fiduciary
responsibility to ensure that the company has clear goals aligned to shareholder value and its growth.
The Board exercises its duties with care, skill and diligence and exercises independent judgment. The
Board sets strategic goals and seeks accountability for their fulfillment. The Board also directs and
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exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfills
stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.

The normal business of the Board includes:

X3

*

framing and overseeing progress of the Company’s annual plan and operating framework;
* framing strategies for shaping of portfolio and direction of the Company and for corporate
resource allocation;
reviewing financial plans of the Company;
reviewing quarterly and annual business performance of the Company;
reviewing the Annual Report and accounts for adoption by the Members;
reviewing the progress of various functions and businesses of the Company;
reviewing the functioning of the Board and its Committees;
reviewing the functioning of the subsidiary companies;
board monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s governance practices and making changes
as needed
++ considering and approving declaration / recommendation of dividend;
% reviewing and resolving fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences, any materially
significant effluent or pollution problems or significant labour issues, if any;
< reviewing the details of significant development in human resources and industrial relations
front;
%+ reviewing details of foreign exchange exposure and steps taken by the management to limit
the risks of adverse exchange rate movement;
< reviewing compliance with all relevant legislations and regulations and litigation status as well
as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliance, including materially
important show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty notices, if any;
% reviewing Board Remuneration Policy and individual remuneration packages of Directors;
* advising on corporate restructuring such as merger, acquisition, joint venture or disposals, if
any;
* appointing Directors on the Board and Members of Management Committee;
* reviewing and approving the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company and
monitoring implementation thereof;
reviewing details of risk evaluation and internal controls;
reviewing reports on progress made on the ongoing projects;
monitoring and reviewing Board Evaluation framework.
The Board and Senior Management facilitate the Independent Directors to perform their role
effectively as a Board member and also a member of a committee.
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Board Evaluation

In terms of the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Board carried out the annual
performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, Board Committees and the Directors. During the year,
in terms of the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, Board Evaluation cycle was completed
by the Company internally which included the Evaluation of the Board as a whole, Board Committees
and Directors. The exercise was led by the Non-Executive Chairman along with a Senior Independent
Director of the Company. The Evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of the
Board and Committees such as composition of the Board and Committees, experience and
competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, governance issues etc. Separate exercise
was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors on parameters such as attendance,
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contribution and independent judgement. The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board,
Chairman of respective Committees and individual Directors.

Based on the outcome of the Evaluation, the Board and Committees have agreed on an action to
further improve the effectiveness and functioning of the Board and Committees. The Chairman of
respective Board Committees also shared the results of evaluation with the respective Committee
Members.

Attendance, Directorships and Committee Positions
The names and categories of the directors on the Board, their attendance record, the number of
directorships and committee positions as on March 31, 2021 , are noted below:

Name of the Director No. of | No. of | AGM Particulars of Committee
Board Board Attended | Other Membership/ Chairmanship
Meetings Meeting Directorshi
held during | s p Committee Committee
their attende Membership Chairmanship
tenure d

Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal 6 6 Yes 3 1 0

Mr. Satish Agrawal 6 6 Yes 2 3 1

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal 6 6 Yes 2 2

Mr. Anil Agrawal (Expired on 6 6 Yes 3 2

29.05.21

Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain 6 6 Yes 0 0 0

Mrs. Shilpi Jain 6 6 Yes 0 0 0

Notes:

i. While considering the total number of directorships; directorships of Indian public and private Limited
Company other than Sanwaria Consumer Limited have not been taken into account.

ii. In terms Listing Regulations, it is hereby disclosed that Mr. Anil Agrawal, Mr. Satish Agrawal, Mr. Gulab
Chand Agrawal and Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal are brothers. Except for the above mentioned relationship, there is
no other inter-se relationship amongst other directors.

Shareholding of Directors

Name No. of Shares held % of Total Equity
Gulab Chand Agrawal 24000 0.003
Satish Agrawal 24000 0.003
Anil Agrawal 57999334 7.879
Ashok Agrawal 0 0.00

Separate Meetings of the Independent Directors

During the reporting Financial Year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company
was held on February 12, 2021, at the Registered Office of the Company at Office Hall No. 01, First
Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market, Bhopal -462016, Madhya Pradesh, where the following items as
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enumerated under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations were discussed:

% Review of Performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole.

«»» Review of Performance of the Chairman of the Company after taking into consideration the views of
Executive and Non- Executive Directors.

¢ Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, All Independent
directors are familiarized about the company, through various programmes from time to time,
including the following:

7
’0

)

nature of the industry in which the company operates;
business model of the company;

roles, rights, responsibilities of independent directors; and
any other relevant information

X3

*

X3

%

X3

*

Role of Independent Directors

Independent Directors have emerged as the cornerstones of the worldwide Corporate Governance
movement. Their increased presence in the boardroom has been hailed as an effective deterrent to
fraud and mismanagement, inefficient use of resources, inequality and unaccountability of decisions
and as a harbinger for striking the right balance between individual, economic and social interests.

Independent Directors play a key role in the decision-making process of the Board. The Independent
Directors are committed to act in what they believe to be in the best interest of the Company and its
Shareholders. Their wide knowledge in their respective fields of expertise and best-in-class boardroom
practices helps foster varied, unbiased, independent and experienced perspective.

3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been
constituted to deal with specific areas /activities which concern the Company and need a closer review.
The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined
roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance
practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees. The Chairman of
the respective Committees informs the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the
Committee Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for
review. The Board Committees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate. The
Board has currently the following statutory and non-statutory Committees.

I. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board has been constituted as per the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Composition
As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee of SCL comprises of following Members:
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Name Designation Category

Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman Non-Executive Independent director

Mr. Anil Agrawal (Expired on 29.05.21} | Member Non-Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member Executive Non-Independent director

Mes. Shilpi Jain Member Non-Executive Independent director

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor attend the meeting of the Committee on invitation of
Chairman.

Terms of Reference
The roles, powers and functions of the Audit Committee of SCL are in accordance with the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 18 and Part-C of Schedule Il of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process and, inter alia, performs the
following functions:

%+ Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to

ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

% Reviewing and examining with management the quarterly financial results before submission to the

Board;

«*» Reviewing and examining with management the annual financial statements before submission to

the Board and the auditors’ report thereon.

< Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, if any, made by the Company;

% Reviewing with management the annual financial statements as well as investments made by the

unlisted subsidiary companies;

«*» Reviewing, approving or subsequently modifying any Related Party Transactions in accordance with

the Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company;

< Approving the appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience

and background, etc. of the candidate;

«» Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory Auditors of

the Company and approval for payment of any other services;

% Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit

process;

% Reviewing management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory

Auditors;

¢ Discussing with Statutory Auditors, before the commencement of audit, on the nature and scope of

audit as well as having post-audit discussion to ascertain area of concern, if any;

% Reviewing with management, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor, the adequacy of internal

control systems;

«» Review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

«» Recommending appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Internal Auditor of the
Company;

* Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function and discussing with Internal Auditor any

significant finding and reviewing the progress of corrective actions on such issues;

Evaluating internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Valuating undertaking or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blowing mechanism;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee ensures that it has reviewed each area that it is required to review under its
terms of reference and under applicable legislation or by way of good practice. This periodic review
ensures that all areas within the scope of the Committee are reviewed.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Audit Committee met five times on 07.08.2020, 07.09.2020,
11.11.2020, 16.11.2020 and 02.02.2021. The gap between any two Audit Committee meetings did not
exceed four months. The attendance of the members for the year ended March 31, 2021 is noted
below:

Name of the Member Chairman/Member |Meetings held | Meetings
attended
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman 5 5
Mr. Anil Agrawal (Expired on 29.05.21 Member 5 5
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member 5 5
Ms. Shilpi Jain Member 5 5

Il. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted as per the requirements of Section
178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015

Composition

The composition of Company’s Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in compliance with Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 comprising of
two Executive non-Independent Director including the Independent Chairman. As on March 31, 2021,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL comprises of following members in its
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

Name Designation Category

Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman Non-Executive Independent director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member Executive non-Independent director
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member Executive non-Independent director

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference and the ambit of powers of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as per
Regulation 20 and Part-D of Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and allied rules as may be notified from time to time.

The broad terms of reference of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee includes the following:

+» Redressal of grievances of shareholders, debenture-holders, deposit-holders and any other
security holders including but not limiting to transfer of shares and issue of duplicate share
certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of
Annual Reports; and any other related grievances;
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R

< Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialisation, rematerialisation, splitting and
consolidation of shares issued by the Company;

+» Evaluate performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company;

¢+ Provide guidance and make recommendations to improve investor service levels for the
investors.

«» And such other acts, deeds, matters and things as may be stipulated in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and / or such other
regulatory provisions as also as the Board of Directors may consider think fit for effective and

efficient redressal of grievances of the security holders of the Company.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee met once on 29.05.2020
to consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders and other related matters .The attendance of
the members for the year ended March 31, 2021 is noted below:

Name of the member Chairman/ No. of meetings No. of
Member held during their | meetings
tenure attended
Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman 1 1
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member 1 1
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member 1 1

Investors Grievance Redressal

Pursuant to the Regulation 13 of SEBI Listing Regulations, SCL has duly filed with the recognized stock
exchange(s) on a quarterly basis, a statement giving the number of investor complaints pending at the
beginning of the quarter, those received during the quarter, disposed off during the quarter and those
remaining unresolved at the end of the quarter.

The Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In House RTA) attend all grievances of the Shareholders and Investors
received directly through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies,
etc. The Company maintains continuous interaction with the RTA and takes proactive steps and actions
for resolving complaints/queries of the shareholder’s/ Investors and also takes initiatives for solving
critical issues. Shareholders are requested to furnish their telephone numbers and / or e-mail
addresses to facilitate prompt action.

Separate email-id for the Redressal of Investors Complaints
As per the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company has designated a separate email
compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com for the redressal of investor’s complaints.

Ill. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has been constituted as per the
requirements of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the Regulation 19 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Composition
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According to Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee should comprise of at least three directors; all of whom should be Non-Executive Directors.
At least half of the Committee members should be Independent with an Independent Director acting
as the Chairman of the Committee. Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises
of three Non-Executive Independent Director including the Chairman. As on March 31, 2020, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL comprises of following 3 (three) Members, all three
are Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Name Designatio Category
n
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman Non-Executive Independent director
Mr. Anil Agrawal Member Non-Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal Member Executive Non-Independent director

The purpose of the committee is to screen and to review individuals qualified to serve as executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent directors, consistent with criteria approved by the
Board.

Terms of Reference

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL covers such functions and scope as
prescribed under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with allied Rules framed there under
and Regulation 19 and Part-D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL includes the following:

% Determine/ recommend the criteria for appointment of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors to the Board;

®,

< Determine/ recommend the criteria for qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Director;

7

< Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in the
Management Committee and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

®,

% Review and determine all elements of remuneration package of all the Executive Directors, i.e.
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc;

7

< Review and determine fixed component and performance linked incentives for Directors, along
with the performance criteria;

< Determine policy on service contracts, notice period, severance fees for Directors and Senior
Management;

< Formulate criteria and carry out evaluation of each Director’s performance and performance of
the Board as a whole;

< To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

*

% To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once on
30.06.2020. The attendance of the members for the year ending March 31, 2021 is noted below:

Page 45 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Name of the Member Chairman/Me No. of meetings | No. of meetings
mber held during their | attended
tenure
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman 1 1
Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal Member 1 1
Mr. Anil Agrawal (Expired on Member 1 1
29.05.21

Remuneration of Directors

During the vyear; no remuneration/sitting fees was given to any executive and non
executive/independent directors.

Mechanism for evaluating Board members

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible for selection of a member on the Board. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows defined criteria for identifying,
screening, recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a Director on the Board. The criteria
for appointment to the Board include:

7

< Composition of the Board, which is commensurate with the size of the Company, its portfolio,
geographical spread and its status as a listed Company;

« Desired age and diversity on the Board;

< Size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and experience and balance of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors consistent with the requirements of law;

% Professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific area of business;

Balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company;
Avoidance of any present or potential conflict of interest;

Availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties;

< Personal characteristics being in line with the Company’s values, such as integrity, honesty,
transparency, pioneering mindset.

*,

3

A
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Ill

The Company adopted a differential “Nomination and Remuneration Policy” to set the common
guidelines for the working of the Committee. The Broad framework of the Policy is laid down for the
Members’ reference:

I. Introduction

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board
of Directors of every listed Company shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The Company already constituted Remuneration Committee comprising of three non-executive
Independent Directors as required under Listing Agreement. In order to align with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the amended Listing Agreement from time to time, the Board changed the
nomenclature of the “Remuneration Committee” as “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” and
reconstituted the Committee with three non-executive Independent Directors. The chairman of the
Committee is an Independent Director

This Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

1. Objectives
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The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors, KMP,
senior management personnel and other employees. The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

7

% To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

+* Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and Recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

+* Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

+* To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

% To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

% To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

R/

+ To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

+»+ To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

+»+ To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

% To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate

governance.

lll. Applicability

Directors (Executive and Non-Executive);
Key Managerial Personnel;

Senior Management Personnel

R/
0.0

3

A

0.0

IV. Definitions

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to
me.
“Company” means “Sanwaria Consumer Limited.”
“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:

7
0.0

=

3

A

7
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= Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-
time Director;

= Chief Financial Officer;

= Company Secretary; and such other officer as may be prescribed.

% “Senior Management” means Senior Management means the personnel of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined
herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have
the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

* “Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

» “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or employees of a
company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such
directors, officers or employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of
the company at a future date at a pre-determined price.

*0

*.
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< “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

V. Constitution of Committees

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the committee to be known as the
Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee consisting of three non-executive
Independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. There shall be
minimum two members required to constitute Quorum.

However, the chairperson of the company (whether executive or nonexecutive) may be appointed
as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee.
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such intervals as may be required. The matters
arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by the majority of votes of
Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of
the Committee and in case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting
vote.

VI. Appointment and Removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Appointment Criteria and Qualifications

R/

+ The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and

experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and

recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

+»+ A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he /
she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
position.

< The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time

Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this

position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by

passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion

indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

Term / Tenure

X Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or
Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made

earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

7

o Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5
years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years
of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.
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At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Evaluation
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules
and regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

VII. Remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

7

o Remuneration to Managing/ Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director /Managing Director etc.
shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any
other enactment for the time being in force.

< Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation /commission
as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/
limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment
for the time being in force.

VIII. Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

®,

% Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of
Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

«+ Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

% Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;
< Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

< Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing
the plan;

% Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of
the Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

*

% Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in
office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive
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Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

< Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
< Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

< Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

IX. Duties in Relation to Remuneration matters

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:
< Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also
bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate
members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements
of the remuneration of the members of the Board.

«  Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of
the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company.

®,

< Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

< Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

X. Review and Amendment

7

< The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

< The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement and better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

%+ This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required and
also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the change in the

policy.

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted as per the requirements of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition

According to Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014; the Company is required to have a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of the Board consisting of three or more directors, out of which at least one director should
be an Independent Director.

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of three Directors including the
Chairman. As on March 31, 2021, the Committee is headed by Mr. Satish Agrawal and has Mr. Ashok
Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain as its members.

Name Designation Category

Mr. Satish Agrawal Chairman Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Member Non-Executive Independent director

Terms of Reference
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The broad terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the company includes
the following:

< Formulating and recommending to the Board the CSR Policy and activities to be undertaken by
the Company;

< Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities of the Company;

%  Reviewing the performance of Company in the area of CSR;

% Providing external and independent oversight and guidance on the environmental and social
m

L)

impact of how the Company conducts its business;

< Monitoring CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

< Monitoring the implementation of the CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the
Company.

*

% Prepare Transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects,
programmes, activities proposed to be undertaken by the SCL.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee cannot meet due
various reasons.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - MONITORING FRAMEWORK

SCL does not have any material subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. Material Subsidiary means a Subsidiary Company whose income or net worth (i.e. paid-up
capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the
listed holding Company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. The
Company’s Audit Committee reviews the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as well as
the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries, including the investments made by the subsidiaries. The
minutes of the Board Meetings, along with a report of the significant transactions and arrangements of
the unlisted subsidiaries of the Company are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Company has formulated a policy for determining its Material Subsidiaries.

DISCLOSURES

i.) Subsidiary Companies: The requirements with respect to subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 24 of
the Listing Regulations have been complied with. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company has approved the ‘Policy on Material Subsidiary.’

ii.) Disclosure of Related Party Transactions — Related party transactions as required by the Accounting
Standard AS-18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) disclosed in Notes to the Annual Accounts. Members may refer to the notes to accounts for
details of Related Party Transactions. However these are not having potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large.

The Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party
Transactions, in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

iii.) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by
the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years - some penalties, or stricture was imposed by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI
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or any other authority, during the last 3 (three) years, since all applicable requirements were not fully
complied with.

iii.)Accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements -The guidelines/ accounting
standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed in preparation of the financial statements
of the Company in all material respects.

iv.) Corporate Social Responsibility: The detailed Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility has
been disclosed as an annexure appended to the Directors’ Report.

v.) Code of Conduct

Your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for all the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company. All Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019. A declaration signed by the Chairman to this effect forms part of the Annual Report.

vi.) Risk management -The risk assessment and minimization procedures are in place and the Audit
Committee of the Board is regularly informed about the business risks and the steps taken to mitigate
the same. The Board of Directors, though not mandatorily required, has constituted a Risk
Management Committee and also approved Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions
of Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.

vii.) Management Discussion and Analysis Report - The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
on the operations and financial position of the Company has been provided in a separate section which
forms part of this Annual Report.

viii.) Profile of directors seeking appointment / re-appointment -Profile of the directors seeking
appointment / re-appointment as required to be given in terms of Listing Regulations, 2015 forms part
of the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

ix.) Certification from CEO/CFO -The requisite certification from the Chief Financial Officer for the
financial year 2020-21 as required in terms of the Listing Regulation was placed before the Board of
Directors of the Company at its meeting held on June 30, 2021 and taken in records

x.) Payment of fees to stock exchanges / depositories -The Company has not paid listing fees to the
stock exchanges and annual custodial fees to the depositories for the financial year 2019-20 and 2020-
21 in terms of Listing Regulations, 2015.

xi.) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 - A
certificate from the statutory auditors of the Company to this effect has been included in this report.

xii.) Whistle Blower Policy — In terms of Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a whistle blower policy. The employees, vendors and customers
are free to express their concerns through e-mail, telephone, fax or any other method to the persons
as mentioned in the policy.

xiii.) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit -The 'Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit' was undertaken
on a quarterly basis and the audit covers the reconciliation of the total admitted capital with NSDL and
CDSL and the total issued and listed capital.
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The audit has also confirmed that the aggregate of the total issued/ paid-up-capital is in agreement
with the total number of shares in physical form, shares allotted & advised for demat credit but
pending execution and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

xiv.) Means of Communication -
a) Quarterly / Annual Results -The quarterly / annual results as required under the Listing
Agreement are normally published in the ‘The Financial Express’ and also sent immediately to all
the Stock Exchanges on which the Company is listed i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.
b) Posting of information on the website of the Company: The annual / quarterly results of the
Company, Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Directors’ Report, Cash Flow Statements,
Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Shareholding Pattern,
the official news releases, notifications to the stock exchanges, the presentations made by the
Company to analysts and institutional investors, etc. are regularly posted on the website of the
Company www.sanwariaconsumer.com.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

General Body Meetings

Details of General Meetings held in last three Financial Year of the Company

+ Financial Year: 2017-18

Type of General Meeting: 27" Annual General Meeting
Venue: E-1/1, Arera Colony, Bhopal- 462016
Day, date and venue: Saturday, September 29, 2018 at 9.00 AM

Special Resolutions:

e To confirm the appointment of Ms. Shivani Jhariya as women Independent Director.

o To ratify remuneration of Cost Auditor for the FY 2018-19.

To ratify the non-payment of managerial remuneration to the Whole time Directors.

To ratify the non-payment of remuneration/ sitting fees to Non-Executive/ Independent Directors.
e To issue securities through Qualified Institutional Placement (QIP) on a private placement basis to
Qualified Institutional Buyers (QIBS) to the extent of upto Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Five hundred Crores
only)

*» Financial Year: 2018-19

Type of General Meeting: 28" Annual General Meeting
Venue: Motel Siraz, M.P. Nagar Bhopal - 462016
Day, date and venue: Thursday December 26, 2019 at 10:00 AM

+** Financial Year: 2019-20
Type of General Meeting: 29" Annual General Meeting
Venue: Office Hall No.1, First Floor,Arera Colony, Bhopal- 4620164
Day, date and venue: Friday, December 25, 2020 at 10.00 AM

Page 53 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Financial Reporting

The Company follows April-March as the financial year. The meetings of Board of Directors for approval
of quarterly financial results during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 were held on the
following dates:

First Quarter Unaudited Results September 07, 2020
November 11, 2020
February 02, 2021

June 30, 2021

Second Quarter and Half yearly Unaudited Results

Third Quarter Unaudited Results

Fourth Quarter and Audited Annual Results

Tentative Calendar for financial year ending 31st March, 2022
The tentative dates of meeting of Board of Directors for consideration of quarterly financial results for
the financial year ending 31st March, 2022 are as follows:

First Quarter Results within 45 days from the close of quarter or such extended
time as permitted by the Regulator
within 45 days from the close of quarter or such extended
time as permitted by the Regulator
within 45 days from the close of quarter or such extended
time as permitted by the Regulator
within 60 days from the close of quarter
In accordance with Section 96 of Companies Act, 2013.

Second Quarter and Half yearly Results

Third Quarter Results

Fourth Quarter and Annual Results
Annual General Meeting for FY 2021-
2022

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2021

i . hare A t (In Rs.
Share _I-Ioldlng of No. of 9% of Share Amount (In Rs.) Total % of
S.No. | Nominal Value Share .
Total Holders Share Amount Equity
(Rs.) Holders )
Physical NSDL CDSL

1| UPTO 5000 79550 83.037 88793 | 34580188 | 49641984 84310965 11.454
2| 5000 - 10000 6899 7.202 40200 | 23035884 | 30080030 53156114 7.221
3| 10000 - 20000 4385 4,577 24000 | 28165859 | 36329919 64519778 8.765
4| 20000 - 30000 1687 1.761 49786 | 18512217 | 23965243 42527246 5.777
5| 30000 - 40000 821 0.857 0| 12929171 | 16169424 29098595 3.953
6| 40000 - 50000 575 0.600 0| 11827946 | 14914833 26742779 3.633
7| 50000 - 100000 1093 1.141 0 | 34395686 | 44135055 78530741 10.668

100000 AND
8| ABOVE 790 0.825 | 26172000 | 173163507 | 157878275 357213782 48.528

Grand-Total 95800 100.000 | 26374779 | 336610458 | 373114763 736100000 | 100.000

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2021
Category Of Shareholders | No. of Folios Number Of Shares %
Banks 2 4862 0.001
Clearing Members 64 12602991 1.712
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Director and their Relatives 13 123143391 16.729
HUF 547 3689904 0.501
Body Corporate 171 55750846 7.574
Non Resident Indians 1067 29357224 3.988
Resident Individuals 93935 511550632 69.495
Trusts 1 150 0.000
Total 95800 736100000 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 31 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the equity shares of the
Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading under National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The
International Security lIdentification Number (ISIN) of the Company under Depository System is
INE890C01046.The Annual Custodial Fees for the Financial Year 2020-2021 has not been paid to both
the depositories.

For guidance on depository services, shareholders may write to the Company or to the respective
depositories:

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
Trade World, 4th Floor Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Kamala Mills Compound 28th Floor, Dalal Street

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel Mumbai - 400 023

Mumbai—400 013 Telephone: (022) 22723333

Telephone: (022) 24994200 Facsmile: (022) 22723199

Facsmile: (022) 24972933 E-mail: info@cdslindia.com

E-mail: investor@nsdl.co.in Website: www.cdslindia.com

Website: www.nsdl.co.in

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments till March 31, 2021
till date of this report

Mergers and Demergers
Your Company has not made any mergers and demergers during the year 2020-2021.

Plant Locations:

Plant Division Address

Soya Oil Division | Unit-1 & Unit-11,53 A, 53 B, Sec-A, Industrial Area- Mandideep (M.P.)
Soya Qil Division Il 19-30, Industrial Area, Kheda, Itarsi (M.P.)

Soya Oil Division Il Kosmi Industrial Area, Betul (M.P.)

Soya Flour Division Unit —I, 53A, 53B, Sec-A, Industrial Area, Mandideep (M.P.)

Soya Chunks (Soya Bari) Division Unit —I, 53A, 53B, Sec-A, Industrial Area, Mandideep (M.P.)

Rice Division | Plot No. 55, Sec- A, Industrial Area- Mandideep (M.P.)

Rice Division Il Vill. Kiratpur, Teh. Itarsi Distt. Hoshangabad
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Listing Details

Securities Name and Address of the Stock Exchanges on which listed Stock Codes
Equity National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), SANWARIA
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai -400 051
BSE Limited 519260
Floor 25,P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 051
ISIN INES890C01046

The listing fee for the financial year 2020-21 has not been paid to the above Stock Exchange

Corporate Identification Number: L15143MP1991PLC006395

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:
Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In House)

Office Hall No. 1, 1° Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market, Bhopal M.P. - 462016.
Telephone: +91-755-4294878

Fax: +91-755-4295038

Email-id: rta@sanwariaconsumer.com

Market Price Data:
Monthly high and low prices of the Company’s equity shares at BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of

India Limited during the financial year 2020-2021 at BSE and NSE are noted below:

Stock BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchang
e
Month High(Rs.) | Low (Rs.) No.of Turnover High(Rs.) | Low (Rs.) No. of Turnover (Rs.)
Shares (Rs.) Shares
Traded Traded
Apr-20 2.32 1.04 | 7799450 | 15050590 1.95 1.05 4688000 6582000
May-20 4.09 2.36 | 21364463 | 64874947 3.15 2.00 13933000 37384000
Jun-20 4.01 2.34 | 30707508 | 97950511 3.80 2.35 33806000 94817000
Jul-20 4.15 2.3 | 12770016 | 36768410 3.95 2.25 26067000 75038000
Aug-20 2.6 2.07 | 15191228 | 35055079 2.65 2.10 34137000 79012000
Sep-20 2.29 1.47 | 15449374 | 28756245 2.25 1.50 20698000 40429000
Oct-20 1.83 1.34 | 9561971 | 14707773 1.45 1.30 8362313 12900234
Nov-20 1.52 1.27 | 10877151 | 15056228 1.50 1.30 10455934 14371977
Dec-20 1.72 1.25 | 29012507 | 42015809 1.65 1.25 31382005 44517528
Jan-21 1.5 1| 51974745 | 62068980 1.45 0.95 83810354 96380954
Feb-21 1.11 0.7 | 42517854 | 37232608 1.10 0.65 | 114425637 96084053
Mar-21 0.9 0.57 | 35470180 | 25089059 0.95 0.55 88671815 63948297
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Share Transfer System

The share transfer requests received in physical form are registered within the statutory time limit. The
requests for dematerialization (demat) received from the Shareholders are affected within statutory
time limit. The Shareholders/Investor Grievance Committee takes care of the fact that all the transfers
are processed within the Statutory Time Limit. The applications for transfer, transmission and
transposition of shares are received by the Company at its registered Office or at the Office of its
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

All communications regarding change of address (if the shares are held in physical form), transfer of
shares and change of mandate (if the shares are held in physical form) can be addressed to Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (In House RTA), Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Registered Office and Address for Correspondence

Office Hall No. 1, 1* Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016;
Tel.:0755-4294878;

Fax: 0755-4295038

Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com;

Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLAINCE WITH THE CODE OF
CONDUCT

To,

The Management

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Office Hall No. 1, 1** Floor, Metro Walk,
Bittan Market, Bhopal- 462016 (M.P.)

Sanwaria Consumer Limited, the Company has laid down a code of conduct for all the Board Members
and Senior Management of the Company. The Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management personnel for
the financial year 2020-2021.

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

[Issue in accordance with provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

Dear Sir,

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that:

a. | have reviewed financial statement and the cash flow statement of Sanwaria Consumer
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

b. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s
code of conduct.

¢. | accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that | have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and | have disclosed to the auditors,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which | am
aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d. | bhave indicated to the auditors
i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

ii. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant
role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Yours faithfully
For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Date: 30.06.2021
Anil Vishwakarma
Place: Bhopal (Chief Financial Officer)
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY PRACTICING CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

[As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(E) of The SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To THE MEMBERS OF SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (the ‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Qualified opinion

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
(financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its Loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion

e) The Company has shown all expenses and Income on the accrual basis which were
related to current financial year as it was shown in the policy of company that the
Company follows accrual basis of accounting, but in the following cases it has followed
cash basis of accounting, hence loss has been reduced by Rs. 45.55 Lacs :

Sr. No. Particulars Amount
1 Advertising and Publicity 19,929.00
2 Postage and Telephone 1,898.00
3 Printing and stationery 22,176.00
4 Professional Expenses 13,38,527.00
5 Security Expenses 31,55,792.04
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| 6 |  Traveling Expenses | 17,300.00 |

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

i. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

ii. One creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal unadikat, sole proprietor of M\s Shakti Clearing
Agency has filed company petition under section 9 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 read with the rule 6 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Rules, 2016 to
initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution process against the Company before the NCLT
and the said application has been admitted by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP (IB) No. 7
/ 9/ NCLT / AHM / 2019 at 29th of May 2020 and NCLT has appointed Mr. Rajiv Goyal
as Insolvency Resolution Professional (IRP). The CoC approved the replacement of IRP
with 100% voting and IA No. 111 of 2020 is allowed as prayed by the Applicant. With
the Order of National Law Company tribunal (NCLT), no. (MP) CP (IB) 7 of 2019 with IA
111 of 2020, Dated 04 September 2020, and The Court give order to Mr. Rajiv Goyal,
IRP to handed over the documents/papers & give charge to Mr. Gautam Mittal, as
Resolution Professional.

iii. RP had invited expression of interest from interested parties for revival of the
Company. Five eligible EOl's were received after-which Resolution Plans were invited.
The Resolution Plans received from these PRAs were discussed and put on vote before
the COC for approval. None of the Resolution Plans were approved by the members of
the COC. While rejecting the Resolution Plans, the COC further decided to Liquidate the
Company for the initiation of Liquidation Process of the Company has been filed with
hon'ble NCLT.

Information other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report thereon

iv.The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
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include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
standalone financial statements

v. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” of the state of
affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

vi. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

vii. Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

viii. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
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X.

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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xi. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

xii. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

xiii. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

xiv. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xv. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the ‘Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

xvi. Further to our comments in Annexure B, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we

report that:

9. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

10. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

11. the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account;

12.in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act;
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13. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

14. we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of
the Company as on 31* March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report as
per Annexure C expressed an unmodified opinion;

15. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

-the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in the standalone financial statements;

-the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

-there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March

2021;
Date: 24/06/2021 For PRAMOD K SHARMA & CO.
Place: Bhopal Chartered Accountants
CA PRAMOD SHARMA
Partner

M. No.: 076883; FRN: 007857C
UDIN: 21076883AAAAQE5923
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SANWARLA COMEUMER LIMITED (FOrmerty KNawn as Samwarla Agro Obs Limied)
Sigrificant accounting policies and notes 1o the acoounts

For Ninanclal year ended 31 March 2021

{Rupses In IMA , uniess ofherwiss staled)

1 Corporale information
Sarmearia Consumer Limiled. [the compary] [Formerty known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited) 15 @ pubic comparry incorpamisd in india
having iis Aegistered and Corporale office at Office Hal Mo. 1 Firs! Floor, Meiro Waik, Eittan maket Bhopai - 452048, The company is
engaged in the manulachsing and trading ol Soya. Rice Bran and Sair products. De-oiled Cake, Crude/relined Edie Of. Mamstacturing of
Basmall Fice, and Oiher Foods Grains and Food Producis and Retailing of various Products. The Equiy shanes of the company are isied
on The Bombary stock exchange (BSE) and habonal Esock Exchange (NSE).

(=] ¥ A 1 Process (CIAFT) has been infiaded incase of tha Company vide an ceder daled 75 05.2020 of Hon'able

Mational Compary Law Tribunal (MCLT"), indone Bench under ths Provisions of he insoheency and Banknupicy Cods, 2046 {ihe Code).
PLFSUaN | The DVGEr. I managament of aiairs al e Compay and powers Of Doand of diecion of Ihe Company vesisd win M. Aajeey

Gl [Insobrenoy Pre Faving no, 1BBEYFA-DO1TP-PO0DE22017-18/1 0807} who = appoinied a5 the isrkn Resoluiion
Professional [1RF) in accomanos with Section 18 of The inscivency Barkruplcy Code, 2018 [“Code”™) Furfher, as per the order, dated
05, 2030 passed by abowe = Bench, Mr. Mittal [P Regn Mo, IBEITPA-DD/IPSPO 1332016151 2038) was appainied

a5 Fssoution Professional (AP7) repiacing Te IRF. Mr. Aajeey Goel in the mafler of Sanwara Cansumer Limiled. Theee fnancal
BRSEments Rave heesn prepansd by the management of Mo CoMmpany and certimied by Mr. AM Vismaukama, Chiel Financal Omoer and
M. Shilpa Agarwnl. Company Secretary, and appeoved by Aesciution Professional Mr. Gautam Miltsl [iF Rsgn No. EBEVPA-DIP-
FO1331201 8- 15 1209E]

2 Significand Accounting Policles.
21  Baals of PreparaBion
Thess Srancis stxismenis have been prepansd o comply in ol material aspects wilth indlan Accewniing Standards ("ind AST) nobfied
under the Gompanies [indian Acoounting Slandards) Rukss, 2013 and Companies (indian Accoureing Slandards) Amenament Aulss, 2018
natified under Saclion 133 ol the Companies Act. 20113 {Tihe Act’) and o@er redevani provisions of The Aot.

Company's frandai fis are p 1 in Indlan Rupses [} which is also ik lunclional currency.
The finarcis slafements are prepaned on a hislorcal cost basis. socepd foe oeran fnancial assets and fabiEies that are measured ol tar
LEUE g

an periy, Fland and Equip

Froperty. piant and squipment are siatsd af oginal cost net of fawouty credil avallad, less accumuiated cepreciafion and aocumuisted
imparmen| losses; T any. When significant parts ol peoperty, plari and equipment are requied io be replaced al indervais. e Company de-
recogrizes the replaced parl, and recognises ihe new par Wit fs oen associaled usehul B and 1 s deprecialed accordngey. Al repair and
L 10= Cosis are recog In e stal=mand of profil and loss as noured

Property, plant and squipret ane efiminated fram financial statements. either on disposal or when refred nom actie use. Losses ansing

in fhe case of reSrement of property, pland and squipmesnt and gains o Iosses anging fnom disposal of propesdy, plant and squipment are
recognised in the stassment of proSt and 10ss in the year of ooourrence.

Depreciation on assels has besn provided on a siright ine basis ol the usstul ives specfisd in the Scheduls || of the Compandes Acl.
2013. Depreciation on addtions’ ceduciions is calcuiaisd peo-rata homd' o 1he penod of addiions’ ceduciions.

The assets’ residual values. useful Ives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at sach Ersancial year snd and adusted prospectvely, 1
BppOpriate. Cusnenity the FESIIUD e 1S COnSideaned 05 506 0f e WAL Of Propesty plant and squipment.

Z3  impalrment of Hon-Finanolal Assels - Froperly . Fianl and Equipment
The Compary assesses a1 sach repoding dabs as io wheder Iheve io any indication fat any propery, plant and squipmentand imangibls

assets or group ol sssets. colisd cash generaling units {CGL) may be mp it vy mich exisis fie recoverable amount of an

ssed or CGU o estimaled o defanmine fs exteml of impakmenl, © any. Whean il is nol possibie o estmals the recoverabls amount of an
azset. the Company fthe recoverable asnount of the CGLU 1o which the assed belongs.

A imp loss Is recog in tha Stale ol Profit and Loss o She sident. assefs carmying amoonl sscesds s recoverabis

amourd. The Tecovambie amow is higner of an assat's falr valos iess cosl of disposai and valoe in use. Value in we |5 based on the
esfmaied fubwre cash Hows, discournied 1o their present vailkue using pre-tax discour rabs that refects cument marke? assessments. of the
tirme= value of money and risk specific io the e

The impainmen| loss racognissd in prior accounting pariod is revarssd § these has been a change In e eslimate of recoverables amount
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{Rupses In IMA , uniess ofherwiss staled)

24  Filnanpe Cost
Bornoaang cosls includs sxchange difierences ansing from boreign carrency borrowangs b the =dent they are regarded os an adpusimend io
the interest cosl. Borowing gosis Tat ane drectty alirbulable io the acquisiion o consincfion of qualifying assels are capilafissd ag part
of Ihe o=t Of GLCH assetn A Quallying Essel 15 one thal necessary 1akes sutstantial period of Bme I get rmady for in inkended e,

inferest income sarned on the lemporary invesament of specific bormowings perding thelr expendtiure on qualliing assets s deducied inom
e bosmovning cosis efighis for capialisasaon.

Al Oitser DOTOWING CoSts aFe chamesd 10 e StRemenl of ProSt and Lass Sor the pEiod &ar witcn they ane incumed.

253  Inventories
Imeeniories ans valued ax undes =
L. Raw malenal. Stores & Spares are valued al lower of cosl jon FIFOD basis) or nel reaiisabis value wivchever s iower.
IL Wiork In Process at oot including relabed overheacs.
i Finshed Goods & Stock In Trade are valued i cost or ssSmadied reaisabie vaie whichever i lower. Cosl comprises malerial, labowor
and appilcable pverhead expensen

Cosi of Invertones comprises of 0os? of puechase, cosl of corversion and oiher costs nciuding manulachring gverneacs in bnnging hem
ta their respeciies presenl location and condmon.

24  Foreign Exchangs Transactions
The Company’s has nol made any Foreing Exchangs Transallon during the year
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27 Revenus Recognilion

Bale of Gooda

Blevenus ¥om saie of poods s recognsed when ihe signilicam fisks and rewarss of ownemship have been tmnzlered 1o he boyer,
recovery of the considerafion ks probable. ©e associyled cost can be estimated refably, ihere B no continuing efsciive comntnd or
managerial imvolrsmend with e goods. and the amouwrd of revenss can be massued reflabiy

interest Income
frierest s reongrizen an a Bme proportion faking into accour the amount outstanding and rale appiicabis

Other Income
Cinar mcome s recogrised when oght (o recsive is estabinhed.

28  Empioyes Benefits
{1} ‘Short Term Employes Benelits
All srpigyes benstns taling due wholty within tweive: months of rendening the service ane clssifisd o5 shor i2m smplojee benstis. The
Denenls e SAANES, Waes, Shoft 30T COmpansaleg AiSences S0, and ihe EXpECied Cast Of DONUS, ex-gralia are FECOCRIZnd i e period
In which the empioyse rengers the mizted serdce.

{ll} Post-Employment Benefits
] Defined Confribulion Plans: The chigalion o employes's prowdent fund i o defined confribution pian. The coinbution pakd/payabie
is recognized in Se period i which e employess renders the reisied service. The compary hac defined condribubion plans where the
company pays pre-defined amounts and ooes nal have any legal or comstucive chilgasion io pay addiional sums for post-employment
benefls.

b} Defined Benefil Plans: The chilgation Iowards graluty |s a defined benelil plan

The pressnt value of the obiigafion under such Defined Benelll Plans is dslermined based on aclhuanal valualion using the Propscisd Unil
Credit Method. which recognizes sach period of service as ghving rise io addBonal urit of emmpioyes denalll enftiermen and measures sach
unit separalely 1o buld up the final chiigation a3 per IND- AS 18, Le_ "Employse Bensiis"

The chigation is measwred A the present vaiss of the estimaied fuure cash fows. The discourd mies used for defesmmining e presan
vl of 1he obilgalion under defined benell plans. Is besed on fie maed yisids on Gowermmen] ssoarflies a5 ab the Balance shee? daie,
having Y periods appn g I Ihe 1evms of Tefated chigations.

Fiemeasuements. comprising af aciuarial pains and losces. the sflect of e ascel osfing. exchiding amounis ncodsd 0 nel imderest on
the ret Sefined benefl Bability and he resum on plan assets [saxiuding amowrts inciuded in et intereat on the net defined bere® labilty),
are recognised immedialedy in the bafanos sheet with @ coresponding debil or credit fo rslained samings Finough ofer comprehensive
Incomes in 1he penod in which they oo ¥ ¥ are not %0 the stalemant of profil and kosa in subsequent penods.

29  Agcouniing far Taees on inoome
Diue b s imcwerad in curesd period no provision of income Tax Providesd
Defered  tan =
provided wsing the balance sneet approach on hemporary difesences at 1he reporing dabs between the o bases of assets and fabiltes

and their carying amaunts lor Srandal reporting purposss al the neporiing dabe,

Delerred tax asssts and Fabiies ae maasuned al the fax rales Tal are expecied jo apply in [he yoar when ihe assel @ reafised or the
Rabifly is s=ilied, based on fax raies (and tax aws] at kave been sractsd or substantively enacied o the reporiing dale.

Dieferred lax reiafng io fors recogrised cuizide the staiemers of prolit and icss i recoprised oulside ihe siatemesd of profit and foss.
Dielerred 1ax fiems am recognised in corelaion o the undesying iransaction efiher in ofher comprehersive Incoms or directy in equity.

Deleried tax asssls and delered tan fabifies are oftsel if 2 legally enforosabie fght exists to st off cuTent lax assets agaimsd curnen
Incoms fax ibiities and the defered tases nstaie o fhe same tauabis enitty and the same taation ausonty
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210 Finanolol Instrumenis
2101 Financial Assels
A Initial recognition and measuremeni
AN Anarcial asseis and Rabiiies are nfEsly recognized = fair value. Transaclion cosis that are dreclly afidbotshis o the sogquisibon or
Iszus of Enancial asseds and fnancial Eatsifles, which ons nol 2 (ol value Tircugh profit or lose. are adjusted o e ler iue on niad
recognition. Purchass ond sals of francial Zssets ane recogrised using trate dale accocming

B. Subssguen! measuremant
L Financly assels carried ot amortised cost (AC)
A Tinancial asszel s measured ai amoriissd cost iF A |5 held wehin 2 business model whoss obpscive i o hold The as=sl in onder 1o collect
contrachusl cash fiows and the comactual lesms of the financial asssf give rise on specilled dates 10 cash lows: et are solely payments
of principal and inferes! on the principal amount cutstanding

IL Finanolal ass=1s al Talr value wother I {FVTOCE)

A Nrancial asset s measured ab FYTOCE # | s held within 2 business modsl whoss objective s acfieved by both coliscting oontrciual
cash Aows and seiling financial assets and e comaciual iamme of the fnancial assst ghve rise on specilied dates o cash flows 1hai are
soiely payments of principal and misrest on the prncipal amount outstanding

HLFinancial assels &l falr value through profit o loss [FYTRL)
A Smancial assst which is not ciassStied In any of the above categories ars measwed at FYTRL

c. in fes, A kales and Jolrd

A sufimdiary s an endby fat (s d by the Compary. The Company accounts dor e invesimesnis in squity shanes ol subsidianes ai
coest i apcordanos with ind AS 27- Ssparale Financial Salements

0. Other Equity Investments

All gther equity invesiments ane measired al fur vakse, with value changes recognised in Statement of Pro8t and Loss. excepl fos those
equity iresaments for whicn the Company has siecied io pregen| the value changes in ‘Ofher Comprehensive income’.

E. Impairment of financlal assets
N DCOOEANDE Weth Ind AS 109, e COMpany usss ‘EXpacied Credt Loss {ECL) Mmodel, for swaluiaing Imparmer of Srancia assess olher
than thass measured at tak yalue Pough proft and loss [FYTPLL

Expecisd cradi icssss are maasueed firough a loss allowanos at an amount squal o

- The 1Z-maomihs expected credi osses (expactsd credi losses fal result rom Tose defaull evenis on e irancad instrument thad ans
possible within 12 manths mfier the reporiing daisj): ar

= Full Helime sxpecied oredl losses (sipecied credi losses that resut fom all possibile defaull evenls owesr Te e of The inandal
Instrumant |

For trade recenrabiss Compary apples simpiftisd approach’ which requires expeched esime losses io be eoognised Fom imilal
recognition af e recsivabies. Ths Company wees hisiorical delout rates o f loss on Hhe paof of frass neo i

At very reporting e fese historical Setaull raies are reviewed and changes in S fooward |ocking sstmates are analysed

For oiher 2ssets. the Company uses 12 monin ECL o provide for impaEmen! loss where ihene is ma signiican moreass in oreoit rishe |
e b significant increase in credit sk Al Betime ECL ks used
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210.2 Finamoiol RabiEties
A Enitial recognition and measurement
Al Ninancial kabiifi=s are recognized al far value and in case of loans, net of directly alivbotabie cost. Fees of recurring nalure are drecily
recogrised in the Sixiemeni of Proft and Loss as finance cost.

E. Subsequen! measurement
Financial kabilftes ane carmied at amorlined oost using the effscte imanss! metod. For rade and cther payables masuring wikin one year
fram the batance sheet dae. (ke camying amouns approximats fir wale dus |0 the sharl maturity of these natumenls.

2.10.3 Derhvative Tinanclal instruments
The Company uses waroos dervaive financial reyumenis such as inberest mie swops. curency swapa, forwaeds & options and
commodily comiracis io miffigaie the risk of changes in inlecesi rates, exchangs rales and commodiby prces. Such derhvalive financal
Ingirumenis aee infiially recognissd af fair value on the dabs on which a devivative comtract s sndsred info and are aiso subssquently
rrEasured at rar vake. Dervathees ane cmed &5 nanoal assels when the fair vaos 5 positive and a5 firancial fabEites when the tor
vailes s negaive.

Ary gains or lossss arising from changes in ihe fair vales of devtvalives are aken dirsclly 1o Siatement of FProffl and Loss. excepl for the
efieciive porticn of cash fiow hedges which is recognisad in Other Comprehensive noome and lajer o Statemenl of Profl and Loss when
e heaciged e aliecis peoftl or loss or reated as bass adjsiment H a hedped forecas! bansaciion subsequenily reswils in Be necognition
od a mon-finencial as<eds or non-tinancial labilty.

210.4 o ot
The Company derecogrizes a fnancial assets when the confractual nghts jo $he cash Sows: from the inancial assets expine o [l Fansters
Mo Snancial Bssls @00 Tie tansler qualies for denscognition under ND-AS 109: A Srancal Rabiny i derecog from e Company’s

Balancs Sheet when e chigation specilied In (he contract is dischanged or cancelisd o expires.

211 F 5, =) L and ( g Asseis
) Provisions are reqognized for Habilles Sat can be measured onfy by Lsing a degres of ]
{1} ®1& Comparry has a peesent obligation as a resul of a past evert.
(¥} a probabls culiow of resoroes = avpecied o saifie e cbigation. and
(M} ihe amouwn of e chigation can be reilably ssimated.
i# the eflect of 1he lime vaive of money s malerial. provisions ane discosnied wsing a curverd pre-iaw raie that reflects. when appropnaie,
the risks Spectic o e Fabidty. When discounting i wsed. The increase in the peovision due io the passags of Bms s recogeised os o
firanos cosl.
b Retmburssment expecied in mspsct of sxpandiiure reguirsd 1o seftls a provision & recogrized only when i s virualy certain that he
reimbussames Wil De reoshed.
£} Contingent Lishifty is disclosed in the case of
{I] & preseni obigation ansing rom pasi events, when A is not Erobalss 1hat an outfios of resources will be regquined to setiie he obiigalion
(E) a present obiigation when no redable estimals is possiis, and
(8} a possioie obiigation arising from past events where e probabily of outSow of resources ks nol remote.
dj Coniingesm Ast=ls are dschosed, whess an inflow of economic Denelits |s probabe.
=] Provislons. ConSngent Linhifss and Confingsnt Assets are reviewsd ol sach Halance Ereet daie
f) Dividend 1o equity sharshoiders is recopnised as o llabBily and deducted from sharehalders’ Equity. in fie peiod in which the dvidends
are approved Dy the equity Shvehaldsms in e gensral meeing.
g Basic EPS Is compuled by dividing e Prolit or loss atiriuiabie i ihe squily shar af e Cx ¥ by the weignled average

number of Ordinary shares oulstanding curing the year. Diuled EPS i compued by adustng ihe proft or ioss asTioutabis 1o ®e oedinary
equity shanshoiders and Sie weighisd svarape number of credinary squily shares, for the effecis ol ail dfutre polertial Oedinary shoaress.

213 q F q of Beg
An operafing segment is a component of the Company thal engages in busiress sclvilies from vitich @ may saem revenoss and nour
expansss, whose opemting resulls are regulary reviewed by the company’s Chief Operating Dacision Maker {"CODM) io make decisions
For wiftichi discrele Bnancial informatian is ovailabée. Based on e management approach e dalined in ind AS 108, he CODM evalustes
tie Comparmy's performancs and afocabes rescuroas based on an analysss of various periormance indicatons by business ssgments and
g=ographic segrenis.

214 Use of estimales and [udgemend
The prep of m conformity with ind AS requires ihat managemeni of the Company makes esimates and
assumplions thal affect e reporied amounls of Income and espenses of e peniod. Te reporied balances ol assess and Rabifes and the
disciogures relating ia conbingsni liabifes as of fe dale of the financial statemenis

The key assumplions concerning Te fulure and olher key sowes of esimaton uncerainty af the reporing date. Ml have @ signifioant
risk of causing a maserial adjusiments fo the camying amownts of assels and Eabflies winin (he nex Snancial year are cesoribes below.
The company has bassd fs s on par wwailabie when the hnancia stalements weve prepared. Exrsting
cir a5 and piions aboul hiwe cevelopmenis. however. may change Gue in markel changes or clcusmsiances ansing

bergand confol of fhe management.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 35T MARCH 2031
R in INEL_ unk —— i
Particulars i Mar-21 Mar-20
ASSETS
(1) |Mon-current Assets
(@) |Property. Plant & Equipmant 3 TE,14.E8.000 B4.00,22.703
(&) |Fmancial Assets
1] investmemns 4 31,1E.48,185 31,168,408, 183
(W) Loans -] a7.18.007 108,64, 450
{oi [Oner Mon curent Assets ] 18.08.58.783 18.08.55. 701
| Total Non-Current Assels 120 30,96 543 1350587
(2) |Current Assets
{21 |imeentories T 149,17 E90 1,38, 12.408
by [Finamcial Assets
[¥] Trade Recetvabias B 2.00.15.99.310 2989029 80T
() Cash & Bank Balance a 1.14.50 540 27.00.57E
|y Bank Bakance oiher San aboes (1) 190,50 452 40.80,472
() Loans: 10 (11,00,30,823) [11.00.87.290)
[v] Other Financial Assets " - -
(o) |Omher Currert Assets 12 (131.71,047) (1.28.84.045)
I Total Current Assets %
| TOTAL ASSETS =
EGUITY AND LIRBILITIES:
(1) |Equity
(n) |Equity Share capiia 13 T34H,00,000 T3.01.00.000
() [Otmer Equity 14 (B.4T 37.B8.388) (6.1 15,70 pow)|
| Total Equity (%73 7 BE 588 (267 A8 T8 585
Liabilitiea
(Z) [Mon-current Liabiliies ;
(@) |Financial Liabiities
[} Bomowings 13 23.08.18,707 2D AB.067.184
b |Proveions 14 1.1%.88,722 1,180,580, 722
(o) |Deferred Tax Liahitkes (Netj 17 12.13,07.874 13.27.18.702
| Total Mon-current Liabilities 36.34.83.403 36.88.82 605
ta) |Financial Liabilites
(I} Borrwings 18 £.38.88.03,788 BBEAZ.04.512
(¥] Trade Payabios 13 10.11.24 578 9.75.23,308
(M) Dfrer nancial Babikties 0 20370713 57.30.114
(b) [Current Tax Liabiiies [netj 3| 13.38.09,198 133124818
(o] |Oiher cunenl lahilfes =2 |2.B0. 78T {2.30.937)
i) |Prowsions = 7.48 3082 7.,45,582
Total Current Lishilities
| TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
‘Signiicant Accouniing Poloes and Moles o Financial
‘Biaiemenis Ty
The accompanying notes are an misgral par of the financial staiemenis.
As per our repori of even dats
|For Pramod K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Management
Chariered Accountants
\CA Pramod Sharma )
|Partner Director Director
b Mo. OTBES3
FRAN Mo: ITEITC
Date - 20.00.2021
Place : Bhopal Chief Financial Officar Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 345T MARCH 2024
(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise staied)

S.Ho Particulars MNote No. 3H-Mar-H 20M8-20
I |Fevenue From Operabans 2 43,51 B05 P64 72, 38,001 |
n |Other Income 25 1,80.34,785 1,15,56,60,546
M |Total ncome (1+[) 2,23,56.480 20.80,30.83.577
W |Expenses
Coed of Matenal Consumed 26 1335177 3.68,21 66.224
Purchase of Stock in Trads a2 66267 25.70,41,20,721
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in progress i
ared e ks 27 1.89,38,58,670
Employee benafits aspense 28 1,06, 50,836 4,77 BB 378
Other expenses 20 1,50,02 286 9,85,24,12,760
Finance costs an a7 65,2845 200
Depreciabon and emortization sxpensa 3 B.51,34.630 6.93, 48,363
Total expenses (IV) 0,55 17927 42,00,25,30,314
V  |Profit{losa) before exceptional items and tax [IH-1V) {T.31,61.447) (10,0036, 737))
Vl  |Exceptional Hems 3
Vil |Profit{loss) before tax (V-VI) (7161047 (12.16,84,96,737)]
Vil |Tax 1
(1) Current tax - -
(2} Deferred izx {1,13.,51,728) (95,38, 374)
IX  |Profit [Loss) for the period (6. 18.08.718) [12.18.86.96. 363 )}
X |Other Comprehensive income
Afi) [(Bems that will be reclessified bo profit or loss 251 -
Afii)  [income lax refabing to ilems that will be reclassified to profit or -
loss

B(i) |Hems that will not be reclassiied to profit or loss
Bfii} [ncome fax redating to items that will not be reclassfied 1o
profit or loes

¥l [Total Comprehensive Income for the pericd ([X+X) (B, 18,00, 710) [12.18,08,08,363)
Comprising Profil{Loss) and Other Comprehensive

|income for the period)
Xl |Esrnings per equity share a2
(1) Basic {0.0B| [16.56)
12} Diluted (0,08 (15.56)

Significant Accounting Poficies end Mobes to Financial Statements 11047

The accompanying nodes are &n mbegred part of the finencial statements.

As per owr repoert of even date

For Pramod K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

(CA Pramod Sharma . -

Partmer Director Director
M. Mo. 076883 - H
FRN Mo: 00TE5TC

Date - 26.06.2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Placa : Bhopal
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ARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formesly Known a5 Sanwaria Agro Oils Limied)
Mo, L13143MP 1891 PLCODE3S

Standalone Cash Fiow Stalement for the ¥ear Ending H15T MARCH 202

Rupees in INA , oniess ctheruise stated]

T+-Mar2 Ti-Mar-20

Partioulars

L] ] el ]
A CAEBH FLOW FROM OPERATENG ACTIVITIES :
=i Profit Before Tax and Exbaordinary Bems FAL 1808, 719 (12,1856 B 6=y
(Adjstment - for Depreciakon B340 02348253
tor Giher Comprehersise moomes - -
tor Irgeves! on FOROthers [0.08.275)| (04,37, 08,075)

\or Firance cost - B2 0.5EAET
‘Operating Pralil Before Waorking Caplial Changes LT (12,74 79.88,081)|

iromeased | Decrease i Cfer Mon Clement Assets 22 47553 SAZ 224
Ircroase; [ Decrease Iy nveniones T.54. 009 4407487073
Iromase) | Decrénse in Finarcial Asseis 58 Ty BL3ET.TI TS
Incroase) [ Decrease in Offer Curent Assots 1.80.002 23 e, 330
proregse | [Decreass) in Finanolal Liabifes 23835872 {9333 80,975
jrorease | |Decreass) i Ofer Carerd Linbisties (1204 B [TOLED 23, 30T
jjircrease)  Decrense o Loans and Asvanoes

Cash fromm Operations 2.08,73.590 545¥3,80,113
firoame Taees, refund | (paid) during The poar .
Cmsh fiow from {used Inj Opevating Acihifies 106,789 SLILELITE

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
\Adcition|  Aekmase of Fived Depos {120,389, BEcH) 153,83, 880
tonj / Deduction of Foied Assets 34,298,167
eres: Recaved on FOR A.08.ETS [T
Cash fiow n} [REEECET 0030749, 108

CASH FLOW FROM FINAHTING ACTIITIES -
e Appication Morey s 2

Fepayment of Long Temm Bormwings 53,88, 20| BT T, 003
iFTooeno of Long Term Caplinl Subsidy 25,00,000
Procesds | (Renayment) of Shorl Temm Borowings (fet) 588570 (21,54, 13,00
iDividend Faid
iierest paid - B2 1008227
Cash Tow from {used inf Financing Acviles. [FEEEETT | 1.28.07,32,;

Increase! {decrease} in Cash & Cash Equivaients BT,08.0867 B033,TY
e Cash Equivalents al B beginning of the penod 27.83578 B30.B7.257
and Cash Equivalents ol the end of the period 1,14,50.540 27,03,578

IThe Zcromparnying notes ate 2 integral pari of the tnanda statements.
i par our peport of even date

For Framod ¥ Bharma & Ca, For and on behall of the Board of Directors
\Charteved Acoountants

CA Pramod Sharma | DOirecior Direcior

el Moo O7eEE3
AN Wo: DOTEITC

fOte | DE.DO2OX
(Flace : BRopal Chief Financial Oflioer Company Georetary
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ARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerty Known

|Signiticant aocounting policies snd nates to the soeounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021

|[Fupees In INF , uniess oiherwise stated)

231 78508

* = 7E1,04.840 30100338 2411817 = 32072702

- - 6 .48.84.807 23338 108 2412330 = 2ATAT B0 385 50,583 43345395
- = 1007545786 | 001888924 7410423 - 0,83.92,347 23.51.21,443 33.03,31.872
- - B4.68 530 [TRETT sazazg - BEBA83L 1480, 553 2024318
- - 12008893 12188412 =330) - 12208742 410443
- - 30,44.808 38,10.542 5888 - 35.20,807 133708
- = 83,51,080 82,806,737 130353

Ta0ATEASY|  Taenseres

Rs.
34.75.80,847

Rs. Fs.
393383 157 50,81 250 54 TH.E0B4T

732916809 - 7 37,00:360 2.07,70.206 24,03 303 = 23173808 2,00.78 632
78104843 - - 781,04 845 270,78.251 24,67 050 - 3.00,60.848 478.43.859
0.40.84, 557 - 04084927 £ 9700241 20,34, 528 r 22335 108 4 03 45 359

1.00.75. 8% 758 85.10.02 305 8.06.79.418 - CEREETIET] 33,98 31 E72

B4,00,520 35,00.035 342,870 = 0442811 2028213
20,06 830 4,23 70,007 ZEQ TS 204,01, 883 13198412 [NETTE]
30,44 608 34E5534 33 10,842 1.33,708 o1 274
83,51 050 8283843 £2395,737 13533 1.57.448

004076834 70.91,09.875 73,80,30,145 B4,00,22, 700 81.91,00073
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[SENWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED [Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro ONs Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Hot
e

4 |Mon- Current Investments

{a) |lmvestment measured af cost

Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unguoted Fully Paid-up

Sanwaria Enargy Limited 3,11,75 410 Shares of Rs.10¥- sach. 31.17,54,100 31,17.54,100
Sanwaria Singapore Pie Limited

Particulars 31-Mar-21 3-Mar-20

45 45
H17.54,145 | 31.17.54,145

Equity Shares of Associates Companies

Unquoted Fully Paid-up

Shreenathji Solvex Limied 47 60,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each. - -
Total Unguoted Non-Current Investment - -

Preference Shares of Associates Companies
Ungquoted Fully Paid-up
Sanwarna Globfin Private Limited 2,55 000 Shares of Rs. 10¢- each.

Total Unguoted Non-Current Invesiment - -

(o] [lnvestment measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Account

Quated Fully Paid-up
Punjab Maticnal Bank 1180 Equity Share of face value of As. 2- each

a2 040 02 040
[Total Quoted Non-Current Investment 52,040 52,040 |
Total Non-Current Investment 311846185 31.18.46.185
Category-Wise Non-Current Investment 3-Mar-21 31-Mar-20/
Financial Asseis Carried at Cost 31.17,54145 | 31,17,54.145
Financial Assets measured at Cost through Profit & Loss 82,040 92040
Total Mon-Current Investment 31,78 46165 | 31,16,46,765 |
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ARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting pelicies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021
(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Loans (Un-Secured and Considerad Good)
Deposits 87,13.507 1,00,64 4B6
Total Loans B7.13,507 | 1,09,68,486
Deposits includes mainly deposil with the Electricity
Department and Other Governmental Depariment,
which are in perpetual nature.

& [mu-cmnﬁmmmmm:

{a)

Other non-current asset (Un-Secured and
Considered Good)

{a) Balances with Government Authorities 18,0044 401 18,00,41.317
b |Others 054,324 0,54,384
Total Other Mon-Current Assets 18,09.98.785 |  18.09.95.701
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For financial year ended 31 March 2021
(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

[SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Olls Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

Note Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

7 Inventories
Raw Materials 13.,88,722 20,33.592
Work In Process - -
Finished Goods 05,24 000 85.24,000
Stores & Spares 31,55,585 33,065,244
Packing Material 3.77573 A,77.873
Siock In Trade 72000 72,000
Total Inventories 1,457,890 1,53,12,409
CURRENT FINAMCIAL ASSETS -

8 Trade Receivables
{Unsecured Considerad Good]
Trade Recewvables -
Less than 180 days 1,06, 66 561
Muore then 180 days 2.,50,08.88 749 2,50,80.20 007
Total Trade Receivable 2.60,15,55310 2,59,90,29,907
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting pelicies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars H-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

g Cash and Bank Balance

a. Cash on hand 36,485 4,14.327
|b. Balances with banks
- In current accournts # 1,14 20,451 23,3923
- In deposit accounts #4# - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1.14 56,946 27,653,578
b. Balances with banks
| - In deposit acoounts ## 1.00.06. 452 | 40,56 4732
Total Cash and Bank Balance 3.05,53,398 68,10,050

#% EMD Received dunng CIRP from  Prospechive
Aesolution Applicani deposifed as Fived Deposit
Aeceipt (FDA). (in Previous pear Fived Dsposit
pledged as collaferal secwifies has been  matured)
during the cumant year)

10 Loans - (Unsecured and Considered Good)

Loans and Advances - Related Parties {11,60,57,059) [11.60,57,059)
Loans and Advances - Others BD.26,136 50,690,800
Total Loans {11,00,30,923) (11,00,87,250)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED {Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 20241

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
11 Other Financial Assets
Criher &
[Total Loans . P

# Includes fair valuation of denvalives,

12 Other current assets

8. Balances with Government Authorities. {1,46,00,435) 1,44 22 B2S)
|o. Others # 14.38 288 14,38.280
Total Other Current Assels [1.31,71,147)| __ {1,29,84,545)
# Includes Pre-paid Expenses and Clawm

Raceivables.
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Pwmmnmmmqmmym-nuam Agro Oils Limied)

and nodes 1o fhe acoounts

Bnandlal year snded 31 Barch 2021

In IMA , wnisss oherwise staled)

Mioibe Partioslars -Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Mo of shares | As_in INA__| Mo of shares | As.in iNA_|
13 |Ghare capiisd
A |futhorised

Equity Ghanss ot par face valkie of s, 1~ sach TE.O0LOMOOD | 78,00000,000 | '78,00,00.000 | 78,00,00.000
Preiersnce Share ol par tace valise of Re. 10 =ach 20000, D00 2.00.00.000 20,000,000 2.00.00 000

Equily Shanss at par face value of As. 15~ aaon 73,08.00.000 730100000 ) 73.04,00.000

[7anio0000] 748100000 73.6100000

Terms/rights attached o equily shares:

ane vole per shase

Hame of the shareholder

Reconcillafion of the numiber of equity shares g at the beg g mnd @l the end of the reporiing period are as
given below:
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Mo of shares A= in INR Ho of shares Fs. in INR
Nismbar ol shares outstanding at fhe baginning of the pariod T304 00,000 73,81 00000 T3,81.00,000 | 73,81 .00000
it - *
‘Hiusmbeer of shares oubstanding at the end of 1he period T3,07.00,000 730100000 | 736100000 730800000

i) The company has oniy one class of squily shares naving par value of Rs. 1/ parshare, Each haider of equity shares s emified o

i) In the ewent ol iquidation of the compary, Fie holders of Equity Sharss will be sniftied to rsceive remaining assats of the
Company. The distibution wil be in proporion io the number of Equity Shares heid by The shasshalders.

Dedalis of shareholders hodding more than 3% shares In the Company

Ganwana Globan Pvl Lid
Gulab Chand Agrawal

Satish Kumar Agrawal

anil Humar Agrawal

snok Agrawal

CRE Trusise Limiled A GRS Mulusal Fund
Cihet

A1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Mo of shares e Mo of shares L]
[ QOO0 §8,19,93 920 2487 %
24, 000 DO0% 3,77.18,872 Ta4%
24,000 DO0s 4,52,36.300 EO8%
B,7E.38,324 Tap= 3,79.86.324 THEN
s DO00% 5,4032 100 T34%
2,00 72.000 3007 2,81, 72,000 ot
0o, 1E80.670 BESO™ 30,5045 7E4 A203%
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,mwm—mmmmm
Ellzmenl of Changes in Equity i ot March 31, 2021
a Capital
Ghanges in
Equity
Az Asat
Particutars. share
1 Aprs 2020 31 March 2621
capital
during the.
[Equity Shars cass & TE81.00,000 - TE81,00,000
TALT,00,000
b Ortheer Equity Aeserves
w""‘ Ereference Other
PR Capitsl Gemeral | Aevalugion | Snare Securities
m-""u Fmserve | Feserve Resanve Premim | REReeEamng | ome T
alliabrents Reserve [och
Haiznce al e begnming of the reporang period
gq;ml:_m N i - | smponoo | 21.4278.400 | 30.08.1,700 = | 131320000 | (7.1401,09,374) o {masazasara
Amoun AEmed | Gharm ARlied Gang e year
Tokal Gompehense Income for he yesr
[ ESIAR fufusimeriis
Dividends
Transer
Eionus Shares issusd n 1-1
Changes in accounting policy prior period emor
FRestalen baiance o ihe Beginning of the
pertod as at Apel 1, 2020 000,000 | 21.92.78.400 | 30.00.51,700 - | 131230,000 | (T.1461,00.374) 0| (m433225414)
Amouni Recatved | Share ABotisd Gang the year -
Toas Inoome for the year 101806715 {6.18.08.718
Ing AS Anjstment 5
Dividends
Tramster
Bionus Shares issusd n 11
_,m,,;;“““ geinsloun 3000000 | 2112.76.400 | 30,08.34,780 - | "nism0000 | rzeTeinzey o (eas.a0.35433
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SANWARLA CONSUMER LIMITED {Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
Far financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Naote

Particulars

3-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

14
(a}

(&)

il

(i

(=)

(e

L

iak

Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Surplus at the beginning of the year

Add ; Profitloss during the year

Add - Traneition date adjustment

Add | Less : Transfer to Revalustion Resene

Add | Less : Transfer io General Aevaluation Resene
Less: Dividend on Equity Shares

Less: Tax on Dhidend

(7,14,61,05 574)
[6,18,09,719)

5,04 37,082,788
{12,18,88.08 362)

Toial

{7.20.79.15,203)

(7.19,61,05.574)

Capital Reserve
Add /! Less - Transiemed from retained eaming /
Appropriation during the year

30,00,000

30,00,000

| Capital Resarve - Closing Balance

30,00,000

30,00,000

General Reserve
Add ! Less - Transfemed from retained eaming /
Appropriation during the year

23,2527, 145

21,1278 400
21248745

General Reserve - Closing Balance

232527 145

233537145

Revaluation Reserve
Add ! Less - Translemed from retained eaming /
A igtion during the r

36,66,51,760

36,6851, 760

Revaluabion Reserve - Closing Balance

36.66.51,760

36.66.51,760 |

Prefarence Share Redemption Reserve
Add ! Less - Transfemed from retained eaming /
Appropriation during the year

Preference Share Redemption Reserve - Closing
Balance

Securities Premium
Add : lssuance of share at premium
Less - Bonus Share issued during the year

13,19,50,000

13,19,50,000

Securities Premium - Closing Balance

13.10,50,000

Crher Comprehensive Income (OC]) - Opening Balance

Add / Less Movement in OC1 dunng the year

21248745

Cher Comprehensive Incoms - Closing Balance

[2,12.48.745)

Share Application Money
Add / Less : Money received during the year

Share Applicalion Money - Closing Balance

Tolal Dther Equity

(6.41.10.76.668)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED {Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-20

15 Non- Current Financial Liabilities :
Borrowing (Unsecured)
- Loans - Directors & Shareholders 230518,707 | 22,45857,181
- Inter Corporate Deposit - Related Parties - -
Total Borrowings 230519.,707 | 22,4567 181

16 Hon Current Provigions :
Provision for Employes Benefits 115,985,722 1.15,85 722
Total Provision 115,095,722 | 1.1585722

ir Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
At the beginning of the year 1327,19,702 | 14.22 58,076
Charged / (Credit) fo Stalement of Profit and Loss (1,13,51,728) (05,38 374)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 121367974 | 13,27,19,702

Charge/
Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities As at 31-Mar- (Credit) to As at 31-Mar-
/[ Assets) in relation to : 2020 Profit and 204
Loss Account

Defarred Tax Liabilities [ (Assets] in relaton to :
- Property Flant & Equipment's 853,43,530 1,13,51,728 73091811
- Prowvision (21,76.760) ] {21.76,7609)
- Dther Mon-Current Assets 4 95,52 032 ) 40552032
Total 132719702 |  1.13,61,728 12,13,67,974
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ARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
18 Borrowings
(a) Secured Loan from Bank
- Loans repayable on demand -Working Capital Loan - B8,89.88,03659 | B.80,6204383
MNate 1
- Loans repayable on demand -Waorking Capital Loan - -
Maote 2
- Bhort Term Loan - Mote 1 129 129
- Expori Packing Credit: PCFC - Mote 1 - -
Total Borrowing 6.69.88,03.788 | 8.89,62.04,512

MNoie -1 Working Capital Loans are secured by Paar Passu charge on the Fixed Asseis and
Present & Future Current Assets along with Personal Guarantee of Directors and by pledge of
fully paid up Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company .

Mofe -2 Working Capital Loans secured by pledge of warehouse receipt / storage receipt with
lien, along with Persoral Guarantes of Directors

The Company has Defulted in repayment of following Banks Loans which is Admitted

during the CIRP
Amount (Rs.in Lacs)

Mame of Financial Creditor Claim Admitted
Punjab Mational Bank 26850.78
State Bank of india 18388.84
Bank of Baroda 12403.58
Cantral Bank of India 1135871
Bank of India 1103425
IDBI Bank BSET.30
Canara Bank 566508
Unizn Bank of India {Andhra Bank merged with UBI) 283551

98106.05

18 Trade payables

Micro, Small and Medium Enferprises - -
Oihers 10,11,24 578 9,79,23 305
Total Trade Pavables 10,11,24.578 9,79.23,305
Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has not received any memorandum from Suppliers’ (as required fo be filed by the
‘Suppliers’ with ihe nofified awthorty under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Drevelopment Act, 2006} claiming their status as on 3158 March, 2021 as micro, small or medium
enterprises. Consequenily, the interest paid’ payable by the company 1o such Suppliers, during
the year is Nil iPrevious year: Mil). I
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ARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021

[Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Nole Particulars 3 -Mar-24 31-Mar-20

20 Other Financial Liabilities

Advances and Sundry Deposits {5.00,188) 6,030
EMD 2.00,00,000

Others Payable 68, 70,001 57,230,084
Total Other Financial Liabilities 263.70.713 57.36.114

21 |Current Tax Liabilities [Net]

Prowision for Income Tax 15,62 50215 15,62 50.215
Less - Advance Tax / TDS {23,41,016) {11,25,300)
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 15.38,00.160 15,51,24.816
Reconciliation of Income Tax Expenses 31-Mar-21
Profit Bafore Tax (7, 31,671,447}
Applicable Tax Slab 0./0n0Kr
Current Tax Provision - & -
Decrament in Deferred Tax Liability for Property Plant & Equipment’s 1,13,51,728
Incrament in Defemed Tax Assets for Provision L]
Increment in Defemad Tax Liabdity for Other Non-Curent Assets _Ej_
Deferred Tax Provision - B _ 1,13.51.728 |
Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Account 1,13.51.728 |

Page 85 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

SANWARLA CONSUMER LIMITED [Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agre Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes o the accounts

Faor financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise siated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-21 3-Mar-20

22 Other Current Liabilities

Dther Statufory Dues {2 A0, 785) (2,230,557}
Total Other Current Liabilities {2,80,785) {2,30,557)

23 Provisions

{a} Provision for gratuity & bonus T.4E 562 7,45 522
Total Provision 746,562 745,522
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MNaote Particulars 2020-21 2015-20
24 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products -
Refined il 32,88 552 51,82 00,002
Cruda Oil z 21,61,31,788
Soya Meal 25,590 o7 76 82 3085
Basmati Rice 4 66 855 17,77.12 86 626
Food Grains & Others - 9.07.38,15918
Othars 5,680,698 000,097,303
Total 43,21695| 28.64.7233.031
25 Other income
Interast Income 6.69.270 64.3506,019
Others 1,73,65.5068 51,2354 527
Total 1.80,34,785 1,15,58,60.546
251 |Other Comprehensive income
in on Financi s
Urrealized Gain -
Exchange Fluctution Gain'(loss) -
Total z -
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED [Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Olls Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars 2020-21 201520

26 Cost of Material Consumed & Other Trading Stock

Purchases

Raw Material Consumed and Purchase of Stock in Trade 721,870 3,58,72,04 062
Trading Stock Purchases 3286267 | 25704128721
Store & Spares ltems Consumed 6,13.207 7.74,83.544
Packing Malerial Consumed - 1,73.88.610

46.01.444 | 29.38.62.95.945

27 {Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods,

Work In Progress and Stock In Trade
Opening Stock at the beginning of years

- Finished Goods 95,24 000 1,77,20,92.804
— Work In Prograss - 24234 51
— Siock In Trade 72,000 20,71,28.345

05.06,000 200,34 55670
Closing Stock at the closing of years

- Finished Goods 5,24 000 05 24,000
- Work In Progress - -
- Stock In Trade 72,000 72,000
— Transferred o Other Expenses - -
095.96,000 55,096,000

- 1.99 38.50.670
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y Known as Sanw ro

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
28 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 1,06.46.807 38401735
Directore Remunerations - B4,00,000
Gratuity & Bonus -
Contributions to Provident Fund & Others - 257,904
|Staff wellare expenses 34 020 7,08, 737
Total 1,06.80,836 4.77,68.376
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‘ormerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Olls Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Hote Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

29 Other expenses

Power & Fuel Charges 4258 848 4,12,03,791
Repairs & Maintenance 12,668,541 48.05.512
Manufacturing General Expenses 1128006 257,06 006
Printing , Stationery & Communication Expenses 1.07,004 B8.91.230
General Expenses 1.68,351 46.72,098
W arehousing Gharges 128947 26,26 805
Insurance Charges 13.12,B08 44 37 E95
Advartisament Expenses B7.020 =
Legal & Professional Fees 22,83 366 1,37,38 883
Security Expenses 46,57 ,004 43,801,300
Miscellansous Expenditure Written OFf {7.82,953) 10165838
Product Selling Expenses 1,08,185 10.48.34 660
Shortage & Ouality Rebats B.000 16.23,.40,620
Prior Period Expenses 32,578 -
Traveling Expenzes 1.76,601 70.84 302
Lease Rent, Rates & Taxes B65.81,523
Bad Debts W/o 0466532 387
Auditor's Aemuneraton

- Statutory Tax' Internal Audit Fees 1.50,000 15.50.000
Total 1,5!],92.2‘_55 9,85,24,12, 760

30  |Finance Costs

Interest Expenses - 62,10.58,027
Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation Loss - -
(Orher Borrowing costs 8722 3.17.87.272
Total 8,722 65,28,45 299

Miobes:

1. Due to liquidity crunch during the year 20-21 we have switched our accounting policy from Mercantile to
Cash basis. Hence following expenses that are related to the current financial year but have not been paid
hance, are not being provided in books of accounts

Advertising and Publicity 19020
Postage and Telephone 1898
Printimg and stationary 22176
Professional Expenses 1338527
Security Expenses 3155792
Traweling Expensss 17300

4555622

2. Godown Rent Receivd Amounting to As.808374/- related o previous year has been clasified under Prior
|Period ltem

3. AOQId FDRs Amounfing to As. 2500276/ Matured during the year i= credited to Bank Loan account as the
|52id FDs are not reflecting in the Books of Accounts.

Page 90 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Mote 40: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company's objective when managing the capital is 1o eafeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concem.
The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to iotal equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net
etl is defined as toial debl, comprising interest-bearing loans and borowings and obligations under finance
leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises of Equsty share capital and other equity. However, in
view of cerain adverse faclors and liquidity problems faced by the Company, the net worth of the Company has)
bean fully eroded and the Company is presently under CIRP process and thereby continue to operate as & going|
ncern. The Company’s adjusisd net debt o adjusted equity ratio was as follows:

‘3-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Total liabilities* 9,12,93,23 405 9,.12.07,71,683
Less ; Cash and cash equivalent 1,14,56 946 27.53,578
Less : Other Bank Baalnce 1,%0,86 452 40,568,472
MNet debt 9.09,87. 70,007 B.11.39.61,643
otal equiy” {5,73,76.86,388) (5,67 58,76, 669)
Met debt to equity ratio {1.58) (1.61)

'The Company has complied with the covenants as per the terms of the major borrowing facilities throughout the
reporting peniod.

* Liabifities : Consiats of Secured Loans from Banks and Unsecured loans from directors’ relative and obher
sntifies

* Cash and Cash Equivaient ; Consists of Gash and Cash Equivalent less balance with dividends accournis,

"Equity : Equity Share Capital + Other Equity
Note 41:

The Mational Company Law Tribunal (‘MCLT], Indore Bench, wde order dated on 20th May, 2020 [“Insolvency
Commencemant Date”) has initiated Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process [*CIRPT) wnder the provisions of
e Insolvency and Bankruptoy Code. 2018 (“the Code™) based on application filed by one creditor Mr. Kishaor
Ramniklal Unadikal, sole proprstor of WMe Shakli Clearng Agency under section 8 of The Insolvency and
Bankrnupicy Code, 2016 read with the rule B of The Insolvency and Bankriptoy Rules. 2016 and the said
application has been admitted by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP (18] No. 7 /0 /NCLT / AHM / 2019 on 20th of
May 2020 and MCLT has appointed Mr. Rajiv Goel as Insolvency Resolution Professional (IRP)io manage affairs
of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Code.
In the first mesting of Commitiee of Creditors ({CoC7) held on July 2B, 2020 and in terms of Section 22 {2) of the
Code, reschved with 100%: voting share, to replace the existing Interim Resolulion Professional with Mr. Gautam|
Mitial as the resolution professional (AP} for the Company. As per section 134 of the Companiss Act, 2013, 1h-a|
financial statements of the Company are required fo be authenticated by the Chairperson of the Board of
Directors, whare authorized by the Board or at least two direclors, of which one shall be managing director or the
CEQ (being a director), the CFO and Company Secretary where they are sppointed. Pursuant to the MCLT ordar
for commencement of the CIAP and in line with the provisions of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors)
stand suspended and be exercised by IRP / RP. Thess Standalone Financial Results for the quarer and year
ended 31st Mamch 2021 hawe been prepared by the management of the Company and certified by Mr. Anil
Vishwakarma, Chief Financial Officer ('CFO') of the Company in accordance with Regulation 33 (2) of the SEBI
(Listiong Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

iz audited Financial Results wers placed before the RP, the CFO and the Company Secretary on 3lth Juns,
2021 for their consideration. Accordingly, the financial statements were considered and recommendsd in the
meeating. In view thersof, the AP, in reliance of such examination by and the representations, clarfications and
explanations provided by the CFD, has approved the same. The CFD has provided the cerifications and|
representations with responsibility in respect of various secretanal, compiance and broad matters periaining to)
e period prics to Insalvency Commencement Dale. The AP is relying on the management represenfation letter
ated 25th Jume, 2021 for all information and confimations in relation fo the day to day funclioning of the
mipany.
The RP has approved these financial Stalements only to the extent of discharging the powers of the Board of
Direciors of the Company (suspended during CIRP} which has been conferred upon him in terms of provisions of
Section 17 of the Code.
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sANWARIA CONSL R LIMITELD ormerly Known kit

B!gni‘lil:a lr.munﬂg policies and notes fo the
For financial year ended 31 March 2021

Note 42

The camying value of tangible assets as at 31si March 2021 is RAs.7814.88 Lacs As explained
in mote no. 1 above the Company is under CIRP and the AP has invited submission of
resolution plans from potential resolution applicants, and put up for necessary approvals before
the Commitiee of Creditor ({CoC%) and the MCLT. The GIAP is concluded and GOG propose f
hguidstion. And the AP has Filed the Applcation before Hon'ble MCLT. in preparation of
Financial Siatemenis as required by Ind-AS 10 on “Events afier the reporting period”™

Note 43

In acoordance with the Code, pubfic announcement was made caling wupon the financial
creditors and operational creditors of the company to submit their claime with the Interim
Resolution Professional (IRP) by 15.06.2020. In accordance with the Code, the IRPYAP has to
receive, collate and admit the claims submitled against the Company. Swch claims can be
submitted to the IAP/RP during CIAP, iill the approval of &8 resolution plan by the CoC
Pursuant to the claims received on 15.06.2020, the CoC was formed on 01.07_2020, and the list]
of swuch credifors was duly notified to the MCLT and uplcaded on the company website
Thereafter, there could be regular revisions to the fist in view of the claime received and the RP
iz in the process of receiving, collating, werifying, seeking clarifications, sending
communications for unreconcied balance, seeking additional documenis fo substantiate whole
or part of the unreconcited balances on swch claims. In respect of claims submitted by the
financial creditors as on 15.06.2020, the same is excesding amount appearing in the books of
accounis. To the extent the process for submission and reconciliation of claims as on the
Insolvency Commencement Dale remains an on-going process, no accounfing impact in the
books of accounts has been made in respect of excess, short or non-receipls of claims for|
oparational and financial creditors.

MNote 44

The carrying value of tangible assets is As. Rs.7814.88 Lacs. As explained in mote no 43
above, the Company is under CIRP. As such, the Company has not isken into consideration
any impact on the value of the tangible assets, il any, in preparation of Financial statements
as required by Ind-AS 10 on “Evenis afier the reporting period”. Further, the Company has alsg
not made full assessment of impairment as required by Ind AS 36 on Impairment of Assets, if
any, as at 31st March, 2021 in the value of tangible assels.

Note 45

The Company has not recognised interest payable, after the inschency commencement date]
i.e. 20th May, 2020, on borrowings from banks and financial instiutions, customer advance,
inter corporate deposits received. The same iz not in compliance with Ind AS - 23 on
“Bormowing Cost™ read with Ind AS — 108 on “Financial Instruments”™.
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Irreessments 82080 31.18.40.183 31,18.38.223 82040 31.98.40,183 31.19.38,230
(Cash ard Bank Balance 303.53.388 3.08.53.358 30533338 3,08.33, 358
| Trade Recevabies 2001985310 2,80.105.310 2.080,13.38,510 2.00.10.53.310
Loans (401347 448) 10.43.17.410) (101317.418) (121317 418)
[Other inancal assets - ~ e: L +
T wew | semssan [ ssrms] 7 g
Financial labiifies
512.80,23.493 5.9253.23 459 125223495 89,1293 23485
T rade payabies 10,1124.378 10,11.24,378 10,11.24.578 10.11.24,578
Nrandal liabifties 20370713 EO3T0.TI3 28370713 20370, TH
5.23, 18, T80 ‘B.25 08 18.TES 8,20 08 18 786 5,25 88, TBS
* The ping amaunt of fnancil Visruments carmed af anorioed cos!t & 3 reasonatie snpnovaTation of v vaue.
=

Irrvessments. 82040 31,18.46,183 31,1838, B2 040 31,58.40,183 21,19.38 228
(Cash and Bank Baiance GE. 10,030 088 10,093 68.10,000 O 10,000
| Trade Recevabies 2.33.80.25 907 2.58,50.23 8507 298,80 38 507 2559029807
Loans & amancs (9.81,22, 704 @12z 704) B2 704 (B,51.22.704),
Other finandal assets. = = s =
- 52040 ZEiEa05.78 | 2518059418 52040 — | zevessaavs]  zevessaais |
Financial labilflies
[Borrowings 8120771093 5§.12,07.71.063 B1207.71.083 8,1207.71.083
| T rade payables 8.78.23.308 8,78.23 305 8.79,22.303 979,23, 305
Qther hrandad ladiities a7.36.114 5730114 57.30.114 3730114
- 1 -1 5294451142 | 8324439 113 - - | seoaisii12] 8374331112
* The camying amourt of Bnancial carnied at ama ‘appn of fair vaire.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The members of Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and two of its audited subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Qualified opinion

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the certified financial statements prepared by
management and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, except for the effects
of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view subject to observations given
in Schedule “A” in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act,
of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at 31
March 2021, and its consolidated Loss (consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion

3. The Company has shown all expenses on the accrual basis which were related to current
financial year as it was shown in the policy of company that the Company follows accrual
basis of accounting, but in the following cases it has followed cash basis of accounting,
hence loss has been reduced by Rs. 45.55 Lacs :

Sr. Particulars Amount
No.

1 Advertising and Publicity 19,929.00

2 Postage and Telephone 1,898.00

3 Printing and stationery 22,176.00

4 Professional Expenses 13,38,527.00

5 Security Expenses 31,55,792.04
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| 6 |  Traveling Expenses | 17,300.00 |

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 15 of the Other Matters paragraph
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the
consideration of the certified financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5. One creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal unadikat, sole proprietor of M\s Shakti Clearing Agency
has filed company petition under section 9 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
read with the rule 6 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Rules, 2016 to initiate Corporate
Insolvency Resolution process against the Company before the NCLT and the said
application has been admitted by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP (IB) No. 7 / 9 / NCLT /
AHM / 2019 at 29th of May 2020 and NCLT has appointed Mr. Rajiv Goyal as Insolvency
Resolution Professional (IRP). The CoC approved the replacement of IRP with 100% voting
and IA No. 111 of 2020 is allowed as prayed by the Applicant. With the Order of National
Law Company tribunal (NCLT), no. (MP) CP (IB) 7 of 2019 with IA 111 of 2020, Dated 04
September 2020, and The Court give order to Mr. Rajiv Goyal, IRP to handed over the
documents/papers & give charge to Mr. Gautam Mittal, as Resolution Professional.

6. RP had invited expression of interest from interested parties for revival of the Company.
Five eligible EOl's were received after-which Resolution Plans were invited. The Resolution
Plans received from these PRAs were discussed and put on vote before the COC for
approval. None of the Resolution Plans were approved by the members of the COC. While
rejecting the Resolution Plans, the COC further decided to Liquidate the Company for the
initiation of Liquidation Process of the Company has been filed with hon'ble NCLT.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

7. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
financial statements

8. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” of the
consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated profit or loss
(consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income), consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for
ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions
of the Act, the respective Board of Directors /management of the companies included in the
Group covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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9.

10.

11.

12,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the holding company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
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exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

15. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

16. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Matters

17. We rely on the certified financial statements/ financial information of one subsidiaries
(Sanwaria Singapore PTE Limited) included in the Financial results whose financial statements/
financial information whose financial statements/ financial information are unaudited and
have been furnished to us the management and our opinion on the statement, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures, is based solely of such unaudited financial statements/
financial information. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to
us by the management, these financial statements/ financial information are not material to
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the group. Another subsidiary company (Sanwaria Energy Limited) is audited by us which has
shown loss of Rs. 147.35 Lacs also included in the consolidation.
In case of Sanwaria Singapore PTE Limited, our opinion on the statement is not
modified with respect to our reliance on the financial statements/ financial information
certified by the management.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

18. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration
of the certified Financial Statements prepared by the Management, referred to in paragraph
15, of the subsidiaries we report that the Holding Company paid remuneration to their
respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to one foreign subsidiary
company.

19. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the Certified Financial Statements prepared by the Management and other financial
information of the subsidiaries and we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the Certified Financial Statements prepared by the Management of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group companies, covered under the Act, are
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act;
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f

g

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, covered under the Act, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate
financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries:

xvii. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures;

xviii. Provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements, as
required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

xix. il there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint venture companies during the year ended
31 March 2021;

Date: 24/06/2021
Place: Bhopal For PRAMOD K SHARMA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

CA PRAMOD SHARMA

Partner

M. No.: 076883; FRN: 007857C
UDIN: 21076883AAAAQD8121
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SANWARLA COMEUMER LIMITED (Formerty IKnown as Samwarla Agro Oils Limied)
Bignificant accouniing policles and notes 1o the acoounts

For inanclal year endsd 315t March 2021- Consolidabed

{Rupsess In IMA |, undess ofherwise siabed)

1 Corporale information
Sarmwaria Consumer Limiled. [the compary| [Formerty known as Sanwara Agro Ofls Limited) Is @ pubiic comparry inoorpomtsd n india.
having iis Fegistered and Corporale office at Office Hall No. 1 Firs! Floor, Meiro Walk, Eftan maket Bhopai - 452014, The company is
engaged in the manulachsing and bading of Soy=, Aice Sran and Seir produsts. De-oiled Cake, Crude/relined Edite O Mamstacturing of
Bawmall Fice, and Oiher Foods Grains and Food Products and Retailing of vanous Progducts. The Equiy shares of lhe company are sied
o The Bombary siock exchange (BSE) and Nabonal Esock Exchange {NSE).

Coporte Insohency Aesoisson Process (TCIRPT) has Deen MEatsd in case of the Company wioe 30 orier daled B5.03.2020 of Hon'abis
Mationai Company Law Trbunal {™CLT"). Indone Bench under the Provisions af The insofesncy and Banknupicy Code. 2018 {he Code)
Pursuant Io the crder, Tie management of aflairs ol e Comparny and powers of board of directors of the Campany vesied with Mr. Rajeey
Gosl (i ¥ wnal having reg nio. |BBLIFA-DIH P-POI2SR/20417-18/ 10807) who is appoinied as the nerim Resoiution
Professional FTRP7) In accomancs with Sacton 16 ol The Insohency Bankrupicy Code, 3010 [Code”] Furiner. os per the order, caied
04,03 2020 passed by abowe mentiorsd Esnch, Mr. Goutemn Mitlal [P Regn No. IBEIPA-DC01/1P-FO1331/2018-1 81 2038) was appoinied
s Resolution Professional |'FF‘}!E1:II1:I.I'QH‘IH‘F' Mir. Aajeey Goai In e matisr of Eamvaria Conswemer Limisd. Thase Consobdated
frandal stalemenis have been p oy The g ol ®e Company and cerlfied by Mr. Arll ma. Chied F
Officer and Ma. Shipa Agansal Emmﬁmmy.xﬂwumwmmn Profdsssional M. Gautam Mizal (1P Regn ko, [BELIPA-
0011P-POM331/2018-191 20°58)

2 Significant Accounting Palicles
21 Basisof
These Snancial statermsis have been prepared to comply i al matorial aspecis with indlan Accounting Standards (nd AZ7) notified
under the Companies [indian Accoiing Slandards) Rules, 2013 ans Companies {indlan Accounting Sandards) Amendmant Ruiss, 2018
notitied under Ssction 133 ol e Companies Act. 2013 the Ac'} and oiher relevar provisions of the Ao

Company's ans in Indian Rupsss [ which ks ako fs uncllonal curency.
The financial siatements are prepared on & hisloncal cost basis, sscepd for catam azsis ard fhat ans at lar
valse

23 Propery, Plant and

Properiy, plant and equipmert one lated ot ooginal cost et of oty credil avafled. less accumuiated deprecintion and accumutated

impawrmen losses, Il any. Whan signilicant paniz of peoperty, plarm and sguipmant are requiesd 10 be replaced at iMenais, he Company de-

recagnizes ihe repizoed parl, and recognises ihe new par win 85 own assoctated usehd fie and H is depreciaies accordingly. AN repair and
‘Cosls ans r o In: b= al profil and loss as inoured.

Propery, planl and squipmenl are elminaled from fnancial shdements. edher on diSpOSal OF whan TeSred oM Boie USe. Losses ansing

in fhe case af redremenl of properyy. piant and squipmsnt and gains or losses arising from disposal of propevty, plant and equipment ars
recognised in fhe stassment of proft and ioss i the year of coourmence

Diepreciation on assels Nas been prowided on a simight line basis al 1he usetul Bves spacified in ne Scheduls (| of the Companies Acl,
Z015. Depreciation on addiions’ deductions is coiculaded peo-rata romyd 5o ihe penod of additions’ deduchions.

The assste’ residual values. usehul ifves and metnods of deprecialion are reviewed af sach Enandal year snd and adusied prospactvely, Il
appropnale. Currently the residual Be & consdered as 36 of the value of property pland and squipmesTl.

23 of Hon-F Assets - Property , Flant and Equipment
The Company assesses ai each reporiing dahe a5 io wheiher e is any & #hat any properiy, plant and e
amgteds or group ol assets, calisd cash genevaling unils JCiGU) may b= mp I sy such mumummmﬂ'm

assed of OGU s astimaled o detsrmins the exten] of iImparment. f ary. When it is nol possiie 1o sstimate ibe rsooverabls amaount of an
Inmvidual asset. ihe Company asiimatss the recoverable amount of the CGLU 10 weich the asses bejongs.

An i loss Is recog m e Eda ol Profit and Loss to e exant. assef's canying amown sscesds lis recoverable
amourd. The ecoverabis amowd & higher of an asset's fair vaiise ess cosl of dsposal and valis 0 use, Yalus in use iz based on the
esfimmied {ure cosh fiows, discounied io their present value using pre-iax discount rafe thal refecis curent marked assessmenis of the

lirme value of money and risk specific io the mssed.

The impakmeni loss recognissd in prior accounting period ks reversed B there has been a change in the estimabs of recoverable amount.
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24  Filnanpe Cost
Baormoeang costs inciude swchange differences ansing from loreign curency bomowangs o the scent they are regarded os an adpasiment io
the interest cosl Bomowing cosis Tat are dirscily alirbulabie io the acquisition or consinuction of qualfying assels are capilaiissd ag part
of Ihe cost Of GLCh assets A qQuallying ssel 15 one that necessarsy lakes subsiantial period of me o gat rady for i inended ae,

imierest income sarned on the lemporary Ivvesament of specific bormowings pending thelr expendtiure on qualfying assets s deducied from
e bosmowing cosis slighis for capialisason.

Al Othesr DOITOWING COSiS e Chamesd 10 e Staremanl of ProSt and Lass 105 The =<0 Mar wiicn hey ane incumed.

253 Imventories
Freenionies ans valued 3o unoes =
L. Raw malenal. Stors & Spares are valued al lower of cost jon FIFD basis) or nef realisabis value weschaver is ower.
IL Wiork In Process at cost including related overhaads.
i Firished Goods B Stock In Trade are valued ad cost or ssSmaded roalsabie vaiee whichever s lower. Cost comprises maierial, labour
and appilcable overhead expensen

Cosi of Invertornes comprises of 0os! of purchase, cosl of corversion and oiher costs Inciuding manulachring qvernsacs in bnnging ihem
b their respeciiee presenl location and condBon.

28  Foreign Exchangs Transactions
The Company’s has not made any Foreing Exchangs Transallon dunng the year
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27 Revenus Recogniflon

Bale of Goods

Revenus from saie of goods IS recognised when e signilicam fisks and rewarss of ownership have been tmnlered 1o ihe bayer,
recovery of ihe consiceration = probable. T associaied cost can be esfimated refaby, ivere s no continuing eflecis conimil o
managerial imvolrsmend with the goods. and the amours of revenus can be massued refiably

interest Income
ierest s reongnized an @ Bme propoeion faking into accou fhe amount outstanding and rale appiicabis

Other Income
Cimear income s recogrised when right to recsive o estabinhed.

28 Empioyes Benenits
{1} ‘Short Term Employes Benellts
All smpigyss bemstns faling due wholly siinin twehve months of rendening the sendce ane clmsifisd 25 shor e smpioyee benstis. The
DemEls Hee SAANES, WRIeS, Ghoil 381 compeansalen ASences &40 and 1he Expecied cost Of DONUS, SE-JRAla are Fecognized i Me period
In wiich the empioyse renders the mizied serdice.

{Il) Posl-Employment Benefits
a} Defined Confribulion Plans: The obigalion o employes’s provident fund s 0 defined confribution pian. The coninbution paidpayabis
is regognized in S pedod in which e emplopess nenders the retsted seevice. The compary hac defined confribulion plans whers the
company pays pre-defined amounts and ooes nal have any legal or comsiucive chilgasion io pay addiional sums for post-employment
benefls.

b} Defined Benefil Plans: The chilgation lowards graluty |s a definsd benelil pian

The pressnt value of the obigation under such Defined Banelll Plans is dslermined based on acluanal valuation using the Projscisd Linil
Credit Method. which recognizes aach period of service as ghving rise io addional unil of srmpioyes beralll enfibermen 2nd measunes sach
unit separalely o bulld up The final chilgation a3 per IND- AS 13, Le "Empioyes Bensiis”

The chigafion = measwred A the present vaiss of the estimated hulure cash fows. The discourd mies used ior defsmining e presan
vl of 1he obilgation under defined benalll plans. Is besed on e maics yislds on Gowernmenl ssourflies a3 ol the Balanos sheed daie,
having v periods appn g I Ihe levms of retated chilgations:

Remeasurements. comprising of agiuarial gains and losces. the sflect of e asoel osfing. eschiding amounts ncsdsd 0 nel iderest on
the nst defined benefil Babilily and the retum on plan assets [ssciuding amownts inciuded in net interest on the net defined beredt lability),
are recognised immedialedy in the bafanoe sheet with @ coresponding debil or credit io netained samings finough ofer comprehenshe
Income in ihe period in which ey oo F ¥s are not %0 e stalemant of profil and kosa in subsequent periods.

29 Agcounling for Tazes on Inoome
Diue ba koess incuenad in currend period no provision of noome Tax Providsd
Oweierred tan =
provided using the balance sheet approach on tempoeary diffesences at 1he reporing dabe between the tax bases of assets and labiltes

and their camying amaunts lor Srancal reporting purposss al the neporiing dale.

Dielerred fax asssts and Fablifies are mensunsd al the tax rales Sal are expacied o apply in ihe yasr when ihe assed 5 eafised o the
Habiity Is s=iliec, based on fax raies (and tax taws) Tal have been sractsd or substantively enacied a1 the reparing dale.

Dieferred lax reiafng fo Aoms recogrised cutside the stsiemers of profit and joes s recoprised oulside ihe skatemesi of prolit ard foss.
Dizlermed fax fiems ane recognised in comelation o the undesTying fransaction efiher in omer comprehensive Inoomes or diecty In eguity,

Delermed tax asssis and delermed tan abities are ofisel if a legally enlorosabie nght exists to st off cument lax assets againd current
Income fax labiities and e defened tases nstie o the same taxabls enitty and the same taation auoy
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210 Finanolal Imstrumenis
2901 Financial Assets
A Initial recognition and measurement
AN Ananrcial asceis and Rabiibes are nfsly recognized = fair value. Transaclion cosis that are dreclly afidbotsbls oo the aogquisibon or
Iszus of Enancial asseds and financial Eatifkes, which ars nol 31 iok value Tirough profit or lose. are adusted o She loir vales on inliad
recognition. Purchass ond sals of inancai 2sses ane recogiised using rate dale acccuning

E. Subssguen! measuremant
L Financlad assels carried of amortised cost (AC)
A Tinancial aszsl s measueed ol amortised cost T 7 |5 held wehin 2 business model whoss obpscive 21 hold the assst in order 1o collect
contrachusl cash fiows and tha comracsual levms of tha financial assef give rise on specilied dates 1o cash lows (hat are soiely payments
of principai and interes! on the principal amount putstanding

. Finanolal ass=1s al Talr value other I {FVTOCT)

A rancial asset |s measured at FYTOCH A @ s held within a business modsl whose objeciive 15 achiewed Dy both collecting oonlraciual
cash Aows and seiling financisl aseets and e comraciual isrme of the financial asss ghee rise on specilled dates o casch flows hat are
soiely paymentis of principal and misrest on the principal amount outstanding

HLFinznoial assss sl falr valus through profit or loss [FYTPL)
A Snancial assst which is not classftied In any of the above categories ars measwed at FYTPL

C. in ies, A Fales and Jolmd

A subsdiary i an endty thal s d iy the Compary. The Company accounts jor Bie invesimenis in squity shanes of subsidianes af
cost in apcordanns with ind AS 27- Geparale Financial Stalements

0. Other Equity Investments

&1 gther Bquity invesimenss are measired al kur valse, with value changes recognised in Statement of Proft and Loss. excepl for those
equity inesIments for whicn 1he Company has siecied io presen| the value changes in ‘Ofher Comprehenshe income’.

E Impairment of Ninancial assets
i1 ICCOMEANDE Wit INd AS 109, Me COMpany usss ‘Expacied Crect Loss (ECL) MOdel, 107 svakaing Imparmen of Srancis assets ofher
than thoss measured at tar value Boagh proft and loss [FYTPLL

Expecisd cradil idssss ame measuesd Sinough a ioss allowanos at an amount squal (o

- The 12-manihs expacted credi losses. (expachad credi losses Tal result rom fose defaull evenis on e nanced insirumen that ans
passible within 12 months mifiar the reporing daisj): ar

= Full Melime sypacied credl losses (expacied credt losses thal resut from all possbie defaull evenls owvsr e e of the Anancal
Instrumeani |

For trade recermabies Comparry appies simpittied approach’ which requies expecied Wsbme losses io e reoognised Fom inilal
recognition of the recsivabies. The Company wees historical detout rabess. jo # loss on the paof of ass e .

Al svery reporting date ese historical cetault rales are reviewed and changes in S forward locking ssSmales are analysed.

For oiher assets. the Company uses 12 monrin ECL o provide for impaemen! loss where ihete 15 no signiican noreass in ocreot rish 1
mere i significant increase in credil sk Ll Betime ECL Is used
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210.2 Finanolol Eabiitifes
A initlal recognition and measurement
Al Ninancial Babilfi=s are recognized al far value and in case o loans. net of dreclly alrbolabie cosl. Fess of recurming nature are direcily
recognised in ihe Sixiemani of Poft and Loss as finance cost

B. Subseguent measurement
Financial Fabiiftes are carisd at amoriized oos using the effecive menssi method. For irade and obhar payables matuning wilhin one year
Irom the calance sheet dale. {he camying amounls approaimats fair vakos diss fo the short maturity of these matrumenls.

2.10.3 Derbvative Tnanclial instruments
The Company uses waroos denvaive financil mmyumenis such as inbsrest mie swops. curency swapa, forwaeds & options and
commoddly corfracis io miffigaie the risk of changes in inferes] rabes, exchangs rales and commodity prces. Such derhvalive financal
Instruments are indially recognissd ad fair value on the dals on which a derivallve comiract i endsted info and ane also subssquenily
mEasunsd at rair vakes. Dervalivec ane ciemed &5 nanoal acssls when the fair valos 5 posiiive and 2= inancial fabtes wnen the tar
vailes ks negaive.

Ary gains or losses arising from changes in the fair vahes of dertvalives are faken dirsclly 1o Slatement of Froffl and Loss. excepl for the
efieciive porticn of cash fiow hedges which is recognisad in Other Comprehensive inoome and laler fo Staiemenl of Praf and Loss when
e hedged bem afiecis peoftl or loss or reated a5 basis adjusiment i & hedged forecast ansadion subsequesily resuils in Be reoogrition
ol a non-finencal as<eads or non-tinancial labil%y.

2.10.4 o ot
The Companry derecogrizes a Arancial assets whan the confractual nghts jo fhe cash Sows from the financial assets expire (o [ Fansters
IMe Enancal Bsssls and Me ansier qualiies for derscognilion unoer IND-AS 108, A trancal iabiny IS derecog o e Company’s

Baiance Sheet when ihe ohigation speciied in the contract Is dischanged o cancelisd oo explires.

21 F 5, =) L and e Asseis
1} Provisions are recognized for Habilles Sat can be measuned onfy by Lsing a degres of L
{1} T2 Company has o peesent obligation as a resul of a past evert.
(¥ a probabls cuSiow of ressroes = axpeacied o seilie Bie cbiigation. and
{M} ihe amouwrd of hie chilgation can be rellably sstmated.
i# the eflect o Ihe time vaiue of money s maberial, provisions ae discosnied using 3 curen pre-iax rabe that reflects. when appropiaie.,
the risks Spectic o fhe FabdRy. When discounting i wsed, The increase in the peovison due fo the passags of bire s recogeised os o
firsnoe cosl.
bj Rermburssment axpecied n mspect of sxpandiiure reguinsd 1o seitls 1 provision is recogrieed only when i s virualy ceron that the
reimbursamesT Wil D reosned.
£} Contingent Lishifty is disclosed in e case of
{1} & presenl obilgation arising from pasl events, when A i Not probabés that an cutlios of resources will be regquinsd o setiie the obigalion
{E) a present obhigalion wnen na Tedable estmals |s posshis, and
{8} & possiie obiigalion arising from past events where he probabilty of outSiow of resources ks nol remole.
) Comingem Asis=ls are discosed, whese an inflow of economic Denefits is probabie:.
& Prowislons ConSngent Liahifiss ond Condingsnt Assets are reviewed of sach Balance Ereet dais
f} Dividend 1o squity sharshoiders s recognised as o lablity and deducisd from shaneholders’ Equity. in e peniod in which fhe didends.
are approved by the eguity Shavehaldss in he gensral mesting.
gl Basic EPS Is compuled by dividing Te Profit or loss atirbuiabie io the squily shar al e ¥ by the weigniled averags

number of Ordinary sharss oulstanding during the year. Diuled EPS ts compuled by adussng ihe proft of loss asTioutabls 1o Te oedinary
equity shanshoiders and S weiphisd avsrage number of crdinary squily shares, for the effects of ail déuive poteriisl Oedinary shanss.

218 q F q of B
An operafing segmend s a component ol the Company Bhal engages in busiress acSvilies from wiich @ may saem revenocss and nour
edpences, whose operafing resulls are regularly reviewed by the company's Chief Operating Dacision Maksr {"CODM) i maks decisions
far waichi discrede Srancal informatian s ovailabie. Based on tha management approach: g delined in ind AS 108, e CODM evalustes
i Comparny’s perioemancs and afocabss rescuicas based on an analyss of various periormance indicaions by business sasgments and
g=ographic segmenis.

214 Use of estimales and judgement
The prep of N confonmiy with ind AS requires thail managemeni of the Company makes esiimates and
essumplions thal affect tre reporied amounis of INocome and expenses of e period, Te reporied balances o assess and Rabifes and the
disciosures relafing ko conbingeni labiilies 25 of the dale of the financial statemenis

The hey essumplions concerning Se fulure and olhes key sowres of esimaton uncertanty al the reporting date, Tl have @ significant
risk of Causing o massrial adjusimanis fo the camying amoanis of assels and E2bflies wirin (he next Snancial year are Cesoribed below,
The company has bassd s s and on par avalabie when the fnancld stalements weve peepored. Exsting
cim es and piiors aboul hiwe Seveiopments. howewer. may change e in marksi changes or clcumsiances ansing

beryand confrod of fhe management.
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Moke 1
Ho.
ASSETE .
{1] [Nom-current Asseis
2] |Property, Pant & Equpment k| 20.27.21,508 931311138
fb) |Financial Asssis
{1l Invecimenms 4 32,085 AT.0E8T
i) Lowns a B7.13.007 1.09054 4895
j=) |Omar Hon current Assets a A8, 10002, 042 18,08.33,701
Total Non-Current Assels 1,09,25.28, 003 1,17,33.63 408
{2) |Cumrent Assets
{a) |Ewvenioriss T 14847 E20 1.93.12 409
§b) |Finarcial Ass=is
1] Trade Reosnabies E:: 261,413,520 254 30,400,618
§¥] Casn A Bank Balanos 5 1.20.93,065 4438 118
{ify Bank Baiance olfes than abowe (1) 1;80.90.452 A0S0, 472
{t] Loans 10 [11,00.30,533) (11,00 23, 2439)
v} Dfher Financial Assels 11 - -
fc) |'Oher Curment Assels 12 1/08.13, 0289 i1/08.27 087
Total Current Assets 2.53,85.84,633 2.54,00.03,481 |
TOTAL ASSETE 831 438 %’H &Bﬂ
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES:
1%) |Equity
{a) |Equey Share capitai 13 73,84.00,000 73.01.00,000
ib) |omer Equity 14 |B.47 45 =8, 48] {699,839 707
Total Equity {5.73.88 38,404 {0,066, 22 94,707
Lianiiflies
{2) |Mon-current Lisbinies -
{a] |Financial Liabitties
Tl Bomowings 13 B8.57.48,140 TET.T4BES
fb) | Provisions ia 1899, 722 L0 B
jcj |Defermsd Tax Liabdilies (Nef 17 12,1267 574 13.27.18.702
Total Hon-purment Liabditiss 21,871 2, B30 22,40,30,039
§3] |Current Lisbamiie=s
{a] |Financlial Liakiities
{l} Borowings 18 E.83 8203, TE=3 B83,62.04 582
{ii} Trade Payabies 18 6.50.37, 5346 9,34 87832
{i) Crher inancial isbnies 20 2.04.70,E38 57.90,304
{b] |[Curem Tas Liabiihss et b4 16,0888, 127 16,2098, 458
ie) |Dfmer current labilties 22 {280, TES)| | 5.5, 183
{d) |Provisions 23 740,002 745522
Total Curmrent Liabdlities. 3,15, 18,70,030 A58, 71,057
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIASILITIES 3.00,15.94,438 3,71.95.00, 885 |
Sigrificant Accounting Poices and Moles o Financial —
Statemenis !
The accompanying noies are an integral part of the Snancial staismeris.
As per our repor of even date
For Pramad K. Shasma & Co. For and on behall of the Board of Direciors
iChariened Accoundams
(CA Pramod Sharma §
Pariner Deirector Dhrector
M. Ho. DTaas3
FAM Mo: BITESTC
Drale © 38002021
Flace | Bhopal Chief Financial Offlces Company Seoretary
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2 [ATEMENT ¥ [0 Al k |
(Rupees in INR . unless otherwise statad)
S.No Particulars. Note Mo. H-Mar-H H-Mar-2
T |Hevenue From Operaions 1) TIETEDS | 25 Ed 7005 E00 |
I |Ciher Income 25 1,80.34 785 1.15568.85 614
Hl  |Total Incoms (1) 2.23.56, 480 20.B0.38.71 423
IV |Expenses
Cost of Maberial Consumed 26 1335177 36821 66 224
Purchase of Stock in Trade 32.66,267 2570412071
Chenge in Imventaries of Finished Goods, Work in progress 3R 5a
|and stock in frade i o e
Employes benafits arpanss 28 1.00,00,838 47768376
Cither expansas 20 161,71 786 0,84 60,785,004
Finance cosls a 8722 E52B.45417
Diepreciation and amorization axpense 3 7.85,89.167 8.28.02 192
Total expenses (V) 11.02,7,855 42 M.96.50,205
V. |Profiliss) befoe exceptiona ems and tax (V) — X0 R IR
¥l  |Exceptional ltems
Wi {Proftfoss)beforetax (-1 50 W AN
VIl |Tax !
(1) Curent lax Z 3
2| Daferrad tax {1,13.51 728) (95.38,374)
1¥  |Profit (Loss) for the period (7.65.63,747)| _ {12.19.62.40 408}
X |Other hensive Income
Afl} |Bems that wil be reclassified to profit or loss 231 -
Afi) |[Ecome lax relafng lo items that will be reclassified io profit or
loss
B{i} |Bems that wil not be reclazsfied fo prafit or loss
Biii) |ncome tex reladng to items that will not be reclessified to
profit or loss
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income for the period [1X+X) [76583.747) (12,19,6240 308)
Comprising Profil{ Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
¥l |Earnings per equity share 32
(1] Basic {0,104 {16.57)
(2} Défuted (010 (16.57)
[Segrificani Accounbing Poices and Moles 1o Financial SElemants Tmd7
The acoompanying naotes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
Az per our report of even date
For Pramod K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(CA Pramod Sharma )
Pariner Director Director
|M. No. OTGE83
FRAMN Mo: 00T857C
Dale : 26.06.2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Sacretary
Place - Bhopa
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{An | [As (As ] A5}
A. CASH FLOW FROM CPERATING ACTIWVITIEE &

et Profit Before Tax and Extracrdinarny Rems [7.60.08,747) (12, 13,42 40,808
AcjusmmEn! - for Deprecistion 78088, 107 82802782
Tor Cffer Comprehensive Income
- for Inersst on FORCHhars i0m, 278 B4, 35,008,015
for Mesc. Batance Win -
tor Finance cost B2.16.58.007
Dperating Pro Bedore Working Capital Changes A3.50,181 [1Z13.58,63.008)|
Adjustments for changes in werking capital

[Increase) | Dacreass in Other Mom Currsnd Asseis 22 44 838 5.3 13314
[Increase] | Dacraass in iovertones 74018 4.40,74 57 579
(Incresse) | Dacreass in Francial Asssis 29322972 240 68 10259
[increase) | Decreass in Other Curem Asssin 1En.802 2,98.04 330
Increass ¢ (Deciease) in Franomi L abikes {7703, B2 |3, 11.88. 1.28)
Incregss | (Decease) in Other Cunem LiakiGes {13.50.518 [70.83.23.32%)
(Increase] ! Decreass in Loans and Advorcos

247,533 126485, 508
Cash generated from Cperations ZA504,05 51,29,53.302
Income Tases refund | jnaid) dunng the year ¥ -
et Cash ftow from (|wsed inj Dperating Acllvities T 51,29 53902

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(acdition) / Feiease of Fesd Deposil 1, 3038580 1,83.53 880
| Adidition] | Deruction of Flied Asssis 33T
Imerest Received on FOR 0.08.279 04,35.00,018
et Cash flow tromiizsed in) investing Acthities [EEE T #6,90,25,100

C. CAEBH FLOW FROSB FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Erare Appication Money -
Proceeds of Long Tem Bomowings -
Aepaymert of Long Tems Somowings (5377 203) |81,82.18.30%)
Procesds of Lang Temm Caphal Gubsidy - 2%.00,000
Procesds | (Repayment| of Short Ters Bomowings (Hef| 256,978 |21.84.13,80%)
Dfeicend Faidt -
Infiereat pait - |82, 16,598,027
et Cash flow fram jizsed in] Financing Acivities (27,77, 327y {1.2%,78,81 234

|Met mcrease: [deorease) in Cash & Cash Equivaients T4.59,808 &
Cash and Cash Equivaients at Ihe beginning of the perod 4438118 .47 40,687

Cash s Cash Equivaients at the end of the pericd 120,83, 285 455118

The accompanying rokes ane an inksgral part of e froeoial striements

A3 per owr Tepon of sven dale

For Framod K. Bharma & Co. For and on behall of the Board of Direclors
Charsned Accourmians

[(CA Pramod Enarma | Divreoior Direcior
kA Mo DTHEES
FRM Mo (ITET0

Date - 20.06.2021
Fiace - Bnopal Chésf Financial Cificer Company EB=aretary
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|[ERNWERIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formeriy Known as Sanwana Agro Ciis Limied)
|significant accounting policies nd notes to the socounts

:L-ld 34,78 00 547 - - 54.75.00,547 - - = B 34,75 A0, 347 34 78.80,547
|_ Site Development 7,07.03,360 - - 7.37,03,360 2.31,73,509 2330813 = 48188039 5,06.25,852
Il Factory Euiding T.E1.04845 - = TE1.04.843 3,01,00,40 2411ET] - 4.33,32.083 4,75.43.869
IiL_Admn & Godown Sididing 5,46 84 027 - - 040,54 177 3.33.30, 108 2412335 - 9533 363 423,458,359
Plant & %.00,75.13.780 - - 1.0075.13.750 |  @0.1E.81,504 57410423 - 2BE121.440 | o33831E72

D. Furniture and Fiztures B4.00 530 - - B4.00.830 [TY TN 543533 - 14,8027 30,34 313

E. vehicies 1,86.08.695 - 2 1,26.08,855 1.21.95.442 933c] = 404113 413,443

F_ oin
|, Compailers 35.44.008 = - 38,44, 008 35.10,242 9505 - 33.20,807 1,23.801 133,788
i, Cither OMce Equpments: B3.51,090 - = B3.51,050 B258,737 BETa| - EZ.01,71D 1,95.380 1,398,385
Wind Wl 22 57 30,191 22.97,30,151 5,10.47.780 13434828 10,4302 238 121235907 13.4838.451

|But - ot (A} 1,83,04, 15,040 - - 4,83,04,10,043 | 84,51,03,909 - 62.76,53,070 50,37,21,965 | 98,13,11,130

s, Rs. s Rs. s . Fis. As. Fis. Rs.

30,2382 157 - 00,31.230 34,75.00,47 : - = - 3473.00.947 | 39,8582 457

72231068 411,451 = 7.37,08.360 207.70.208 24.03.303 - 23175508 5,05 5,552 52521603

TE1 &B‘! - = 78104843 27673251 24_BT 085 - 3.01.00 340 4,79 43 833 53,0431 584

6.4 84,527 - = 46,54 827 1,87.00,341 o6.34,528 - 2.23.33. 188 4,03, 45,359 4 A084,580

Flant 1,00.21 20,072 33.93.724 - 1.00.7213.780 | 99,10.02.009 0.09.78.413 - 03.15.5.524 21.11.17.063

D. Furnilure and Fistures B4,06.820 - - 64.60,820 95.00,038 542573 - 442011 880,750

|E- venicies 3.08.73.820 - 2,43.03,083 1,26 08,85 3.23.70.607 280748 2.04.00.553 1.21.85.412 418,443 4557283
F. Dffioe Equipmenis

L 36.44.008 - - 3644008 34,853,334 FEET] - 310,840 1,33 7860 LA12T

Il Oiher Offics Eguprments B3,51.080 - - 8351080 B2 B3, 043 (7.508)] - B2.35,737 133,393 V27443

Wing hals. 22.57.36.151 B - 22.57.30.151 77583551 13434523 - 810,47 700 13,4688 431 14.8% 43,860

Tatal (3} 1.89,30,06,145 38,093,213 2,53.38,345 | 1,53,04,15,043 78,0783, 1 8,28 02752 2.04,01,533 B4.51,03,305 1,08, 72.43,003
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[SENWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Ofls Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

MNote Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

4 |Mon- Current Invesiments

[a) [Inwestment measured at cost

Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted Fully Paid-up

Sanwaria Energy Limited 3,11,75 410 Shares of Rs. 10V- each.
‘Sarmwaria Singapore Pie Limited

&6

Equity Shares of Associates Companies
Ungquoted Fully Paid-up

‘Shreenathji Solvex Limiled 47 60000 Shares of Rs.10/- each. - -
Total Unquoted Non-Current Investment - -

Preference Shares of Associates Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid-up
Sanwarna Globfin Private Limited 2,55 000 Shares of As. 10¢- each. - -

Total Unguoted Non-Current Investment - -

(b} |Irvestment measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Account

Quoted Fully Paid-up

Punjab Mational Bank 1180 Equity Share of face value of Rs. 2- each 02 040 02 040
Total Quoted Non-Current Investment 92,040 92,040
Total Mon-Current Investment 92.085 92,085

Category-Wise Non-Current Investment 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Financial Assets Carried at Cost 45 45
Financial Assets measured at Cost through Profit & Loss B2.040 92,040

Total Hon-Gurrent Investment 52,065 52,085 |
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ARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting pelicies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 3-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Loans (Un-Secured and Considerad Good)
Deposits. B7,13.,507 1.08.64 486
Total Loans BT.13507 | 1,09,64,386 |
Deposits includes mainly deposil with the Electricity
Department and Other Governmental Depantment,
which are in perpetual nature.

5 lljou-cmnﬁmmmmm:

{a)

[ Other non-current asset {Un-Secured and
Considered Good)
{a) Balances with Government Authorilies 18,00 47 658 18,00,41.377
b} |Others 0,54.384 054384
Total Other Non-Current Assets 18.10,02.042 | 18.09.95.701
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[SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 3-Mar-21 3 -Mar-20

T Inventories
Raw Materials 13,88,722 20,33,502
Work In Process - -
Finished Goods 95,24,000 B5.24,000
Siores & Spares 31,556,585 33,05,244
Packing Material 377,573 377573
Siock In Trade 72,000 72,000
Total Inventories 1,457,890 1,53,12, 409
CURRENT FINAMCIAL ASSETS -

8 Trade Receivables
{Unsecured Considered Good]
Trade Recewables
Less than 180 days
More then 180 days 2,61,4131.520 2,64 3546 818
Total Trade Receivable 2.61,41,31,520 2,64,35.46,818
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting pelicies and notes to the accounts

Note Particulars 1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

9 Cash and Bank Balance

& Cash on hand B,70,495 10,48,327
|b. Balances with banks
- In current accourks # 1,14,23,080 33,809,700
- In deposit accounts ## - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,20,93.585 44,3818
b. Balances with banks
| - In deposil accounts ## 1,00.06.452 40,56 472
Total Cash and Bank Balance 3,11,90,037 84,94,590

## EMD Received dunng CIHP fom  Prospective
Resolution Applicant deposited as Fixed Deposidt Aeceipt
(FOR) f{in Prewvious pear Fived Deposit pledged as
collateral securities has been matwed during the currenf
year)

10 Loans - (Unsecured and Considered Good)

Loans and Advances - Related Parties (11,60.57.050) {11,60,93.058)
Loans and Advances - Others 60,26.136 59,60 809
Total Loans {11,00,30,923) (11,01,23,249)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formery Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars H-Mar-H H-Mar-20

11 Other Financial Assets

Orher &

[Total Loans
# Includes fair valuation of denvalives,

12 Other current assets

a. Balances with Government Authorities. {1,22.51.977) (1,20,65.367)
b. Cihers # 14,38 288 14,38,280
Total Other Current Assels {1,06,13,689)|  (1,06,27,087)
# Includes Pre-paid Expenses and Clawm

Raceivables.
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lawmmumumm‘rsn,. y Known as Agro Olls Limbed)
o g and modes bo The acoounbs
Aranclal year snded 31 March 2021 -Consolidated
In [MRA , wni=ss oherwise skaled)

Hobs Partioulars 1 -Mar-21 F1-Mlar-20
Mo of shares | As_inINA__| Ho of shares | As. iniNA |
—
13 |Share capdisl
A |Authpeised
Equity Enarss at par face vakie of Rs. 1~ =ach TE/DOUOD,000 | T200.000000 | 78,00,00.000 | 78,00,00.000
Prefersnce Shase al par iace vales of Re. 10 =ach Z2101.00 000 2 0000 000 =0.00.000 2.00.00.000
s ‘Bubrscwibed snd fusl
E-quily Enanss at par face value of Rs. 1~ saon 73,08.00.000 730100000 | 73.01,00000 | 730000000
[ Tanio00o0] 7a8s00000] 73.61,00.000] 7301 00.000]
Reconcillation of the number of equity shares g at the beginning and al the end of the reporiing period are as.

B [ghen below:

31-Mar-Z21 A1-Mar-20
Mo of shares A In INR Ho ol shares As. In INR
Humbsr ol shares oulstanding at the baginning of the pariod T30 00, D00 TARL 00000 | T3,81.00000 | 736800000
o - -
Humbesr of shares oulstanding at fhe end of the period 73,07.00,.000 730500000 | 73,01.00.000| 7306800000

C |Terms/rights attached to equily shares

i} The compary has oniy one class of squily shares naving par value ot Rs. 1~ parshars, Each holder of equity shares s emifisd
ane vole per share:

Ifj In e ewent ol iquidaton of the company, e holders of Equity Shanes will be entilied fa receive remaining asssis of the
\Company. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of Equity Shanes heid by The shasehalders

D |Deiafis of sharehodders holding mose than 5% shares in the Company
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Hame of the sharsholder Mo af shares %% Mo of shares =

Garmana Globan Pyl Lid TS R Co0% 181583320 o457 %
Gaulat Chand Agrawal 24,000 DOD%  3,77,18.872 T84%
Satish Kumar Agrawal 24,000 OO0s 45236300 BAE%
Anil Humar Agrawal m.78.85,304 788%  3,79.80.324 TEEN
Achok Agrawal - 0O0%  3,40,33.100 734%
CRE Trsiee Limied Ac GRE Mulual Fand 2.01,72.000 350%  2,61,72000 3.30%
Cher 02 1E80.570 BES0%  30,53,46.784 42.03%
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[GANM ARIA CONGUER LIMITED (FOrmerty Kngwm 03 Ganwarla Agro Ois Limiied)
Elalement of Changes 0 Equity ae af Maron 31, 2020

a Equity Share Gapiial
Changes in
=quity
As m As
share
1 Apra 2020 3 March =21
during the
Eqify Share cs A FAE1.00,000 - FEET 00,000
! 73.81,50.000 ——[7as%.00.000
b _Other Equity Besorves and Sispius
e Freference Other
Applioation | ooy General Snare Comprehens:
P Reserve Reserve Reserve Preméum me‘ ¥e Imcome o
pending Ror Reserve (och

:;‘f:"ﬁwmm"m“m' - | sopoooo| 214278400 | 30.0831700 - | 131350000 | (132447008 o (mazs07,a58)

Amour Recaived | Gnar Alalisd Gang e year

Totaf Comprehansve Income for the year

Bonus Shares lssusd in 11
Changes I accounting pollcy prics pefiod Bmurs.

A tod as at Aprll 1, 3020 - 3000000 | 21.12.78.400 | 30.00.31,T00 - 13.19.30,000 |  [7.15.24.47,018)) o (%.43,59,07, 258
Amount Recatves | Share Alofisd ourg ihe year -

Tots O Income for the year (765,03 747} [7.03.83, T47|
ino AS Adpsstmaris =

Dividends

Transder

Bonus Shares lssusd n 11
Balance a1 the end of the repoting period as af
march 30, 2021

30.00.000 | 21.12.76.400 | 30.06.31,700 - | 131850000 | [7z2saqt30m) o [e51.01.3 200
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SANWARLA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

Faor financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

14 Other Equity

{a) Retained Earnings
Surplus at the beginning of the year (7,13,25,23.612), 5,06.37,16.704
Add : Profitloss during the year (T.6563.747)| {12,10,62 40 408]
Add - Traneition date adjustment -

Add | Less : Transfer o Revaluation Resemnve - -
Add | Less : Transfer io General Aevaluation Resenme - -
Less: Dividend on Equity Shares - -
Less: Tax on Dwidend

Tolal (7.20,90,87.359)| (7.13.2523612)
(b} Capital Reserve 30.00,000 30,00.000
Add ! Less - Transiemed from retained eaming / - -
Appropriation during the year
Capital Reserve - Closing Balance 30.00.000 30,00.000
{c) General Reserve 232527145 21,1278 400
Add ! Less - Transfemed from retained eaming / - 212 4B T45
Appropriation during the year
Ganeral Resarve - Closing Balance 232597145 23.25.27.145
(d) Revaluation Resenve 36.66.51,760 36,66,51.760
Add /! Less - Translemead from retained sarning / - -
Appropriation during the year
Revaluation Reserve - Closing Balance 36.66.51,760 36,66,51,760
(=} Preference Share Redemption Reserve - -
Add ! Less - Transtemead from retzined saming / - -
Appropriation during the year
Preference Share Redemption Resenve - Closing Balance
=] Securities Premium 13,10.,50,000 13,19,50,000
Add : lssuance of share af premivm - -
Less - Bonus Share issued during the year - -
Securities Premium - Closing Balance 13,10.50.000 13,19,50.000
L] Ciher Comprehensive Income (OC]] - Opening Balance - 2.12,48.745
Add / Less :Movement in OCI dunng the year - (2.12,48,745)
Ciher Comprehensive Income - Closing Balance - -
(gh Share Application Money - -
Add ! Less : Money received during the year - -
Share Application Money - Closing Balance - -
Total Other Equity 6,47.40,58.454)| _(6,30.83.04. 706}
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated
(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)
Note Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
15 Non- Current Financial Liabilities :
Borrowing (Unsecured)
- Loans - Directors & Shareholdars B8 57,48, 140 7,97 74615
- Inter Corporate Deposit - Relsted Parties - -
Total Borrowings 8,57 49140 | 79774615
16 MNon Current Provisions :
Provision for Employes Benefits 1,15,95,722 1,1585 722
Total Provision 1,15,95,722 1,15,95,722
17 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Al the beginning of the year 13,27,19,702 | 14,22 58076
Charged / [Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (1,13,51,728) (95,38, 374)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 121367974 | 13.27.19,702
Charge/
Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities As at 31-Mar- (Credit) to As at 31-Mar-
/{Assets) in relation to ; 2020 Profit and 2021
Loss Account
Defarred Tax Liabilities | (Assels) in ralaton fo :
- Property Plant & Equipment's 2,53 43 530 1,1351,728 7,30.01,811
- Prrovision {21,76,768) o (21,76.765)
- Other Non-Current Assets 4,95 52 932 () 4,05 52,032
Total 13,27,19,702 1,13,51,728 12,13.67,974
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars H-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

18 Borrowings
{a) Secured Loan from Bank
- Loans repayable on demand -Waorking Capital Loan - Mote 1| 8.80,88,03,653 | B,80,62.04,383

- Loams repayable on demand -Waorking Capital Loan - Mote 2 - -

- Bhort Term Loan - Mote 1 129 129
- Export Packing Credit: PCFC - Mote 1 - -
Total Borrowing 8.89,8803.788 | & 512

Mote -1 Working Capital Loans are secured by Paari Passu charge on the Fixed Assets and Present
& Fufure Current Assets along with Personal Guarantes of Directore and by pledge of fully paid up
Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company .

Mate -2 Working Capital Loans secured by pledge of warehouse receipt / storage receipt with lken,
along with Personal Guarantee of Directors

The Company has Defulted in repayment of following Banks Loans which is Admitied during

the CIRP
Amount (Rs.in Lacs)
Mame of Financial Creditor Claim Admitted
Punjab Mational Bank 26850.78
State Bank of india 1038804
Bank of Baroda 12403.58
Central Bank of India 11359.71
Bank of India 1103425
IDBI Bank BIET.30
Canara Bank 5665.08
Union Bank of India (Andhra Bank merged with UBT) 2835.51
98106.05
19 Trade payables
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others £.50,37.516 0,34 87 852
Total Trade Payables 6,51,35822 9,34,87,852
Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has not received any memorandum from Suppliers’ (as reguired to be filed by the
“Suppliers’ with the nofified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006} claiming their states as on 31st March, 2020 as micro, small or medium enterprises.
Consaquently, the interest paid’ payable by the company to such Suppliers, during the year is Nil
[Preivious year: Nil).
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Immnnmum LIMITED [Formery Fnown as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

[Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-21 3 -Mar-20

20 Other Financial Liabilities

Advances and Sundry Deposits {4,80.813) 83,310
EMD 2,00,00,000

Cithers Payable B0, 7€.651 57,07,054
Total Other Financial Liabilities 2,54.76,838 57.90.364

21 |Current Tax Liabilities {Net)

Prowision for Income Tax 16,32 23 806 16,32 23,897
Less : Advance Tax / TDS (23,37.758) (11,25.399)
Curreni Tax Liabilities (Net) 16,08,86,137 16,20,88,498
| Reconciliation of Income Tax Expenses H-Mar-2
Profit Bafore Tax {8.78,15,475)
Applicable Tax Slsb 0.000%
Current Tax Provision - A -
Decrament in Deferred Tax Liability for Property Plant & Equipment’s 1,13,51.728
Incrament in Defemed Tax Assels for Provision 0
Increment in Deferred Tax Liabdity for Other Non-Curment Assets _ (o]
Deferred Tax Provision - B 1.13,54.728 |
Tax Expanses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Account 1,13.51.728
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SANWARLA CONSUMER LIMITED {Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agre Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes fo the accounts

Faor financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

[Rupees in INR , unless otherwise siated)

Note Particulars 3H-Mar-21 3H-Mar-20

22 Other Current Liabilities

Dther Statutory Dues {2.80.785) {1,55.109)
Total Other Current Liabilities {2,80,785) {1,55,102)

23 Provisions
{a} Provision for gratuity & bonus 746,562 T45522

Total Provision 7.46.562 745,523 |
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

Exchange Fluctution Gain/{loss)

MNote Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
24 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products -
Refined il 32,68 552 51.82,00,002
Cruda Ol - 21,61,31,788
Soya Meal 25,590 97.76,92, 305
Basmati Rice 4 66855| 17,77.12 86,626
Food Grains & Others - 80738 15918
Others 5,60,608 9.00,97,303
Income From power Genaration 752778
Total 43.21,695| 28.64,79.85809
25 Other income
Interest Income 6,689,270 6435 06,019
DOthers 1,73,65.506 51,.23,70.505
Total 1,80.34.785 1.15.58,85.614
251 |Other Comprehensive income
in on_Fnanci is
Unrealised Gain

Total
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED [Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agre Olls Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
Faor financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote Particulars 2020-21 2018-20

26 Cost of Material Consumed & Other Trading Stock

Purchases

RAaw Material Consumed and Purchase of Stock in Trade 7.21,970 3.58,72 94 D62
Trading Stock Purcheses 32 66 267 25704120721
Store & Spares ltems Consumed 6.13.207 T7.74,83 544
Packing Material Consumed 1.73,88,619

46.01.444 £9.38.62,95 945

27 {Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods,

Work In Progress and Stock In Trade
Opening Stock at the beginning of years

- Finished Goods @5.24 000 1,77.20,92 804
— Wark In Progress - 24234 521
— Siock In Trade 72,000 20.71,28, 345
05,96.000 200,34 55670
Closing Stock at the closing of years
- Finighed Goods 05,24 000 05,24,000
— Work In Progress - -
— Stock In Trade 72,000 72,000
— Transferred o Other Expenses - -
85,96,000 95.06.000
* 1.99.38 59,670
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y Known as Sanw ro m
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Naote Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

28 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages 1,08,66,807 38401735
Directors Aemunerations - 84.00,000
Gratuity & Bonus -
Contributions o Provident Fund & Cthers: - 257,004
|Siaff weliare expenses 34,020 7.08.737
Total 1,09.00.836 477,668,376
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g I SUMER FOrmerly Ko
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

{Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Hote Particulars 2020-1 2018-20
29 Other expenses

Power & Fusl Charges 42 58 848 3,44 28 536
Repairs & Maintenance 23,16 541 4805512
Manufacturing General Expanses 11,28,006 2,57 06,006
Printing . Stationery & Communication Expenses 107,004 891,239
Ganeral Expenses 1,68,351 A7 90,505
'Warehousing Charges 1,28,847 26,286,805
Insurance Charges 13,112,808 45 58 787
Adverticemant Expenses 87,920 -
Legal & Professional Fees 22,83 366 1.39,10,383
Security Expenses 46 57,004 4391300
Miscellansous Expenditure Witten Off (7.82.853) 10,115,839
Product Selling Expenses 1,08,185 10,4834 660
Shortage & Quality Rebate 8,900 16,23 40,620
Prior Period Expenses 32578 -
Travelling Expenzes 1,768,601 70,84 302
Sales Tax/ VAT - -
Lease Hent, Rates & Taxes - B5.81,523
Bad Debis - 0,46.65.32 387
Doubtful Debts -

Auditor's Remuneration

- Btatutory Tax! Internal Audit Fees 1,798,500 15,790,500
Total 1.61,71,786 | 9.64.60,78,004

30  |Finance Costs

Interest Expenzes - 62.10.58 027
Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation Loss - -
Other Borrowing costs B722 31787 300
Tolal 8,722 55,08,45,417
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Aupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Mote  |Particulars Amount Years 31-Mar-29

H Contingent Liabilities:
& Bank Guarantee INR In Lakhs 0550
b. Outstanding Forward Contract USD In Lakhs -
c. The company has not deposited following statulory dues on
acoount of dispute and for which preferred an appeal
Income Tax Act INA In Lakhs Various Years T2687.33
Ceniral Sales Tax Acl INR In Lakhe | Warious Years T2.04
Madhya Pradesh Entry Tax Act IMA In Lakhs Warious Years 952,75 |
Madhya Pradesh VAT Act INR In Lakhe | Warious Years 2575.21
EPFO INA In Lekhs | Warious Years 150.22
Ceniral Excise INR In Lakhs | Warious Years 100.26
IMPIDC INA In Lakhs | Warious Years 19.04
OTIC INA In Lekhs | Warious Years 2877
Mumicipal Corporation IMA In Lakhs Warious Years 3.78
MP Electrical Depariment IMA In Lakhe | Various Years 44.98

a2 Earning Per Share (EPS) . 2020-2 2018-20
Profit after tax atiributable to Equity Shareholders (76563, 747)| (12,19,62 40 408)
‘Weighted average number of Equity Shares {In nos.) - Basic 73.61,00,000 T3.61,00,000
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In nos.) - Diuted 73,61,00.000 T3.61,00,000
MNominal Value of Equity per share (In As.} 1.00 1.00
Basic Eamings per share {In As.) {D.10) {16.57)
Diluted Eamings per share (In Rs.) (010 {16.57)

33 Corporaie Social Responsibility (CSR)
A. C5R amount required o be spent as par section 135 of the Companies Act read with Schedule VI thereof by the
company during fhe year is As. NIL (due fo Loss} (Previous Year Rs. NIL [due lo Loss))
B. Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is Ra. Mil {(Previous Year Rs. Mil)
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DIMENy RNOWN 25 Sanwana Agro ils Limied)

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated
(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

a5 Eﬂtll;ed Party Disclosures
A |Names of Related Parties

Associates and Group Companies: Subsidiary Company
M5 Agrawal Trading Corporation Limited Sanwaria Singapore Pie Limited
Samwaria Globfin Private Limited Sanwaria Energy Limited

Ashoik Dall and il Mills Harsi

Sanwaria Infrastructure Limited

Sanwaria Warehousing & Logistic Limited
Sanwaria Foods Limited

Shreenathji Sohvex Limited

Surya Trading Corporation

Seth Shree Marayan Agrawal Charitable Trust

B |Key Management Personnel:

Gulab Chand Agrawal - Chairman & Director Chief Financial Officer

Satish Agrawal - Direcior Arnil Kumar Vishwakarma

Ashok Kumar Agrawal - Direclor Company Secretary:

Anil Agrawal - Prafessional Director (Died on Ms. Shilpa Rao

29.05.2027

C |Relatives:

Geeta Dew Agrawal Anju Dewi Agrawal

Anil Kumar Agrawal HUF Sadhana Devi Agrawal

Ashok Kumar Agrawal HUF Reata Devi Agrawal

Gulab Chand Agrawal HUF Bobby Dievi Agrawal

Satish Kumar Agrawal HUF Ashutosh Agrawal

R.MN. Agrawal HUF Rajul Agrawal
Abhishek Agrawal
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

(Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

35 |Segment Information -Amt in Cr.
The company has exclusively dealing in agriculture based business i.e. Solvent Extraction, Refining, th:%

Mill, Food Grains & Other Oils including other Food Products FMCG refail / bulk and thus operates in
single business segment. for compliance of Ind AS -108 we have broadly bifurcate the folowing fo
reporting purpose

Geographic wise Export Domestic
{incl. Indirect]
0.00 043
Product wise Rice Milling | Solvent Extraction Food Grain
0.00 043 0.00
Market Wise Bulk Retail (Packing)
043

Loans and Others have the value on realisation in the ordinary course of the business at least equal to th
amount at which they are stated and that the provisions for all the known liabifities are adequate and not i
37 |excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

In the opinion of the board of directors of the company, the current financial assetis i.e. Trade ﬂeoei'.raue%

Balances with Trade Payable, Trade Receivable and Loans & Advances are subject fo confirmation/|
reconciliation, although baktance confirmation letters has been send to those parties.

g The company has to comply with the Indian Accounting Standard - 19 on "Employee Benefits™ . ThEI

retirement benefit costs (Gratuity Provision) as per acturial Valuation Report for March 2019

The company has an Current Tax lability shown under the head in note no 21 to financial smlmﬂ

however company requested o the tax authorities to adjust the said Rability demand against the
39 pending refunds.
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The Company's abjective when manageng the capital is to safeguard fe Company's ability fo continue as & going concesm.

The Company monitors capital using & rafio of ‘adjusied net debt’ to Hoial equity’. For thia purpose, adjusted net debt i dafined
folal debl. comprieng inberest-bearng foans and borrowings and obgations under finance leases, kees cash and cash
ralants. Equity compsises of Equity share capital and other equity. However, in view of cerfain adverse factors and
idity problems {aced by the Company, the net worth of the Company has been fully eroded and the Company is presentiy]

nder CIRP process end thereby continue to operate as a going concem. The Company's adjusted net debt to adjusted equity

rate was as foows:
3 -Mar-2 3H-Mar-20

Todad liahilities’ 8.08 .45 52 078 B.97.59.79, 127

: Cash and cash equivalent 120,83 585 44,38, 118

- Otthar Bank Baalnce 1.90,96 452 40,56 472
8.85.33 62,61 B,96,74.84 538

15,723,868 58.454) {56622 04 TOT)
ratig {1.56) (1.58]

Company has complied wih the covenants as per the terms of the major bormowing facilites throughaout the reporting
o
* Lighites : Consists of Sacured Loans from Banws and Uinsscured foans from directors’ refafive and ofher entities

* Cash and Cash Equivalent - Consists of Cash and Cash Gquivalent fess haignce with dividenss accounis.

*Equity : Ecuity Shars Gapital + Other Equity

ote 41
g National Company Law Trbunal (“RGLT). Indore: Bench, vide order daled on 29th May, 2020 [“Insohvency
encement Date”) has indlisied Comporate Insciwency Aesolufion Process (“CIRPT) under the provisions of 'Il'nelmuh'm
Bankrupicy Code, 216 (1he Code”} based on application filed by one creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal Unadikat, sal
iprietor of Mis Shakti Clearng Apency under section 8 of The Insolvency snd Bankruptcy Code. 2016 read with the nle &
: Insuhma:ﬂﬂmﬂumwﬂdea 2016 and the said eppboation has been admetled by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP (1B}
INp. 7/ B/ NCLT / AHM [ 2019 on 2th of May 2020 and NCLT has appoirted Mr. Rajiv Goal &s Insolvency Resclution
Prulassnnd[lm:‘!rbomanagaaﬂmrsad the Gompany in accomdance with the provisions of Code.
In the first mesting of Commities of Creddors ("CoC) held on July 2B, 2020 and in fems of Section 22 (2] of the Code,
seoived with 100% woting share, o replace the ewsling Interim Resclution Prolessional with Mr. Gautam btial as
solufion professional (RP) for the Company. As per saction 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the financial statemants of
amy ane required to be authenticaled by the Chaeperson of the Board of Direclors, where authorsad by the Board or
aast two direciors, of which one shall be manageng direcior or the CEQ (besng & director), the CFOD and Company Sec
here they ars appaointed. Pursuant to the MCLT order for commencement of the GIRP and in Ene with the provisions of
a, ihe powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and be exercised by IRP / AP. HmCamuhdmaanam

| !.lsanng CibEgations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015

g5 pudited Financia! Results wers pleced belore the RP, the CFO and the Company Secretary on 30th June, 2021 for thei
o a_:hra?m. Accordingly, the financial statermnents were considered and recommended in the meeting. In view theveol.

lday functioring of tha company.
he RP has epproved these Consolidated fnancial Sietements ondy fo the extent of discharging fhe powers of the Board
Diireciors of the Company (suspended during CIRP) which has been conferred wpon him in ferms of provisions of Section 17
hig Cosdier.
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sANWARIA CONSL R LIMITELD ormerly Known kit

Significant accounting policies and notes to the
For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

Note 42

The camying value of tangible assets as at 31si March 2021 is RAs.7814.88 Lacs As explained
in mote no. 1 above the Company is under CIRP and the AP has invited submission of
resolution plans from potential resolution applicants, and put up for necessary approvals before
the Commitiee of Creditor ({CoC%) and the MCLT. The GIAP is concluded and GOG propose f
hguidstion. And the AP has Filed the Applcation before Hon'ble MCLT. in preparation of
Financial Siatemenis as required by Ind-AS 10 on “Events afier the reporting period”™

Note 43

in accordance with the Code, pubfic announcement was made caling upon the financial
creditors and operational creditors of the company to submit their claime with the Interim
Resolution Professional (IRP) by 15.06.2020. In accordance with the Code, the IRPYAP has to
receive, collate and admit the claims submitled against the Company. Swch claims can be
submitted to the IRAP/AP during CIAP, till the approval of & resolution plan by the CoC.
Pursuant to the claims received on 15.06.2020, the CoC was formed on 01.07_2020, and the list]
of swuch credifors was duly notified to the MCLT and uplcaded on the company website
Thereafter, there could be regular revisions to the fist in view of the claime received and the RP
iz in the process of receiving, collating, werifying, seeking clarifications, sending
communications for unreconcied balance, seeking additional documenis fo substantiate whole
or part of the unreconcited balances on swch claims. In respect of claims submitted by the
financial creditors as on 15.06.2020, the same is excesding amount appearing in the books of
accounis. To the extent the process for submission and reconciliation of claims as on the
Insolvency Commencement Dale remains an on-going process, no accounfing impact in the
books of accounts has been made in respect of excess, short or non-receipls of claims for|
oparational and financial creditors.

MNote 44

The carrying value of tangible assets is As. Rs.7814.88 Lacs. As explained in nofe no 43
above, the Company is under CIRP. As such, the Company has not taken into consideration)
any impact on the value of the tangible asseis, it any, in preparation of Financial stalements
as required by Ind-AS 10 on “Events afler the reporting period”. Further, the Company has also
not made full assessment of impairment as required by Ind AS 36 on Impairment of Assets, i
any, as at 31st March, 2021 in the value of tangible asseis.

|Note 45
The Company has not recognised interest payable, after the insolvency commencement date]
i.e. 20th May, 2020, on borrowings from banks and financial instiiubions, customer advance,
inter corporate. deposits received. The same is nol in compliance with Ind AS - 23 on
“Bormowing Cost” read with Ind AS — 108 on “Financial Instruments™

Page 130 of 149



SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

ireessments 2080 a2 083 1.84,825 B2.040 5083 184,328
(Ca=h ana Bank Balance 3,11 50037 3,11 30007 31180037 3,11,90,0087
Trade Recsivatics 2014130920 2.81.40,31.520 2014151320 614151820
Loans (90,13, 77 450} (1013174104 (10131 7.410) (101317, 418)
Other firancial assets. = 5 = N & i

- [ szpaw] zsesssezer| 2344188207 #2040 - [ 2ssmsoza] 2o.+188.207 |
Financial Rabiiflies
Bosrowings 85854902828 .53 4592828 BESBASSZEZE  B5EADIZEIE
Trade payabies £5037.510 £.20.37.218 83037510 6,50,37.518
Other firancial llahilties 284,78.838 2.54.70,638 2,54, 70 538 2.04.78.823

| 307e007.282 | 9.07 00087 262 - [ _=oreoerzes] sorenerez

Irvcestments 52.040 =208 184,423 B2.040 BE.085 154,525
Cash and Bank Bafance: 54,5490 B4.94 730 B4.54, 550 B4,34,550
Trace Recevabies 2643340818 2.04 30,40 18 254 3340818 2043340818
Loans & Aancs (38198783 (B.51.98.703) 88138705 (85958, 703}
Othes Ninancial assefs. - -

- | 82040 | 1M§Em Eﬁm @E‘u}:ﬂl EEE‘"D
Financial labilflies
Borrowings BOITDATEAZT  BSTABTEIET BSTIBTEIZT 8975578127
Trade paynbies 834 B7 837 8,34 87 B2 B34 BT 832 9,34 87 B2
Other francial iabilties 57.50.304 57,90 364 57.90,304 97.90,364

-1 -1 5,07,52,57.344 | 9,07,02.57 344 - - | sworsearass] wo0v.52.07.394
* The camying amaunt of Brancal carmea af cost a3 approvimation. of i e,
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* The camying amount of MManciyl msiuments carmiad af amantiesd cost anT a reasanabie spproximation of Lk vate.

B Measurement of falr values

The tabile shawn below analyses firancal insirumers camied of tak vaiss. by valuation method. The dilenent levels have been defined b

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted] in aciive markets for icentical assets o labiifies

- Leved 2 inputs oiner Mhan quoted prces inclusen winin Leved 1 that are abeervabée (or the assst or kabiity, siiher drecty (Ls.. 23 proes] of indnectly {1, derven toen prices)
Level 3: inputs for (e asset or labilty st are nod based an chservabie marke! data [uricbservatle nputs)

. ValunBion techniques

The: methods and were used the falr values

¥} Fair uatue of the 0ash and snon 1erm peposts, CuITent ioans and advances and ofer curert finanoil Gabites and oifer similar fems approsimats their camypng value agely due
to snan ierm matunties of thess inchumsnis.

2 Long-temm barmowings: by the based an pa such s inferes! rales: specific country fisk tactors and 1he sk characleristics of e Aranced project
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Gils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31 March 2021 -Consolidated

{Rupees in INR , unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT DBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Company's activities exposa it bo a variety of financial risks, ncluding Credit rak, Commodity Price Risk, and liquidity risk. The
Company's primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of markat risk on its financial pedormance. The
Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are eatablishad to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, io set approprigle sk limis and controls, end o monitor swch risks and compSance with the same. Risk
assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regudarly o reflect changes i maskst conditions and the
Company's activities.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsidty for the estabBshment and owversight of the Company's nsk
management framework. This note pressnts information about the risks associaled with its financial instruments, the Company’s

obyectives, policies and processes for measwrning and managing risk, and the Company's managemeant of capital,

1. Credit Risk
The Company is exposed io credit riek 85 a resuli of the rsk of counerparties defaulting on their obiigations. The Company’s
exposune bo credit risk primarily relates to accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents including deposit with banks.

The Company has a prudent and conservafive process of managing its credit risk asnsiing in the course of its business. Al the
trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on routine basie. Our historical experience of collecting receviables,
supported by the level of default, is that credif rak is low.

The Company maintaing exposere in cash and cash equivalants, term deposit with bank and derivative financial instruments. The
Company's maomum exposure bo credit risk as at 31-March-2021, 31-March-2020 is the camying valee of each class of financial
assels.

2. Commeaodity Price Risk

‘Commaodity price risk arises due o fluciuabon in prices of Soya Seed, Dhan Paddy, Soya Oils, Soya DOC. Rice and other Food
Grain Products. The company has & risk mansgament framework aimed at prudenily managing tha risk ansing from the volafility in
commaodity prices and freight on a continuows basis.

3. Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to Bouedity rish related bo its ability to fund its obBgations as they become due. The Company monitors
and manages its Bguidity risk to ensure access to suficient funds to meet operational and financial requiremants. The Company
has access o cradi faclifies and debt capdtal markets and monitors cash balances daily. In relation to the Company's liquidity riek,
the Company's pobcy is bo ensure, as far as possibde, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 1o meet fis liabilifies when dus,
wnder both normal and stressed conditions a5 they fall due while mimmizing finance costs, withowt incurring unacceptabls losses
or rigk of damage fo the Company’s reputation.

|Maturities of financial liabilities

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of inancial Eabilites are as follows:

Bamowings 8,89 B8 03 7BA 8.57 49 140 B,08.45 52 028
Trade payables 6.50,37.516 5.50.37 516
Oiher financial Babdties 264,765,838 264, 76,838

89003 18,142 - 85740140 0,07 50E7,282

Bomowings 8,88.62 04,512 V.87 74815 B.97.50,.70,127
Trade payables 0,34 87.852 0.34 87 B52
Oiher financial Esbities 57,090,364 57,90, 364

8,99.54 83 728 - 707 74615 0075257 344
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Borrowings 59,12 42 058 8,37,83,550 68,5026 517
Trade payables 65,54 60,810 66,54 60,810
Other financial kabdties 15.89,54.061 15.80,54 D61 |

1.41.56 57 837 - 8.37.83.550 1,50.94 41 396

4. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversaly sffect the borrowing cost of the company.
The Company s exposed to long berm and short-term borrowings. The Company manages inderest rate risk by monitoring its mix
of fixed and floating rale instruments, and taking aclion a& necessary io maintain an appropriaie balanca.

The exposwre of the Company's borrowings to inlerest rale changes st the end of the reporting period are as follows:

a) Int t rate risk e

P

Variable rate bomowings ] HI!-.EE t}?BB B, BQ 62,04,512
Fixed rate borrowings - -

|e) Sensitivity anatysis

The company’s fixed rate borrowings are camied at amordised cost. They are thersfore not subject 1o interest rate sk
as defined in IND AS 107, since neither the carmyng amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change
in market interesi rates. Hence sensitivity has been considered only on vanabis rale borowing. Profit or loss estimate
o hégherlower interest rate expense from borrowings &s a result of chanpges in interast rates.

Impact on profit after tax ]
3-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-20
Interest rates - inorease by 50 basis (4.4404070) [4,44.87,023)
poants
|In1yrar5|: ratet - decraase by 50 basis 444 04 070 4.44 Bt 023

5. Foreign Currency Risk

The company's business objective mcludes sale-guearding ils export eamings against sdverse price movements of in foreign
exchangs and interest rates. The Company has adopted & structured risk management policy io hedge all these risks within an)
accepiable risk Bmit and an approved hedige accounting framework which allows for Fair Value and Cash Flow hedges. Hedging
instrumeants inchude forward curmency contract to achieve this objective.

a) Foreign Currency risk exposure
L.ISD mwﬂral:fm INA |r1 Lahha

Loans, Trade & Oiher F‘ai!aji:e-s
Trade and Other Receivable
Derivafives - Forwands and Futures

b} Sensitivity analysis
Sensifivity Analysis of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of Reporting period net of Hedges

Impact an profit after tax USD In |
31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-20
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis 878 19.69
ants
|In1yrar5|: rates - decrease by 50 basis (B.78) (1069}
anits
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registered Office: Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.) 462016
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com, Email Id: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com
Telephone: +91-755-4294878 Fax: +91-755-4295038

NOTICE of 30t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, (“NCLT”), had vide its order dated
May 29, 2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process
(“CIRP”) of Corporate Debtor (“Admission Order”) in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time (“Code”).
Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors of
the Corporate Debtor stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel,
appointed as the Insolvency Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further,
the committee of creditors (CoC) of the Corporate Debtor, pursuant to the meeting held on July 28, 2020
and in terms of Section 22 (2) of the Code, resolved with 100% voting share, to replace the existing
Interim Resolution Professional with Mr. Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the
Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, the NCLT has in its hearing dated 4th September, 2020 through video
conferencing pronounced the approval for the appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution
Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited will be held on Friday, December 31, 2021 at 12.00 PM Hrs. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM?”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company standalone
and consolidated basis for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon;

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri. Satish Agrawal (DIN: 00256583), who retires by rotation
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification, the following ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Shri Satish Agrawal (DIN: 00256583), who retires by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following ordinary
resolution in respect of Remuneration of Auditors of the Company for 2021-22:

“RESOLVED THAT based on a recommendation to be made by the Audit Committee and
approval of Board, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby given to fix the
Audit fees of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2021-2022 to Rs. 1.50 lacs
(Rupees One Lac Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes per annum .”

December 08, 2021 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL
IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/TP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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NOTES:

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May
05, 2020, physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/ AGM venue is not required and Annual
General Meeting (AGM) be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means
(OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/ OAVM being
provided by the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy/ proxies to attend and vote on his/ her behalf and
that a proxy/ proxies need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant
to the MCA Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 08, 2020 through VC/ OAVM, physical attendance of
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote
for the members is not available for this AGM. However, Institutional Investors/ the Body Corporates
are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM and
participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on
first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars
issued by the MCA dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing
facility of remote e-voting to its members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the
AGM will be provided by NSDL.

In line with the MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.sanwariaconsumer.com. The Notice can
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM
Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting
facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Thursday, December 23, 2021 to Friday, December 31, 2021 (both days inclusive) in terms of the provision
of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

8. Shri. Satish Agrawal, Director of the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offer himself for
re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The relevant detail of director seeking re-
appointment under Item no. 2 in this notice is annexed hereto.

9. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change in address, change of
name, bank details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), Electronic Clearing Service (ECS),
mandates, nominations, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to the Company's Registrar& Transfer
Agents, Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In house RTA), at Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan
Market Bhopal, M.P.-462016 (Phone No. 0755-4294878, Email: rta@sanwariaconsumer.com) for providing
efficient and better services. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate such
changes to their respective depository participants.

10. With the aim of curbing fraud and manipulation risk in physical transfer of securities, SEBI has
notified the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2018 on June 8, 2018 to permit transfer of listed securities only in the dematerialized form with a
depository. In view of the above and the inherent benefits of holding shares in electronic form, we urge the
shareholders holding shares in physical form to opt for dematerialization.

11. Members can avail the facility of nomination in respect of securities held by them in physical form
pursuant to the provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members desiring to avail this facility
may send their nomination in the prescribed form duly filled-in to RTA. Members holding shares in
electronic mode may contact their respective Depository Participant (DP) for availing this facility.

12. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED/UNPAID DIVIDENDS TO INVESTORS EDUCATION and
PROTECTION FUND (IEPF): Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant
Rules, all unclaimed / unpaid dividend remaining unclaimed / unpaid with the Company on the expiry of
7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer to the unclaimed / unpaid account, will be transferred to the
Investors Education and Protection Fund set up by the Central Government. Members are requested to
write to the Company and/or Share Transfer Agents, if any dividend warrants are not en cashed so that
fresh / re-validated warrants could be issued by the Company.

13. The Company has adopted the “GO GREEN” initiative in line of which the Annual Report
containing the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement etc. will be sent to
the shareholders in soft copy. The Shareholders whose mail id is not registered shall be sending in hard
copies. However the shareholders’ continues to retain the right to request the Company for a hard copy of
the Report. The cut-off date for sending the Annual Report and Notice of AGM to the shareholders is
Friday, December 31, 2021.

14. To ensure that shareholders' queries are answered in full, shareholders are requested to write to the
Company at the e-mail ID: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com.

15. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the explanatory statement, the
Statutory Registers, the Audited Financial Statements, the Directors” Report and the Auditor’s Report, will
remain open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days between 09:00 am
to 5:00 pm. excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays up to the date of the AGM. The Audited
Financial Statements, the Directors” Report and the Auditor’s Report will be placed on the Company’s
website on www.sanwariaconsumer.com.
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16. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number ("PAN") by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic
form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details
to the Company.

1. Members are requested to:

o

consider dematerializing the equity shares held by them;

b. intimate the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ their Depository Participant
(DP) change, if any, in their registered address at an early date;

c. quote ledger folio numbers and/or DP Id and Client Id Number in all their
correspondence;

d. inform the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company the particulars of Bank
Account Number with the name of the Bank and its Branch;

e. direct all correspondence to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company;

f.  bring their copies of the Annual Report and the Attendance Slips with them at the Annual
General Meeting; and

g. Exercise due diligence, to prevent fraudulent transactions and notify the Company of any

change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also

advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long;

2. Electronic copy of the Notice of the thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company inter-
alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent to all the members whose email ids are registered with the
Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has
requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email
address, physical copies of the Notice of the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the
Company inter-aliaindicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

17. Voting through electronic means:

In compliance of the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide its members the facility
to exercise their right to vote at the 30t"Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the items
of business as detailed in this Notice may be transacted through e-voting services provided by National
Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”).

The voting period begins on Saturday, December 25, 2021 at 09.00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday,
Thursday December 30, 2021 at 5.00 P.M. During this period, Shareholders' of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Thursday ; December 23,
2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by National Securities
Depository Limited (“NSDL”) for voting thereafter.
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The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:
Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholders’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

IN300***12******.
b) For Members who holdshares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is
Jo¥Hswidkikakk  then your wuser ID s
12**************
c¢) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001***

5. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the

‘initial password” which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial
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6.

8.

9.

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password” and the system will force you to change
your password.

c¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your
“initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to
you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client
ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your “User ID” and your “initial
password’.

(if) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password” is communicated to you on
your postal address.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are given below:

1.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active
status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual

meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM?” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.
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3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to cspkrai@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting wuser manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800-222-990 or send a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently. Further, the Members who have cast their vote electronically shall not be allowed to vote
again at the Meeting. In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ's section
available at www.evotingindia.com.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in the
equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date for e-voting, being Thursday; December 23, 2021.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. P.K. Rai, Practicing Company Secretary as a Scrutinizer
to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days hours from the conclusion
of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the
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employment of the Company and will make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if
any, forthwith to the Chairman of the meeting.

The Results on resolutions shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the Company
and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General Meeting date subject to receipt of
the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) shall be communicated to BSE Limited
(BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) within 48 hours of conclusion of its General
Meeting and will be available on the website of the Company, www.sanwariaconsumer.com and on
exchange website.

II. Please note that the Members who have exercised their right to vote by electronic means shall not
be eligible to vote by way of poll at the Meeting. If a Member casts vote by both the modes, then votes
cast through e-voting shall prevail and voting at the Meeting will be treated invalid. The voting rights of
the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as
on the Cut-off date of December 23, 2021.

III. The poll process shall be conducted and report thereon will be prepared in accordance with
Section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules. In such an event, votes cast under
Poll taken together with the votes cast through e-voting shall be counted for the purpose of passing of
resolution(s).

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of sharcholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to

compliance@ sanwariaconsumer.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com. If you are an
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to
the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining
virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat
account in order to access e-Voting facility.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can
see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against
company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login
where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not
have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the
notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi
or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email
id, mobile number at compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com. The same will be replied by
the company suitably.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2
Disclosure relating to a Director retiring by rotation pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regulation

36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 'Listing
Regulations'):

Name Satish Agrawal

Date of Birth January 28, 1963

Date of Appointment April 22,1991

Qualifications Graduate

Experience in specific functional area Procurement

Directorship held in other Companies 2 Companies

Particulars of Committees Chairmanship/ NIL

Membership in other Companies

No. of equity shares held in the Company 24000

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter Brother of Directors i.e. Mr. Gulab Chand

Agrawal, Mr. Anil Agrawal & Mr. Ashok

5¢ Kumar Agrawal

All the Directors except for the Independent Directors are concerned or interested in the aforesaid
resolution, financially or otherwise.

The Board Recommends the ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval by the
members of the Company.

Sd/-

GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058

Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com

For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registered Office:

Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016 (M.P.)

December 08, 2021
Bhopal (M.P.)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
Regd. Office: Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016
Phone: 0755-4294878; Fax: 0755-4295038;
Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com;
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com

Attendance Slip
Members attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip
and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting venue.

Name of the Member(s) (In block letters)............c.cccceeiiiiiiiiiiinennnin..

Name of the Proxy, if any (In block letters) .................coocoii.

Folio No.

No. of Shares

I hereby record my presence at the 30thAnnual General Meeting of the Company at Office Hall No.1,
1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016 (M.P.) on Friday, 31t December, 2021 at 12.00 P.M.

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy................ccooooiiii
1) Only members or the Proxy holder can attend the meeting.

2) Member/Proxy Holder should bring his/ her copy of Annual Report for reference at the meeting.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
Regd. Office: Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016
Phone: 0755-4294878; Fax: 0755-4295038;
Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com;
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com

Form MGT-11

Proxy form
Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
P P
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the MEemMbET(S): ....v.ouuitiitiii e
Registered address: ..ot

E-mail Id:......ooooiii Folio No/ Client Id: «eeeeeceeienveniercerceeveecee e

I/ We, being the member (s) of ............ccooeuiiiiiiiiiiii. shares of the above named
company, hereby appoint

Email Id:......cccn Signatures. or failing
him/her.

Email Id:. ..o Signaturer. . e or
failing him/her.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my/ our behalf at the 30t Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Office Hall No.1,
1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016 (M.P.), on Friday, 31st December, 2021 at 12.00 P.M.
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Description For* | Abstain | Against*

1 To adopt Financial Statements, etc. for the financial year ended
2020-2021.

2 To re-appoint Shri. Satish Agrawal as Director
3 To fix the Audit fees of statutory auditors for the FY 2021-

2022
Signed this .............. dayof ........coooiiil 2021 Affix Revenue
Signature of Shareholder......................... Stamp
Signature of ProXy............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiii
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Notes:

» *Please put a ‘tick’ in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective
resolutions. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the
resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropriate.

» A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section
105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than fifty
Members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of
the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the
Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other
Member.

> This form of Proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company at Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.)-462016
not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the aforesaid
meeting.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
Regd. Office: Office Hall No.1, 1st Floor, Metro Walk, Bittan Market Bhopal-462016
Phone: 0755-4294878; Fax: 0755-4295038;
Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com;
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395

Registration of email address for future communication

Name of the Shareholder (s) (In Block Letters)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Registered Folio No.

Signature
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